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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS HEREE
Year ended 31 December
HE12A31BLLEE
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FAT FETL FHET FET FET
Revenue Wz 336,704 365,715 488,964 655,518 392,220
Gross profit E7 47,809 62,353 81,733 103,810 68,364
Operating profit @ B R A O 3,871 20,581 27,578 34,834 3,558
Profit for the year FEwEA 1,602 26,225 22,783 27,642 513
Profit attributable to Equity ARAERFE ARG
holders of the Company pinl 1,602 26,225 22,783 27,642 513
Earnings per share B A R
(HK cents) (L) 0.11 1.87 1.57 1.78 0.03
% % % % %
Gross profit margin EFIE 14.2 17.0 16.7 15.8 17.4
Operating profit margin ERE R 1.1 5.6 5.6 5.3 0.9
Net profit margin FREE 0.5 7.2 4.7 4.2 0.1
M It represents earnings before interest and taxation. 0 HRREHATAF -
Revenue by services Revenue by segment
RIRHE &5 Mk R EEI 5D WUk =
9.3%
0.1% — 11.4% Year ended

0.1%

74.8% 78.6%

31 December
HZE12A3181LFE

21.1% 13.4%

Income from rendering of feeder shipping services

R AR R RO WA

Income from rendering of barge services

PR A R Y A

Income from rendering of carrier owned container

services

RRHFGEA B AR A

agency services

Income from rendering of sea freight forwarding

‘s L EERERBHBA

2023

Fujian routes
RIEMAR
Guangxi routes

BT AR
Guangdong routes

ERHAR

Hainan routes

BEMAR

u Sea freight forwarding agency services

B L EERERY
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS MBEBE

At 31 December
MW12A31H
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHET FHET FET FET

Current assets MEBEE 138,305 173,596 221,498 238,006 189,322
Current liabilities meEE 127,175 203,529 198,026 191,695 138,645
Net current assets (liabilities) mEEE(BE)FE 11,130 (29,933) 23,472 46,311 50,677
Net assets BEFE 114,045 142,421 197,317 220,390 214,359
Total assets BESBE 242,606 347,940 396,514 413,132 354,039

Gearing ratio (%) BEABLE (%) 35.9 34.4 36.7 30.4 23.8
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Ever
Harvest Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries collectively referred to as the “Group”), | am pleased to
present our annual report for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Group is a well-established waterborne trade and freight service
provider in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”) and
Hong Kong, which provides mainly four kinds of services, namely (i)
feeder shipping services, (i) carrier owned container services, (i) sea
freight forwarding agency services, and (iv) barge services, with points
of operation in Hong Kong, Fujian Province, Guangdong Province,
Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region and Hainan Province. Most of our
points of operation are located in strategic transportation ports, which
enable our local staff to closely communicate with our customers to
strengthen our relationship and understand the local market.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, container throughput of
Hong Kong port decreased by 13.7% as compared with the same
period last year, according to the data released by the Marine
Department of The Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region of the PRC. For the year ended 31 December
2023, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$392,220,000
(2022: approximately HK$655,518,000). The Group recorded profit for
the year of approximately HK$513,000 (2022: approximately
HK$27,642,000).

FERES

BRIR -

RAAZERRKEEEZRERAR ([AQA] - &
BENBARGAEBIAEFEDES(EE)e(E
E2|)  MASRARFEHE2023F12A31H1E
FERFIR -

AEEREEIUMFEARKEMEA ([FE]) &
BEKEE S RMEBERBHER  FERETOER
% DRI () TR ARTS - (i) FEABBRR (i)
BEEERERE  RivVEMHERS  REE BE
E ERE BOAMAKBAELRSHEAREZEE
B BRI LEMNBIIEERED - N
FEEMHBEHETHZFETHE  ZEEHHR
RTRHBEHTS -

BRI BB S B RTTIR R BT 8 =R S h A8k
HE2023F12A31HIEFE  EEEONERS
HEKEFRBTEI3.7% > H E 2023412 A 31
BIEFE - N&EBE &5 W& 4 392,220,000 4 7T
(20224 : #9655,518,000 7T) - AEE B FE
R #9513,000 7 7T (2022 4F « #727,642,000787T) °
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

In the environment where governments in various countries are using
high interest rates to suppress high inflation and economic overheating,
global trade has contracted, leading to subdued demand in the sea
freight market. At the same time, the oversupply of shipping capacity
has exacerbated the downturn in the sea freight industry.

The management of the Group will tackle the significant challenges
ahead through cost-saving measures, financial prudence, and seeking
New revenue sources.

While maintaining close relationships with existing customers, the Group
has actively pursued new customer. Despite the challenging operating
environment this year, the management has successfully secured
several new clients in order to expand the Group’s revenue streams.

Efforts will be made to negotiate with shipowners to reduce vessel
leasing costs, minimize unnecessary administrative expenses, and
improve vessel utilization rates to control costs and enhance the
Group’s efficiency and service.

We believe that these measures will enable the Group to move forward
against various uncertainties and lay the way for our greater success in
the future.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all our staff for their
dedication and contributions. | would also like to extend appreciation to
our customers, suppliers, business associates and shareholders for
their continuous support.

Lau Yu Leung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

The Group is pleased to report the results for the year ended 31
December 2023.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded a
revenue of approximately HK$392,220,000 (2022: approximately
HK$655,518,000), representing a decrease of 40.2% over the same
period last year. The Group recorded a gross profit of approximately
HK$68,364,000 (2022: approximately HK$103,810,000), representing
a decrease of 34.1% over the same period last year. The gross profit
margin increased from 15.8% to 17.4%. The Group recorded a profit
for the year of approximately HK$513,000 (2022: approximately
HK$27,642,000).

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2023, container throughput of
Hong Kong port decreased by 13.7% as compared with the same
period last year, according to the data released by the Marine
Department of The Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region of the PRC.

The Group’s feeder shipping services, carrier owned container services
and barge services recorded a decrease in total shipment volume of
125,856 twenty-foot equivalent units (the “TEUS”) or 26.1%, from
482,364 TEUs to 356,508 TEUs, and a decrease in gross profit of
approximately HK$30,649,000 or 34.1%, from approximately
HK$89,957,000 to approximately HK$59,308,000, for the year ended
31 December 2023, as compared to the corresponding period last
year. The decrease in the gross profit was mainly attributable to the
decrease in shipment volume and the decrease in the average unit price
of the Group’s services. Such decrease was mainly due to the decline
in customer demand for the Group’s services resulting from a
combination effect of a global economic slowdown and intensifying
competition within mainland China’s waterborne trade and freight
sector.

The Group’s sea freight forwarding agency services recorded a
decrease in shipment volume of 558 TEUs or 6.4%, from 8,685 TEUs
to 8,127 TEUs, and a decrease in gross profit of approximately
HK$4,797,000 or 34.6%, from approximately HK$13,853,000 to
approximately HK$9,056,000, for the year ended 31 December 2023,
as compared to the corresponding period last year. The decrease in
gross profit was mainly attributable to decrease in average unit price of
sea freight forwarding agency services as a result of market downturn in
sea freight market.

EEENWR DT

Bt 7% [ 8
REBEMRASMEZE 2023F 12 A31 HIFFE A4S -

HE2023F 12 A31HIEFE  REBSEFSREL
392,220,0008 7T (2022 4F : %655,518,000787T)
BEFRHMA40.2% - AEBATSENEFHE
68,364,000 7 7T (2022 FF : 49103,810,000/8 7T) *
B RFR B 34.1% c EFIEBIH15.8% LN E
17.4% o 78 & B 70 78 4 [Z 8% 15 49513,000 7% 7T Ja 7
(2022 4F : #927,642,0007TT) °

£ 0]

REPEEEFRITHRERNSERZEMOEUE -
HE2023F 12 A3 HILFE  EFEEONERAE
HEREFRBTIH13.7% -

HE2023F 12 A3 HILFE AEB R MR
% ERBABERRGEEEMRSERSE T RIZE
f (AR ) BB 2 2= F | B ) 482,364 EZ 4
#6840 125,856 [ 5, 26.1% Z 356,508 & 1Z 2 45
imEF @\ E=FREL89,957,0008 T E 2 4
30,649,0007% 7T 8¢ 34.1% = £959,308,00078 7T ° £
MELETEAREES R ASERBOFHEN
BREEFRLY GRS EZHR IR ERE
KPBAKEESREEERFNENEAY
2 BYRFEHASBRBNE IR -

HE20283F12A31BIEFE AEBESB 28
EENRIERGRES B X TR HI8,685 AR &R
15581 3,6.4% £ 8,127 AR 4 - AR EF A X
F [A] HA 49 18,853,000 7% 7T &k 2> 49 4,797,000 7 JT 3¢
34.6% & #19,056,000/8 ¢ °c EFH AL EZHNE

HERERBENIHEERSLEEMSERER
M~k e
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following table sets out the breakdown of revenue and TEUs by

segment for the year:

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 %

EEENWR DT

TREINFAZD MW MIETERREE D

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLFEE

2023 2022

Gross Gross

profit profit

HK$°000 TEUs margin  HK$'000 TEUs margin

FET EER ERE FHET EAERE ER =

% %

Fujian routes REMAR 60,802 43,649 15.7 93,044 63,700 28.7

Guangxi routes B4R 137,497 108,283 17.2 277,696 170,419 14.0

Guangdong routes EREMmAR 64,333 148,980 17.3 107,215 202,141 16.9

Hainan routes AR 82,655 55,596 18.2 88,045 46,104 7.2
Sea freight forwarding BLEEE

agency services KRIE AR 46,933 8,127 19.3 89,518 8,685 15.5

392,220 364,635 17.4 655,518 491,049 15.8

The Group’s operational costs amounted to approximately
HK$323,856,000 representing a decrease of approximately
HK$227,852,000 or 41.3% as compared with the same period last
year. The change in operational costs was mainly due to: (i) the
decrease in shipping volume of feeder shipping services, carrier owned
container services and barge services; (i) the decrease in unit price of
bunker charges; and (iii) the decrease in monthly rental charges of
feeder vessels as compared to the corresponding period of last year.

The Group’s other income amounted to approximately HK$15,069,000,
representing an increase of approximately HK$3,210,000 as compared
to the same period last year. The change in other income was mainly
due to () the increase in the government grants; (i) the increase in bank
interest income; (i) the increase in rental income; and (iv) the increase in
net exchange gain.

AN 52 (B 1 45 & B AR 5 49 323,856,000 7 7T+ B K
[B) B3 > 49227,852,0007%8 7T 8 41.3% ° 48 & AL N
FHEFT AN EREFRB() S EMRT - &E
ANEBEHRBRB R EMREEESHD  ()RABE
L EARAB PR D o K (i) ST &R A A0 A A8 T BRPREL -

ANEE 7 A B#15,069,000/8 7T » B EFER
HA3E h1%93,210,0008 7T « bW AZEB) = Z Th |
B ()BT 4 BhEE A0 ¢ (i) SR 77 B U A2 N ¢ (i) AR
SULASE AN ¢ R (v) BE 34 U 25 5B 3 0 o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROSPECTS

In an environment where governments across countries are utilizing
high interest rates to curb inflation and economic overheating, it has led
to a contraction in global trade, resulting in subdued demand within the
sea freight market. Concurrently, the surplus of shipping capacity has
further exacerbated the industry’s downturn.

Over our long history in the waterborne trade market, although we
experienced several economic cycles and industry storms, we were
able to thrive to expand our shipping network by capitalising market
opportunities. In order to address the significant challenges ahead, the
management team is adopting a proactive approach by cost-saving
measures, ensuring financial stability, and exploring new revenue
streams. Despite the challenging business landscape this year, the
group has successfully secured several new clients, bolstering its
income sources.

The Group will continue to maintain strong relationship with customers,
compete with competitors with high-quality service, effectively manage
the vessel fleet and containers in order to maximise the reliability and
flexibility of services, and take all possible measures to enhance the
cost efficiency.

With the continuous efforts of the Group, the Group will continue to
strive towards bringing returns to its shareholders in the long term.

EEENWR DT
A=

RZBBRENASEZEN S BRLEHEBRNE
AT ERESZRBELE  ERELEEMHHEKX
X o BRI - KESRRE T INRITERR -

BPEXKRESTEECAZFESL  ZHEKELE
BHFOTRRR  BRETKRMICENSHERR
BANMERE ERER BB BNAHNEHE
i~ BRI B o T SR R SOR MV RE AR 75 $THERE
AU - BEAFEXHEBRMKE - ARED
R B % 2T P ABBARAKIR -

AEEREEREFPHEFTIBER  USERRK
ENFHRS  WEREEMER R EERE - M
EREHAIEEREEN - ARKI—Y) AT 5
HERA R

EARENTRENT  AEEEREN = BEE
BHRBEREREE



12

EVER HARVEST GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED 7k % £ Bl #2 Ji % B 2 W)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
cash flow and banking facilities provided by its principal bankers in
Hong Kong. As at 31 December 2023, the Group held bank balances
and cash denominated in HK$, US dollars and Renminbi equivalent to
approximately HK$106,505,000 (2022: approximately
HK$147,991,000). The Group had a mortgage loan of approximately
HK$19,209,000 as at 31 December 2023 (2022: approximately
HK$20,416,000) and was wholly repayable over five years. The Group
had a term loan of approximately HK$25,620,000 (2022:
HK$26,430,000) and was wholly repayable over five years. Also, the
Group had other bank borrowings of approximately HK$4,080,000 as
at 31 December 2023 (2022: approximately HK$17,738,000) and were
wholly repayable within one year since inception. The range of effective
interest rates on the borrowings was 3.3% to 7.4% (2022: 2.1% to
7.1%) per annum. All bank borrowings were made at floating interest
rates. The carrying amounts of bank borrowings were denominated in
Hong Kong dollars. The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 December 2023,
calculated based on the total borrowings (including lease liabilities) to
the equity attributable to owners of the Company, was 23.8% (2022:
30.4%).

The Group believes that its cash holding, liquid asset value, future
revenue and available banking facilities will be sufficient to fulfill the
working capital requirements of the Group.

There had been no material change in the capital structure of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2023. The capital of the
Company comprises the shares and other reserves.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 %

EEENWR DT

EEhEH  RERRELER

REB—RUAANBEECRESREREETEEE
FRBITIRENBRITHREEERTEEEMTE
& ° R2023F 12 A31 B » REB A RITLEH MR
EUABT EZEXTEARETFE HERY
106,505,000 78 7t (2022 4 : #9147,991,00077T) °
RNEEPR2023F 12831 BHAE—FRIBERYD
19,209,000 % JT (2022 £F : 4920,416,000/8 JT) *
ARAFULEBRHEEE - AEEBEF %48
25,620,000 7 7T (2022 £F : 26,430,000 JT) &) &
HER  ARAEFIA EBEEE - i AEER
2023 12 A 31 B B H #h R 17 f& 5K 49 4,080,000 7%
JC (2022 % : #917,738,000/8 7T) * A B B4 5T
—FRNBHEZ -ERNEREFHENF33%E
7.4% (20224 : 21% B 7.1%)  FIARITERYIR
FENFIEET R c RITERWERMENBITAER -
M2023F 12 H31H  AEEMERBEL RLZR
BE(RREHEAB) HARAREE ABGESL
st & 523.8% (2022 4F : 30.4%) °

AEEMREMEENERS RBEEEE KKK
S MAHARTHERESENENAKEENZ
BESHE -

BE2023F12 A1 BILGFE  ARRINEAR &R
WERATEARE S - ARFRARFERAD B HoAth
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Treasury policies

The Group has adopted a prudent financial and surplus funds
management approach towards its treasury policies and thus
maintained a healthy liquidity position throughout the year ended 31
December 2023. The Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by
performing ongoing credit assessments and evaluations of the financial
status of its customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely
monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that sufficient financial
resources are available in order to meet its funding requirements and
commitment timely.

Hedging and exchange rate exposure

The majority of the transactions, assets and liabilities of the Group was
made in HK$, Renminbi and US dollars. During the year ended 31
December 2023, no financial instruments were used for hedging
purposes, and the Group did not commit to any financial instruments to
hedge its exposure to exchange rate risk, as the expected exchange
rate risk is not significant. The Directors and senior management will
continue to monitor the foreign exchange exposure and will consider
applicable derivatives when necessary. The Group did not have any
derivatives for hedging against the foreign exchange rate risk as at 31
December 2023.

Charge on group assets

As at 31 December 2023, leasehold land and building amounting to
approximately HK$63,749,000 (2022: approximately HK$66,458,000),
investment properties amounting to approximately HK$56,799,000
(2022: HK$61,356,000), trade receivables amounting to approximately
HK$2,080,000 (2022: approximately HK$5,738,000) in connection with
invoice discounting bank loan arrangements and bank deposits
amounting to approximately HK$784,000 (2022: approximately
HK$811,000) were pledged as security for bank facilities.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no contingent liabilities.

EEENWR DT

B BUBCER

AEEEREVHBEREREENTELEHKRE
BN WHREE2023F 12 A1 B EFER—H
HREEORBESHRN - AEBEBFEHERS
NP B RETEETR MG  BOREEER
R AEERDECEK EECRVERALE
MRBESMA  MEREREVBERAENE
BeFEVRBBITAAEEMT -

o & BB 2R [ By

REBHWALARS  BEERBBEHANET AR
WK ETTEHE - REIE2023F 12 A1 B IEEE -
MAARTEHMERRRY TEXN - NEBWHEGFE R
BT EVESH TRE - TREEMMAE T AL hHE
EKER - EEREREIEESEEERINERD -
THERFEREZEREEANTELIRE -AEER
20234 12 A 31 B I & LAE AT A T A ¥ b S [
K

SEEENT

M 2023 12 A31H * 463,749,000/ 7t (2022
F 466,458,000 L) MHE LT REF - 4
56,799,000 7% 7t (2022 4 : 61,356,000 7% 7T) &Y%
& W) - #92,080,0007% 7T (2022 4F : 495,738,000
BT BB EBEITERLT BB 2E SR
T8 A & #9784,00078 7T (2022 4F : #9811,00078 JT)
ERITIF I EHERITR AR -

HREE

INE=

MR2023F 12 A31H  AEBWETRKAEE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Dividend Policy

The declaration and payment of shareholder dividends and the amount
thereof are at the discretion of the Board and depend upon various
factors, including the results of operations, financial condition and future
prospects of the Company and taking into account regulatory
restrictions on the payment of shareholder dividends, as well as any
other factors deemed relevant by the Board. The dividend policy shall
be reviewed periodically and submitted to the Board for approval if
amendments are required.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group did not hold any
significant investment in equity interest in any other company.

PROPERTY HELD FOR INVESTMENT

The details of our Group’s property held for investment as at 31
December 2023 are set out below:

Address

28/F., Excel Centre,
483A Castle Peak Road,
Cheung Sha Wan,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Lease term
Long term

Existing use
Office

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any
material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Apart from those disclosed in this report, there were no material
investments or additions of capital assets authorised by the Board as at
the date of this report.
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ABOUT THE REPORT

Ever Harvest Group Holdings Limited (referred to as the “Company” and
collectively with its subsidiaries as the “Group”) is persistently committed
to incorporating sustainable development measures into our daily
business operations and management. This is not just a responsibility of
the Group, but also a pledge to our shareholders, customers,
employees, and the community. To secure long-term success, we need
to surpass traditional financial indicators and exhibit leadership in
environmental protection, social responsibility, and corporate
governance. We will persist in seeking innovative ways to enhance our
sustainability performance and eagerly anticipate progressing on this
journey with all stakeholders.

This is the eighth Environmental, Social, and Governance report (the
“Report” or the “ESG Report”) of the Group. The report reviews our
performance in sustainable development and summarizes our
milestones for the year ending 31 December 2023. This Report only
covers our business operations in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”), emphasizing the reporting principles, namely
materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency. We believe that
adhering to these principles allows us to report our ESG performance
accurately and comprehensively.

We remain committed to achieving our sustainable development goals
through quantifiable data. Additionally, we promise to maintain
consistency in this process so that our stakeholders can readily see our
efforts and progress.
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Application
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Materiality

B2

Quantitative

g1t

Balance

&

Consistency

To ensure that the issues addressed in the report are relevant to the Group and social
development, we conducted a dual-dimensional questionnaire survey this year. We invited
stakeholders to participate, focusing on the financial impact of the Group and social
development. The purpose was to identify relevant issues and provide detailed disclosure.
RERGEFRENZBEAEE R GEREAHE RPN AFEETT _H#RSHS -
BABFERNELE  EHRIAEENNBZERLEER - BNEAREEEEL
R FFARIREE -

The Group uses quantitative data disclosure to not only record and evaluate our ESG
performance but also utilize data monitoring systems to measure and disclose key
performance indicators of our environmental and social performance. This enhances
transparency and addresses stakeholders’ concerns. Additionally, historical data from the
base year of 2021 is also included in the report to improve comparability and provide an
objective basis for evaluating the Group’s performance.

REBGFAS(CEERE  TELHERTHRMORE L RERRE  THBAEE
ERFAMOERBEERMBERMESRENFRERIET - LB AIRSFEHE - LR
FOHERSRE LI R ENBE2021 EEFHELEE - UIES ALY - BEHE
REBHRREHZTBMKIE -

This Report provides an unbiased disclosure of the Group’s ESG performance by
highlighting both the achievements and challenges of ESG management.
RRESHFHPRR HERESHEEXRF RIS TRIAGHERAEERIRE -
HEkERRHE -

This Report has been prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social, and
Governance Reporting Guide published by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the
Exchange”), which ensures consistent and comparable disclosure of information. In the
event of any changes in calculation methods or key performance indicators, we will provide
explanations.
ABEDNRBESBMERSABERAR ([ FIBNIRE e RE/RRERS
el DIERERHEEN — S RATLE M « MHEFEANERESIEEETAEY - &
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This Report adheres to the “comply or explain” provisions contained in
the “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” under
Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules of the SEHK (the “Listing Rules”). The
Board has reviewed, comprehended and approved the disclosure
content of this report at the annual Board Meeting. We value your
comments and opinions on our overall sustainable development work.
You can email your opinions to ir@xhsl.com.hk.

The subsidiaries of the Group in scope are:

o Ever Harvest Shipping Limited

° Xiamen Harvest Shipping Limited

° Millions Good Limited

° Ever Harvest International Logistics (Shenzhen) Limited

° Shenzhen Ever Harvest Logistics Co., Limited
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT & MATERIALITY
ANALYSIS

The Group recognizes the importance of stakeholder participation and
feedback in our sustainability efforts. We prioritize communication with
stakeholders, including shareholders, investors, customers, employees,
business partners, suppliers, regulatory agencies, industry insiders,
charities, and non-governmental organizations. We are committed to
providing transparent and accurate information to foster and maintain
trust and support within the Group.
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This year, to accurately collect and analyze stakeholders’ opinions, the
Group conducted a set of questionnaire surveys. It gathered ratings on
various sustainability issues from the Group’s management and
employees. This was done to assess the impact of sustainable
development issues on finance, and the influence of the Group’s
operations on society within the scope of these issues. A total of 27
valid responses were collected in this survey. After statistically analyzing
the scores, the resulting importance matrix is provided for reference:
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Materiality No. Sustainability Issues
BEEM F AIRERERE
Very Material 11 Occupational Health and Safety
FEER BEREREARE
8 Employment Practices
BRERER
18 Anti-corruption
RES
15 Responsible Marketing
BEFEEHE
13 Product and Service Quality
EmkiRGES
12 Labour Standards
& TR
14 Privacy and Data Security
LERBELZR
19 Risk Management
B 38
4 Energy
BEIR
Relatively Material 9 Training and Development
HEEZ2 1) B 2% R
16 Responsible Supply Chain Management
BREENHERER
10 Diversity and Equal Opportunity
T EKE
1 Air Emissions
& SR HE A
7 Climate Change and Resilience
RIR SR
20 Protection of Intellectual Property Rights
R o6 S0 5k E
3 Waste
REEY)
17 Community Engagement and Investment
tR2ELRE
2 Greenhouse Gas Emissions
BERBHEN
Less Material 6 Materials
BEMRIE i
5 Water

7K
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This Report was created according to the framework built on the results
of our materiality analysis. This will ensure that the disclosed content
covers significant issues, thereby complying with regulations and
addressing stakeholders’ concerns. We will persist in our efforts to
communicate effectively with stakeholders through various channels
and opportunities. Our goal is to ensure that our sustainable
development work aligns with their expectations and needs.

REPORTING METHODOLOGY

For the following environmental and social data, the abovementioned
operations of the Group in scope are all included.

BOARD INVOLVEMENT AND GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is responsible for overseeing long-
term sustainable development. The Sustainable Development Working
Group (the “Working Group”) carries out the corporate sustainable
development strategies and initiatives. The Working Group is also
tasked with reporting to the Board on matters and management related
to sustainable development risks and performance.

The Working Group holds regular meetings to formulate specific
policies, enhance efficiency, manage and minimize climate-related risks,
reduce costs, foster employee participation in sustainable development,
and review environmental and social-related objectives and progress.
Moreover, the sustainable business operations of various departments
and the monitoring and reporting of related performance are directly
submitted to the working group for ongoing monitoring and
management.
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The ESG Strategy

The Board reviews and discloses the Group’s sustainable development
performance and commitment to ESG through this Report. We believe
that the Group’s ESG strategy aims to achieve business sustainable
development goals by ensuring compliance with the industry’s highest
ESG standards through effective management processes and
strategies. The Board follows the following steps to formulate
management approaches and strategies:

Identify ESG issues: We assess and identify important
environmental, social, and corporate governance issues and
incorporate them into our ESG management approaches and
strategies.

Prioritize ESG issues: We prioritize the management of risks and
opportunities related to ESG issues based on their importance
and impact.

Manage ESG issues: We develop appropriate policies, guidelines,
and processes to effectively manage and respond to ESG-related
issues and risks.

Monitor and report: We regularly monitor and evaluate our ESG
performance and provide stakeholders with relevant reports and
information to demonstrate our progress and achievements.

ESG risk management is an integral part of the Group’s overall risk
management. The Board recognizes that effective ESG risk
management is crucial for the Group’s business to achieve robust and
long-term development. The following provides an overview of relevant
ESG risks by analyzing industry characteristics and the group’s own
operations:

Environmental risks: The Group may face environmental risks in
the shipping industry, such as the impact of vessel emissions on
marine ecosystems, oil pollution, and waste management. It is
important for the group to assess and monitor these risks, and
take appropriate measures to minimize negative impacts on the
environment. This can include adopting environmentally friendly
technologies and implementing effective waste disposal practices.

RE #HE8RERKRE

RE HEREBRK
EX2REBARERIRBEAKENAFEE

RERBFLEIRE L2 RERNER - HMI4EE -

AEBEMRE HEREARBEEBBRERNE

R IE AN B RS - ﬁ%ﬁéﬁ¥Wmmh S

EIRIZAE MAE%WTﬁA%EET ES AR

AR RS EEE T KR

o  HRRE - dHeRTRASE: RMTEEH
REEMRE HEhOEEREE T
AﬂAﬁﬁm% T HEREREELIHEK

HE o

e BEEERE HERERHEE: RMABE
ESZURFEWHEERE HekERRE
EENRB RS ETELEE -

e EHRE HeREARAZE: BRMAMNTHEE

RIER - oI MRE  WERER REYHIR
B eghELHEEZRERER -

. Eﬁ%&i&i CHAE BB R LA AR IR IR
B e hEBARARE LRFHERHKHEER
BEMEH  UERRMANER LKL -

RE (HekEiRRBEREASE2EERER
E’Jizz%ﬁﬁi*ﬁ CEEERA BUMMIIRIE g

ARBREBEASEEERERERLERE
JE:EEJE%E NTEEBBNMITERENEES Y
EEEN  REARRE HgRELRRKRAOME

s RERR:AKEAGEEEBRNEXRNRER

% - M ﬂEﬁFEﬁZﬁﬁﬁFiﬁ REMTE  H
V575 n&@%% o REB WERH R E
EZER I%KHXL s D HIR

%mﬁ@%%°LTﬁ@%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁm&
BEMmAERNEYRER -

21



22

EVER HARVEST GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED 7k % £ Bl #2 Ji % B 2 W)

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

o Social risks: The shipping industry is closely linked to social issues
such as labor rights, personal safety, and community relations.
The Group should ensure compliance with labour regulations,
provide a safe and healthy working environment, and establish
positive relationships with local communities. Additionally, the
Group should prioritize crew welfare and personal safety to
safeguard their rights.

° Governance risks: Strong corporate governance is fundamental
for the sustainable development of the shipping industry. The
Group should ensure transparency and accountability, establish
effective internal control and risk management mechanisms, and
prevent corruption and bribery. Furthermore, the Group should
align business decisions and corporate culture with ESG values,
and promote the concept of sustainable development within the
Board and senior management.

The Group is committed to continuously implementing and enhancing
ESG strategies to achieve sustainable development goals and create
value for shareholders, customers, employees, and communities.

SOCIAL PERFORMANCE

The Group highly values governance and social performance. We
believe that effective corporate governance and active social
engagement can enhance both our business performance and our
commitment to shareholders, employees, customers, and the
community. We will persist in our efforts to uphold the highest ethical
and professional standards in our business operations, contribute to our
community, and work towards a more sustainable future.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, our Group complied with all
the relevant laws and regulations that significantly impact our business
and operations. In Hong Kong, we adhered to all applicable rules such
as the “Sex Discrimination Ordinance”, the “Race Discrimination
Ordinance”, the “Disability Discrimination Ordinance”, and the “Family
Status Discrimination Ordinance”, among others. In the People’s
Republic of China, we complied with pertinent employment regulations,
including the “Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China” and the
“LLabour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China”. The Board is
not aware of any non-compliance by any of our Group’s companies or
employees with relevant laws and regulations that could have
significantly impacted the Group during the reporting year.
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Employment and Labour Practices

The Group highly values staff management and talent. We view each
employee as a valuable resource, and their skills and efforts are crucial
to our success. Thus, we strive to provide a conducive work
environment, promote career growth, and ensure fair treatment for all
employees. We encourage continuous learning and provide the
necessary resources and opportunities for skill and knowledge
enhancement. We believe that effective staff management and talent
development can boost our business performance and help us achieve
our sustainability goals.

The Group is dedicated to providing a non-discriminatory, harassment-
free, healthy, and safe working environment for all employees. We
believe that fair opportunities and competitive compensation foster a
culture of equality, openness, and mutual respect. Therefore, we have
strictly formulated remuneration and benefits policies as per relevant
laws and regulations, and we have a discretionary bonus plan to reward
exceptional employees.

For talent recruitment and retention, we place appropriate talents in
suitable positions through efficient recruitment procedures. We value
diversity and equal opportunities. We select the most suitable talent
based on the skills required for the position, irrespective of race, family
status, gender, disability, religion, or age.
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As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 182 staff in total. Workforce ~ F22023F 12 A31H  AEE X F182K 8 T - 1%
statistic by gender, employment type, employment category, age group Bl « Z{EFEA « EAR » FEAR MIIBEAE

and geographical region:

S DHEEMAHRFAOT

Staff Number
BI¥A
Hong Kong 38
BE
Mainland China 144
HE R it
Employees — Female 135
Breakdown by gender B8 — &M
R85 Employees — Male 47
EE — 31
Employees Age < 30 23
EEFH <30
Breakdown by age group Employees Age 30-50 136
RERER B D 1E B F# 30-50
Employees Age > 50 23
1B B F# > 50
Employees — Full-time 181
Breakdown by employment type BEE — =8
RERERE D Employees — Part-time 1
BE — #B
Employees — Senior 9
BE — &
Employees — Middle Level 45
Breakdown by employment category BEE — &
BZEMHARE S Employees — Supervisory Level 60
BB — BESE
Employees — General 68
BB — —#&
Statistic of employee turnover rate by gender, age group and  IZIER| - FELAARI NI IBRLE B D K& B KL R
geographical region: RETEHFTT -
%
Employees — Female 15
Turnover Rate by gender BB — &M
BRI B2 WK kL= Employees — Male 10
B8 — 5%
Employees Age < 30 19
EEFH<30
Turnover Rate by age group Employees Age 30-50 12
REREBB DR AL = {E B 5 #2 30-50
Employees Age > 50 13
B EF#> 50
Hong Kong 3
Turnover Rate by geographical region BE
R BUBE SN RAL =R Mainland China 16
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Health and Safety

The Group believes that employee health and safety are pivotal to the
company’s long-term success. As such, we commit to maintaining a
safe and healthy work environment. To this end, we strictly adhere to
the “Occupational Safety and Health Regulations” and the “China Safety
Production Law”. We also share the latest safety information regularly,
aiming to heighten employees’ safety awareness and reduce work
accidents stemming from negligence.

Moreover, we actively implement specific measures for employee
safety. For instance, we conduct regular fire drills to prepare employees
for emergencies. We also send out routine email reminders to maintain
the cleanliness and orderliness of corridors and tea rooms. Through
these initiatives, we strive to cultivate a safe and comfortable work
environment for our employees.

Zero accident was reported during the year ended 31 December 2023,
and the Group had no work-related fatalities in the past 3 years (2021,
2022 and 2023).

The following table shows our health and safety statistics during the
reporting year:
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Health and Safety Unit

BRERZZE B

No. of Work-related Fatalities — Employees Number 0
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Rate of Work-related Fatalities % 0
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Lost Days due to Work Injury Number 0
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Development and Training

The Group firmly believes that human resources are central to the
company’s success. We constantly refine our human resources strategy
to attract the market’s top talents. A comprehensive development plan
is in place to empower employees to reach their full potential and equip
them with the necessary skills for optimal job performance.

We offer diversified on-the-job training, tailored to each employee’s
position and expertise, to cultivate their professional skills and unlock
their potential. We encourage employees to pursue continuing
education courses related to their work, providing comprehensive
development opportunities across various roles. We see employee
training and development as an investment in our group’s future and a
key component of our success.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the total training hours of
employees were 182 hours. Detailed breakdown of training are as
follows:

Percentage
of employees
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Average
training hours

Training completed per

trained hours (hrs) employee (hrs)
BEEER
ZIIRFE SR EIZ
TIEEES L (D) FHEECNE)
Senior 100% 9 1
=R
Middle Level 100% 45 1
Employment Category H
EEER Supervisory Level 100% 60 1
General 100% 68 1
—f
Female 100% 135 1
Gender i
4 5l Male 100% 47 1

S



EVER HARVEST GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED 7% £ [ 5 )it 5 Fi 23 W)
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 3

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

Labour Standard

The Group strictly prohibits all units and suppliers from utilizing child
labour or forced labour. We strongly uphold the belief that every
employee should have the freedom to choose their job and work in an
environment devoid of any mental or physical oppression. During
recruitment, we rigorously verify the age of applicants to guarantee that
all employees meet the legal working age in each operational region.

We maintain a zero-tolerance policy towards any transgressions of
labour standards in our supply chain, such as employing children or
forced labour. While adhering to relevant human resources policies and
laws, we consistently monitor our supply chain to ensure compliance
with our employment standards. These laws include Hong Kong’s
“Employment Ordinance”, “Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance”,
and “Employees’ Compensation Ordinance”, along with China’s “Labour
Law of the People’s Republic of China” and “Labour Contract Law of
the People’s Republic of China”.

Supply Chain Management

The Group emphasizes sustainable and responsible supply chain
management, integrating this philosophy across all operational levels. A
Business Development Committee is appointed to manage and assess
environmental and social risks at all business levels and stages of the
supply chain. This committee ensures that all suppliers and business
partners align with our vision. Through our supplier selection
mechanism, we screen for partners meeting our environmental
standards. We enhance the management awareness and capabilities of
our partner suppliers and use annual evaluations to ensure the
effectiveness of these measures. These actions affirm our continuous
improvement of the supply chain.

We understand that environmentally friendly supply chain management
can reduce our carbon footprint and costs. Thus, we focus on
purchasing environmentally friendly materials, supporting suppliers
committed to sustainable forestry management, and prioritizing local
suppliers to limit transportation-related air pollution. These practices not
only lower our carbon footprint but also help us reduce operational
costs. These efforts highlight the Group’s commitment to environmental
protection and community responsibility, demonstrating our
determination to improve our supply chain management continuously.
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During the reporting year, the geographical distribution of the Group’s
suppliers is as follows:

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 %

T
ik

RBEFE  AEBHEEBROHMT

Number of
Geographical Region Suppliers
ith & HEBHE
Hong Kong 94
B
Mainland China 275

B A

Commitment to Service Responsibility

The Group is dedicated to delivering high-quality, fair services. We
adhere to principles of honesty, integrity, and fairness in our business
operations, respecting fair trade and operational practices. We keep all
promotional and communication documents updated and in compliance
with the regulations of our operating region. By strictly following industry
best practices and health and safety standards, we mitigate business
risks. During the reporting year, we did not receive any service-related
complaints.

In terms of intellectual property rights management, we place great
importance on respect and protection. We safeguard our business and
customer data against theft. Our operational guidelines and industry
best practices steer us towards providing quality services. We maintain
high service standards through constant communication with our
customers, and have set up comprehensive feedback channels to
ensure service quality and facilitate necessary adjustments.

Regarding personal data protection, we maintain a rigorous approach.
In our Hong Kong operations, we strictly adhere to the Hong Kong
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance, collecting personal data only for
lawful, relevant purposes. We use stakeholders’ personal and business
data for legitimate purposes only, disclosing them to employees strictly
on a “need-to-know” basis. In China, we’ve implemented a customer
participation plan and a monitoring system to address data privacy
concerns. Additionally, we’re enhancing our computer system’s security
features to protect customers’ personal data and ensure network
security.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with relevant
law and regulations on health and safety, advertising and privacy
matters related to services provided during the reporting period.
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Anti-Corruption

Our group takes a strong stance against corruption, integrating integrity
into every business activity. We do not tolerate bribery or corrupt
practices, aiming to create a fair, transparent, and just business
environment. All employees must comply with relevant laws and
regulations, including but not limited to various laws of the People’s
Republic of China, such as the “Corporation Law”, “Anti-Money
Laundering Law”, “Anti-Monopoly Law”, “Anti-Unfair Competition Law”,
and “Interim Provisions on Prohibition of Commercial Bribery”. In Hong
Kong, we abide by the “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance” enforced by
the Independent Commission Against Corruption (ICAC).

To combat potential fraud and corruption, we have a whistleblowing
policy. If employees need to report improper conduct, we offer a
confidential reporting mechanism. Employees can confidentially report
misconduct to the Board, who will then formulate the method of
investigation, without worrying about any form of retaliation. We provide
a clear, dedicated channel for this purpose, and if possible, encourage
employees to report using their real names. The report must be written,
signed, sealed in an envelope, and marked “Absolutely Confidential”. It
should be sent directly to the Board or the designated email address.

During investigations, we ensure the independence of all investigators.
Personal interests must be declared before the investigation starts. If a
conflict of interest is discovered, the relevant person will be replaced
immediately. To avoid impacting the investigation, reporters should
keep their report, the nature of the concern, and the identities of those
involved, confidential. In some cases, due to the investigation’s nature,
the reporter’s identity may need to be disclosed. If this occurs, we will
do our best to inform the reporter in advance.

Preventing fraud and corruption not only needs an effective reporting
mechanism but also regular fraud risk assessments. According to our
policy, we will routinely conduct systematic fraud risk assessments and
promptly rectify any vulnerabilities identified by external auditors. This
proactive risk management strategy helps us identify and address
potential risks promptly, ensuring our business activities always meet
the highest ethical and regulatory standards.
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We place great emphasis on education and training to foster a culture
of integrity. We share practical guides, training materials, and data sets
published by the ICAC with our employees and the Board. We have
formulated policies following ICAC’s guidelines, including anti-fraud,
conflict of interest, and anti-corruption policies, and regularly
communicate them to employees and directors. We believe these
efforts can strengthen our culture of integrity and ensure our employees
and board members understand and comply with these important
principles. As of the fiscal year ending 31 December 2023, our Group
has provided internal training on anti-corruption materials for employees.
Participants included 100% of senior management, 27% of middle-level
employees, 13% of supervisory staff, and 13% of general staff. During
the Year, we furnished our Board members and employees with the
latest information of anti-corruption related laws and regulations. This
ensures they are well-informed and ready to uphold the highest
standards of business integrity. We’'re committed to continuing this
practice moving forward.

During the year, the Group did not have any legal cases that were
closed in relation to corrupt activities against the Group or its
employees.

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

The Group understands the significance of the marine ecological
environment to the global ecological balance and takes our
responsibility to it seriously. As a global operator, we ensure our
business activities do not negatively impact the marine ecological
environment. Hence, environmental protection is integral to our daily
operations, business strategy, and corporate culture.

In terms of compliance, the Group strictly adheres to all environmental
protection laws and regulations. This includes the “Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Marine
Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China”, and
the “Implementation Plan of the Pearl River Delta, Yangtze River Delta,
Bohai Rim (Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei) Watership Emission Control Area”. We
not only ensure our compliance but also expect our partners and
suppliers to do the same.

Our corporate culture also promotes environmental consciousness. We
encourage employees and suppliers to reduce environmental impact,
comply with our environmental policies, and contribute to marine
environment protection. We believe that collective efforts are key to
effective marine environment protection and minimal business impact
on the marine ecological environment.
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We are also dedicated to raising environmental awareness among
employees and suppliers. These efforts aim to improve our operations
and decrease our impact on the marine ecological environment.

The Group consistently implements energy-saving, emission reduction,
and recycling measures. We assess and manage environmental
performance in various aspects, aiming to enhance environmental
awareness within the Group, set an industry example, and lead the
shipping industry towards environmental protection.

We firmly believe that only through collective efforts can we achieve our
environmental protection goals and contribute to protecting the marine
ecological environment. Throughout the year, we have not been aware
of any violations of relevant laws and regulations by any company or
employee within the Group that caused a significant impact.

Milestone in achieving environmental targets by 2030

In 2023, the Group’s gas oil consumption surged by 67% compared to
the previous year, resulting in a significant increase in overall
greenhouse gas emissions. This was primarily due to the Group’s shift
part of its routes from outsourcing to third-party shipping companies to
self-transporting their freight and the acquisition of a new vessel in the
latter half of 2022. The Group believes that integrating resources and
exploring low-carbon energy sources can strike a balance between
business development and the need to reduce carbon emissions.
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2021 2022 2023 2030 F A

GHG Emissions (tCO,e) BERIEEEN 20,588.98 23,651.21 36,599.13 <19,559.53
(M—ELixE =

Electricity Consumption (KWh) & 77587 (T ELE) 193,424.90 186,344.92 189,855.00 < 183,753.66

Gas Oil Consumption (tonnes) 357 5 #E (14) 5,840.52' 6,715.55 11,243.80 < 5,548.50

Paper Consumption (tonnes) 4 3& J& 3% (18) 3.13 3.75 2.01 <2.97

! The values of all 3 types of Air Emissions in year 2021 are rectified due to the rectified
value for Gas Oil Consumption in year 2021.
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Air Emissions

As a marine trade and freight service provider, we recognize the
environmental impact of our business activities, particularly our fleet's
fuel consumption. Committed to corporate social responsibility and a
sustainable future, we actively seek ways to lessen our environmental
impact.

We’ve taken several measures to achieve this goal:

o We cooperate with vessel operators to minimize gas and fuel
system usage, only activating them when necessary. This
effectively reduces fuel consumption and emissions.

° We’ve developed and implemented fuel-saving measures that our
management team monitors daily.

o We carefully choose the shortest shipping routes and optimize
fleet operations to increase vessel utilization and reduce carbon
emissions per transport.

o We regularly maintain and clean our vessels to enhance engine
performance.

These practices not only boost our operational efficiency but also cut
down on fuel costs and emissions. We firmly believe that continuous
effort and innovation are key to reducing our carbon footprint and
preserving the environment.

Our commitment to these measures shows our deep dedication to
environmental protection. We will continue to explore new methods and
technologies to improve our environmental performance. We are
confident that our collective efforts can help us meet our environmental
goals and protect our shared home — the earth.
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RE #HE8RERKRE

This year, our air emissions data are as follows: REE - HPNEIEREEAT ¢

Air Emissions Unit 20212 20222 20232
EE R B By

Total NO,_ Emissions tonnes 484.86 421.69 811.80
RE/‘WEMBEE iz

Total SO, Emissions tonnes 671.56 584.05 1,124.38
)u,%“im%#ﬁyfi@i T8

Total PM Emissions tonnes 719 6.25 12.03
BN YBER R E i3

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions and Energy BERE ((BERBE]) kR g
Conservation

Freight logistics, while crucial to supply chains worldwide, contributes ~EEV)RH@AH 2 HREEREZHEEZ - BH 2 A

significantly to global GHG emissions. This necessitates regulatory
authorities and the industry to actively reduce carbon emissions, a
critical step in mitigating global climate change.

Committed to environmental preservation, the Group aims to reduce
fuel consumption and minimize the negative impact of our operations.
We have set specific carbon reduction targets: a 5% decrease in total
GHG emissions and a 5% reduction in electricity and gas oil
consumption by 2030, compared to 2021.

To achieve these goals, we have implemented several measures:

—  Our vessels undergo routine inspections and maintenance in
accordance with regional laws and regulations.

—  We have installed energy-saving equipment and lighting in our
offices. These are only used when necessary and are promptly
turned off after use. Our office utilizes divided lighting areas, and
we encourage employees to turn off their personal lights when
away.

— We urge employees to switch off unnecessary electrical
appliances.

2 The amount of NOx, SOx and PM emissions in 2021 and 2022 are restated because
of the modification of methodology applied for a fair comparison with the emissions
in 2023.

s Air emissions were calculated based on “EMEP/EEA air pollutant emission inventory
guidebook 2019 — Update Dec. 2021” issued by European Environmental Agency.
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The data for fuel consumption and greenhouse gas emissions for 2023
are based on the fuel purchased for our owned and leased ships, and
office operations. The primary source of emissions is gasoline
consumption by vessels.

During the year ending 31 December 2023, we consumed a total of
11,248.80 tons of gas oil and 189,855.00 kWh electricity. This
represents a 67.43% increase in gas oil consumption from the previous
year, primarily due to a change in our operational model of some routes.
We shifted from entrusting third-party shipping companies to
transporting goods using our own fleet.

The following tables show our GHG emissions and energy consumption:

Total Greenhouse
Gas Emissions

mE RS R

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 £

RE dekEREE

2023 F MR EDE R LB ER B MBI ER K
MEBEREEEMULRRAEEEMBENME -
PR E 2 RIREE M A UREFE ©

HE2023F12A31BIEFEE B EHEE
11,243.80 W8 /5 M 52 189,855.00 T ELEF & /1 » |/
HES®R F—FE 8 IN67.43% £ 22 AER M
HomGENEEENEEE L - BMRETEFE=F
WiE AR ERFER A BEMBREXREY -

TRETHRMAEERBH R NFEELRER :

99.70%

o Total Scope 1 Emissions
BHENHREE

Total Scope 2 Emissions
#HE BB E

Total Scope 3 Emissions
HESFHEE
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RE #HE8RERKRE

GHG Emissions* Unit 2021 2022 2023
BE R B
Total Scope 1 Emissions® tCO,e 20,449.81° 23,613.62 36,489.50
EHE B ES MR —EiRE 8
Total Scope 2 Emissions’ tCOe 12417 119.59 99.99
HE2HFHEET WE—SEALIRE S
Total Scope 2 Emissions/Employee tCO,e/employee 0.63 0.59 0.55
#E2BNEE EE W_S{tiREE B8
Total Scope 3 Emissions® tCOe 15.00 18.00 9.64
HESHFHESS WE—SEALIRE 8
Total GHG Emissions tCO.e 20,588.98° 23,651.21 36,599.13
BERBHEREE WMo-SmEE
Total GHG Emissions/Employee tCO,e/employee 103.98'° 116.51 201.09

BERRHNEE EE

W —E(tREE ER

4 GHG emissions data is presented in carbon dioxide equivalent and was based on 4

the information of the “GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard”

issued by the World Resources Institute and the World Business Council for

Sustainable Development, the “Government emission conversion factors for

greenhouse gas company reporting” issued by the Department for Environment,
Food & Rural Affairs in the UK, the “Guidelines to Account for and Report on

Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or

Institutional Purposes)” issued by the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department

(EMSD) and the Environmental Protection Department (EPD) in Hong Kong and “How

to Prepare an ESG Report, Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”

issued by the SEHK.

5 Scope 1 refers to direct emissions of combustion of gas oil by ships.

6 The value for Total Scope 1 Emissions in year 2021 are rectified due to the rectified 6

value of Gas Oil Consumption in year 2021.

7 Scope 2 refers to indirect emissions from purchased electricity. 7

8 Scope 3 refers to indirect emissions from paper waste disposed at landfills in Hong 8
Kong.

o The value for Total GHG Emissions in year 2021 are rectified due to the rectified o

value for Total Scope 1 Emissions in year 2021.

10 The value for Total GHG Emissions/Employee in year 2021 are rectified due to the 10

rectified value for Total Scope 1 Emissions in year 2021.

BEREHRBBEA—ELLMEERT  LREERER
ft 7t AT &2 World Business Council for Sustainable
Development (tt R A HERE THESEE) TIHHCEER
BREETE  CESFEBEIZAE) - & Department
for Environment, Food & Rural Affairs GR35 & & & 2 75 #6)
%% 71 B) Government emission conversion factors for
greenhouse gas company reporting ((32 15 R & 36 3] © KT
BERBHNREES)) BERKEIRERRRBRH
RCEBEREY (A% FEXAAHAR) EEREHER
KO BR 804 B R TRE 38 51 ) KB 32 T & A4 FII B B9 (o ] 2E 4
RE - HERERRS MR- REBBESIEZER
DR ERER -
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2021 FHE B ENEBECELEE - #72021
FRERBHNBE BRENBECELEREE -



36

EVER HARVEST GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED 7k % £ Bl #2 Ji % B 2 W)
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 %

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND RIE -HEBRERBRSE
GOVERNANCE REPORT
Energy Consumption Unit 2021 2022 2023
iz By
Gas Oil Consumption tonnes 5,840.52" 6,715.55 11,243.80
VU R s
kWh N/A N/A  133,215,149.80

TR A3 A NEMA
Electricity Consumption kWh 193,424.90 186,344.92 189,855.00
B ERE TR B
Total Energy Consumption kWh N/A N/A  1838,405,004.80
EREREE TR A3 A TEMA
Electricity Consumption/Employee kWh/employee 976.89 917.96 1,043.16
ENEKEEE TRKE RE
Total Energy Consumption/Employee kWh/employee N/A N/A 732,994.583
EREREE TEE BB A3 A TEMA
Waste Management and Reduction EEE Y E B K R EE

The Group prioritizes waste management and reduction. We are
committed to minimizing waste from our business operations through
waste classification and material recycling. Recognizing the importance
of waste reduction at the source, we have implemented numerous
waste management strategies in our office.

Moreover, we aim to reduce paper consumption by 5% by 2030
compared to 2021. To achieve this, we are reducing paper use through
electronic communication methods, such as email, and ensuring a
minimum of 90% of our employees have email access. We also opt for
office paper with at least 50% recycled content, encourage employees
to print only when necessary, and remind them to recycle single-sided
printed paper and stationery.

Apart from these resource management strategies, the Group does not
produce a significant amount of harmful waste or discharge it into water
sources or land. As such, we have not collected data on hazardous
waste. Our non-hazardous waste primarily consists of consumed
materials like paper and toner.

" The value for Gas Oil Consumption in year 2021 are rectified — this rectified value
refers to the pure gas oil consumption of the Group’s fleet operations.
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The following table shows the figures of material consumption in our
business operations:

RE #HE8RERKRE

TRETEMERFLEN T BHRAHF

Material Consumption Unit 2021 2022 2023
SHFEYIR By

Paper Consumption tonnes 18 S5 2.01
R L7

Toner Consumption pieces 27.47 2717 18.12
I EFEE 1l

Natural Resources and Environment ARERRRE

As a shipping supplier, we recognize that while we benefit from marine
environments and resources, we also have a responsibility to protect
and use these natural elements sustainably. To uphold this
responsibility, we’ve established a variety of environmental protection
strategies and measures, making every effort to safeguard valuable
marine resources and minimize our business’s negative impact on the
environment.

We understand our operations’ potential environmental impact and
remain committed to preventing oil spill accidents and protecting
aquatic life. Furthermore, we promote and implement sustainable
operational models to contribute to a globally sustainable value chain.
By fostering innovative environmental measures, we encourage
sustainable economic development and have applied relevant policies
and procedures in our fleet operations.

In terms of energy and resource usage, we persistently aim to follow
industry best practices, adhere to relevant regulations, and have set
clear, measurable goals for health, safety, protection, and environmental
impact. We optimize energy and raw material use, striving to minimize
waste and emissions. To ensure these policies are effectively
implemented, we’ve established a dedicated monitoring team to
regularly review and evaluate performance. We inform our employees
about the company’s environmental policies and encourage them to
adopt these practices in their daily work. Through these efforts, we’ve
minimized our business operations’ environmental impact, achieving
sustainable development while protecting the environment.

tERMEHRER  RMAZHD  RAEXENEF
RENERORAR  TEEEAATRFEND NRER
ERZEFAATR - R TERTE—EE  BABE
TERRERERBNER 2 HREEENEF
BR SAREHESBRFANEBEHRENEER

2 .
=

B TREEHRENEEZE XN LR
S MREKEEY © 1o ROVESFE A 15

BEERS RERAIKENEERELER -
BBERAFOIREEE RSB HELEE
& WA IR M BGE & R AR BUR AR -

ERERERERERTH BARSUATESREER
RBER - BTHEZAR  UREE 22 KER
RREFZEVNTHAEENGENRE - RFB(LRER
MEMBEER - BIRMAREMPER - BRERE
LYREHNEAREE  RAXNLTEMNEEE
5 EREESMAAEER - RASHETARKR
BERE - USBHfERS TIETRRBZEME -
BRELEN RABEBELHRENTE
RIE ERERFOARERITHEER -

1%

37



38

EVER HARVEST GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED 7k % £ Bl #2 Ji % B 2 W)

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

Climate Change

As a responsible enterprise, the Group deeply understands and
attaches importance to managing climate risks. We are fully aware of
the impacts of global climate change, which may significantly affect our
business operations, covering categories such as supply chain
management, logistics, and operating costs. Therefore, we have
incorporated climate risks into our risk management strategy to ensure
that we have the ability to effectively identify, assess, and manage these
risks.

The financial impacts that climate change may bring mainly come from
two categories: physical risks and transition risks.

Risk/Opportunity Driver
Rk HBESEER

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 %

i
e
o
»
¥
m};
B
L
Ih

RIRE 1L

ER—FREEENGEE  AEERABRISBHE
BRIERR BMAXSEIHZNZHRRIEE LR
E N HBRMREHEREEE MRREZENX
AEZHRINEHELBNEATE - Bt - RIS
SRR R B A LB B IR SRR - DAREARERPI A B
BAER - AR EEZERRE

ﬁﬂ%ﬁkTéE’%Xﬂ\]Eﬁ%%%I%X@ﬁﬁi FHEE
o B BE R @B o

Potential financial impact

BEMBLE

Physical Risk Type

ERRRER
Extreme weather events Affect the safety of shipping routes
TR i R R and vessels

Transition risk type
BREEER

Policy and legal

R MR

Market preference & technology

M EF RBHX

TEMEEMAL R

Lead to damage to ports and
infrastructure, further increasing the
operational risks of the shipping
industry

HEORERE ﬁﬁiﬁﬁzﬁﬁﬁ“" i —
I INAE E M E R

Carbon levy on fuel/Carbon price
EPRBHEURR B, TR (B A%
Regulations of fuel efficiency and
emission to reduce industrial
emissions

BROM R R BERUR B AR T
i}

Increasing adoption of green fuel &
technology
HEINER AN AR B 00 R B

Overall operating costs increase

BEEE S AL N
Insurance costs increase

PRBR A A3 10

Increased expenditure
G-l
Increase in operating costs

B AR E N

Increased capital investment in green
fuel and technologies

xR R RNE AR EE



EVER HARVEST GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED 7% £ [ 5 )it 5 Fi 23 W)
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 3

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group has already identified risks that potentially impact our
business, including urgent physical risks, and has had prudent
discussions about measures for mitigating and resilience to transition
risks. We have been committed to enhancing our climate adaptation
capabilities, and actively looking for energy-saving technologies and
measures, and making it part of our long-term strategy. We firmly
believe that only through this continuous effort and innovation can
effectively reduce our carbon footprint and contribute to the protection
of the earth.

In addition to this, the Group understands that climate-related
transparency not only can help our investors and relevant stakeholders
to understand our climate risk management strategy more deeply.
Therefore, we are actively improving our climate-related disclosures to
provide more comprehensive, accurate, and timely information.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group pursues sustainable development of our community by
assessing and managing the social impact of our operations on the
marketplace and by supporting initiatives that create effective and
lasting benefits to communities in our operating boundaries.

The Group encourages staff to take part in community welfare and
voluntary work and our Directors actively maintain communication with
non-governmental organisations to understand community needs.
Through participating in corporate responsibility activities, public welfare
education in the community such as environmental protection,
conservation and other positive messages can be promoted.

As of 31 December 2023, the Group has donated a total of 100,500
Hong Kong dollars to support cultural and social services.

RE #HE8RERKRE

AEEDFAAREFERMNEBNRAR  BRER
ERRAK  WERERNEYERRRAEGET
FEM W - I EBROREF RPN RIZEELE
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HEmN—Ho - HMRE REBBFENE S
A - e BRI BB B - BIRE
BRIFEL AR -

Britz s ARBEHBRRIREEAEHENER
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EXE UHERRMEEMELEABERLE
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APPENDIX 1: HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE
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Pisk— : BEXTIRIR - HERER

Aspects Content Page Number/Remarks
EBm AR BB M

A Environmental ABRE

Aspect A1: Emissions

BEA: B

General Disclosure

—REE

Al1.1

A1.2

A1.3
Al.4
A1.5

A1.6

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

FHBERAEREERN  MKETnEEs  FERBEEEEYD

MEESH

@ HEXE:R

(o) BETFTHBOTAFTEAZENHEBEEZRROINEE -

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

i E A R AR BB -

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas

emissions and intensity.

B (BE) RpRAEAZ (HE2) AEREHNEREE -

Total hazardous waste produced and intensity.

MELEREREMEENEE -

Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity.

FELBEEZEMEERTE -

Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

M EIVVHERE B R R RENE L B REIA TR -

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are

handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken

to achieve them.

HEIERERBEEREMN R AP IR RREBER

RED|E L B IRPTERENE) P8R

A2 Use of Resources A2%&R{EH

General Disclosure

— R E

A2.1

A2.2

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and
other raw materials.

ERERER(BEEIR  KEEMERMED) AIBEK -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and
intensity.

RENESNEER SHEEREEEREE

Water consumption in total and intensity.

BFEKERTE -

P.30-37

P.33

P.34-35

p.36-37
p.36-37
P.31

P.31, P.33

p.31, 33-34, 36

p.36

Due to the nature of
business, water
consumption is not a
material issue to the
Group, and relevant
consumption figures are
not disclosed.
EREBME  KEEY
REEMSFLAEKR W
WEKEEEESET -
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Aspects Content Page Number/Remarks

B AES BB M

A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to P.31-33
achieve them.

HIMFTET LBV IR E A E B IR R AR E TG & BRI 28K -

A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for The Group has no
purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve problems in sourcing water
them. that is fit for purpose. The
AR EUE AR LA BEMEE - ARFTETZH KRz B Z  relevant information is not
N AEREL B ZFTIRIRA R - disclosed as the Group’s

business does not involve
any activity consuming
significant amount of
water.
2 & B SREGE A KR B3P
EREE - AR AREER
WS RFERRKENKR
MO R R AR B KL o
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products and per unit Due to the nature of

produced.
BNMATABEMHNEERBEESLGSE -

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources A3ERER XRER

General Disclosure

—RWE

A3.1

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.
WEBTAERERARERENERZENBE -

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment
and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.

B EBERHHRERARARERNEAZERERNEEFAY
ZBH1TH -

A4 Climate Change A4 R{Z&{t

General Disclosure

— R E

A4.1

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related
issues which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.
BRI NEH R ARG HBETAEEYENERRFEFREE
HBUR -

Description of the significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions
taken to manage them.
HAERRAIEGHBETAEEYENEARBGHEBEE  &E
H178) o

business, packaging
material used is not a
material issue to the
Group, and relevant figures
are not disclosed.
EREBME  FRABE
MEEAREEME I &=
X - SR AR BT -

pP.37

p.37

P.38-39

p.38-39
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Aspects Content Page Number/Remarks
fEm| AE B M

B Social B#&

B1 Employment B11{E{&

General Disclosure Information on: P.22-23

—RIHE (@ the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,

working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-

discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

EAFMNARE HBEREA TERE R TSKe 273

b~ RIBARIA KM H A58 AR &Y

@ BE: R
() BETFTHBOTAFEATENHEBEEIZRRANER -
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and P.24

geographical region.
ZIER - ERER  FRANRMEZSHNIEELE -

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical P.24
region.

RIS - FEAR MEBIDWERRKLE -

B2 Health and Safety B2@FEEZ 2
General Disclosure Information on: P.25
— R E @  the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.
BRRMZETIEREIMREEEREBENEEN

@ BE: R
() BETFTHBOTAFEAZENHEBEZEZZERROINER -
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past P.25

three years including the reporting year.
BE=F (BRERFRE)BFAITHHABKILE -

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. P.25
EITHBEATIEES -
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and P.25

how they are implemented and monitored.
IR P IRV B R R R L 25 A RBAMITRERF A -
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Aspects
EBm

Content
AR

Page Number/Remarks

HiR/ M

B3 Development and Training B33 & & &l

General Disclosure

—REE

B3.1

B3.2

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work. Description of training activities.
FRRTEEBITIIEBRE N MBI RENBR - il FIES -
The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
category.

RIERRESEFEIESNXIIEBET DL

The average training hours completed per employee by gender and
employee category.

BRI REEERIE D  BREETKX N FIRE -

B4 Labor Standards B4% T X8|

General Disclosure

— R E

B4.1

B4.2

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labor.

BRI IEE T kg bl TH) -

@ BX: k&

(o) ETHBTAGBERAZENHEBEZLRIINEL -

Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid

child and forced labor.

A% T AR BE 1B ) A 15 i DA B SR B T R 08 55 T

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when

discovered.

B RERBRARERE BB NARIA S -

B5 Supply Chain Management B5 {3 f& 8 & 12

General Disclosure
— B E
B5.1

B5.2

B5.3

B5.4

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
IR R B RIR Rt g AR BUR

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

By NHEREE -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and how they
are implemented and monitored.

Ml BB AHERNED mERTEAENNHEREE @ LA
NIRRT REERTE

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks
along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
HAEBABERNHEREGERGNRR R SRERAED - LAKRE
BMITRERTE -

Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable
products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

M EREHRERREESZ RAREREmERBNVED - LA RIEEH
HITRERTE-

P.26

p.26

P.26

p.27

p.27

p.27

p.27

p.28

p.27-28

p.27-28

p.27-28
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Page Number/Remarks
BB M

B6 Product Responsibility B6 ZE f = 1

General Disclosure Information on:

—REE (@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters

relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.

BRMRHEMMBRBHNRERELZE  BE REKMBEEUR

HROITIER

@ BX:

b) BFHETABEATZENRBZEZLRARLNER -

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for

safety and health reasons.

EENCEXERERTRL2REREHMADKN B

B6.1

B6.2 Number of products and service-related complaints received and how
they are dealt with.

BEREENERMREORFEBEURES X -

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.

Fa it B A RARIE AR EE B R B -

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
B ST @R K EmEWGR R

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and
how they are implemented and monitored.

EUEBEEERRERLEBEE - ARAAERTRESRT A -

B6.3

B6.4

B6.5

B7 Anti-corruption B7 R &5
General Disclosure Information on:
— B E @  the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
ERP LR - 9K - BEFROSRER -
@ BX: &k
(b)) BETHBOTAGTEAZENHEBEZEZRROINEER -

p.28

Due to the nature of
business, packaging
material used is not a
material issue to the
Group, and relevant figures
are not disclosed.
EREBINE - TR
MBS AREEmME W E
X - R FR AR BT o
P.28

p.28

p.28

p.28

P.29-30



EVER HARVEST GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED 7% £ [ 5 )it 5 Fi 23 W)
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 3

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND RIE HEKER

GOVERNANCE REPORT

45

wE

Aspects Content Page Number/Remarks
BE AES BB M
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought P.30
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RERBAHBTASIERERHIEEANE SHARENH
B RFREER -
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, P.29
and how they are implemented and monitored.
TP EE e R BRI - A RBBRIT REER 5% -
B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff. P.30
HitmEERE TIRENRESFHF
B8 Community Investment B8#tEiRX¥E
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the P.39
—RIEE communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities
take into consideration the communities’ interests.
AN E2ERTHREEMEHEZTENRREAEZRZHGE
AT R I BB o
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. P.39
HEIER#EE
B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. pP.39

EREIBBEMBHHAER
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors
Mr. Lau Yu Leung

Aged 71, our founder, was appointed as chairman and executive
Director on 15 October 2015, and is a member of the nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. Lau is also an independent non-
executive director of Redco Healthy Living Company Limited (Stock
Code: 2370). Mr. Lau has over 40 years of experience in the shipping
industry. Mr. Lau is primarily responsible for overall strategic planning,
development, decision making on important matters, important
investment strategies and management of senior executives of the
Group. Mr. Lau is currently serving as a director of Ever Harvest
Investments Limited (“Ever Harvest (BVI)”), Ever Harvest International
Holdings Limited (“EHIHL”), Ever Harvest, Xiamen Harvest Shipping
Limited (“Xiamen Harvest”), Greater China Shipping Limited (“Greater
China”), Millions Good Limited, Eternity Hong Kong Investment Limited
(“Eternity”) and Ever Harvest International Logistics (Shenzhen) Ltd.
(“EHIL"), as well as the general manager of EHIL, Shenzhen Ever
Harvest Logistics Co., Ltd. (“SEHL”) and Shenzhen Forever Harvest
Logistics Ltd. (“SFHL”).

Mr. Lau also serves in various organisations and associations in Hong
Kong and the PRC. Mr. Lau serves as a member of the National
Committee of the 13th Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (B A R BUA 1% 8 &%), a committee member of the 9th,
10th and 11th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference in the
Fujian Province, the PRC (FBIARBUAH B E R EEEZE®)
(“Fujian CPPCC”), and a member of the Standing Committee of the
11th Fujian CPPCC. In 2008, Mr. Lau was appointed as the permanent
honorary president of The Fukienese Association Limited (& & 18 & &
e FR A A In 2009, Mr. Lau was appointed as the permanent
honorary president of Hong Kong Quanzhou Clans United Association
(BB RMT AL 4EE). In 2011, Mr. Lau was appointed as the
permanent honorary president of Hong Kong Quanzhou Associations
Limited (&8 R M B4 & AR 2 A]). In 2013, Mr. Lau was appointed
as the vice-president of Association of Hong Kong Quanzhou Charity
Promotion Limited (& & RN & =R # 8L < H R Q7)) and the vice-
chairman of Hong Kong Federation of Fujian Associations Limited (& /&
BEMEBEAR QAT In 2014, Mr. Lau was appointed as the
president of Hong Kong CPPCC of Fujian Association Limited (82 %
BEREIHBE EBEE AR AR Mr. Lau received from the government
of Hong Kong a medal of honour in 2011. In 2016, Mr. Lan was
awarded the title of outstanding builders of non-public sector of the
economy of Fujian Province by the People’s Government of Fujian
Province.

Mr. Lau is the spouse of Madam Tong Hung Sum and father of Mr. Lau
Tak Fung Wallace and Mr. Lau Tak Kee Henry.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 %
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Mr. Lau Tak Fung Wallace

Aged 47, joined the Group in 2002, was appointed as chief executive
officer and executive Director on 3 March 2016 and is a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Lau is primarily
responsible for formulating and implementing the Group’s corporate
strategies and business development strategies, overseeing the
Group’s overall business development and implementing operation
plans and participating in the day-to-day management of the Group’s
business operations, and overseeing investment activities and
transactions. Mr. Lau is currently serving as a director of EHIHL, Ever
Harvest, Xiamen Harvest, Greater China, Eternity, EHIL and SEHL as
well as a supervisor of SFHL.

Mr. Lau is @ member of the standing committee of the 13th Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference in the Guangxi Zhuang
Autonomous Region, the PRC (B A RBUA SR ERALZESR
RZET).

Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration from the
California State Polytechnic University, Pomona. Mr. Lau is the son of
Mr. Lau Yu Leung and Madam Tong Hung Sum and the brother of Mr.
Lau Tak Kee Henry.

Mr. Lau Tak Kee Henry

Aged 486, joined the Group in 2008, was appointed as an executive
Director on 3 March 2016. Mr. Lau is primarily responsible for
formulating and implementing the Group’s corporate strategies and
sales and marketing strategies, overseeing the Group’s overall business
development and implementing operation plans and participating in the
day-to-day management of the Group’s business operations, and
overseeing investment activities and transactions. Mr. Lau is also
responsible for the freight forwarding and I.T. support services of the
Group. Mr. Lau is currently serving as a director of EHIHL, Ever Harvest,
Xiamen Harvest, Greater China, Eternity, EHIL and SFHL.

Mr. Lau is a committee member of the 13th Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference in the Xiamen Municipality, the PRC (/1 & A
RECAHEEZEIITZEE). Mr. Lau has been a member of the
Hong Kong CPPCC Youth Association Limited (FB K E T e R
R A A)) since May 2014,

Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration from the
University of Southern California. Mr. Lau is the son of Mr. Lau Yu
Leung and Madam Tong Hung Sum and the brother of Mr. Lau Tak
Fung Wallace.
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Non-executive Director
Madam Tong Hung Sum

Aged 71, joined the Group in 2002, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 3 March 2016. Madam Tong is primarily responsible for
advising on overall strategic planning of the Group but not participating
in the day-to-day management of the Group’s business operation.
Madam Tong is currently serving as a director of EHIHL, Ever Harvest,
Xiamen Harvest, Greater China, Millions Good Limited and Eternity.
Madam Tong is also currently serving as a supervisor of EHIL and
SEHL.

Madam Tong is the spouse of Mr. Lau Yu Leung and the mother of Mr.
Lau Tak Fung Wallace and Mr. Lau Tak Kee Henry.

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lo Wan Sing Vincent

Aged 76, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
10 June 2016, and is the chairman of nomination committee of the
Company and a member of the remuneration committee and audit
committee of the Company.

Mr. Lo has more than 30 years of experience in the field of jewellery and
property investment. Mr. Lo is currently an independent non-executive
director of Xinyi Solar Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 968), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lo is a member of the National Committee of the 10th, 11th and
12th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (7 Bl A R I
YA B @) . Mr. Lo was awarded Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) and
Silver Bauhinia Star (SBS) by the government of Hong Kong in July
2011 and July 2017 respectively.
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Mr. Lam Lo

Aged 52, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
10 June 2016, and is the chairman of remuneration committee of the
Company and a member of the nomination committee and audit
committee of the Company.

Mr. Lam is executive director of South Asia Textiles (Holding) Limited
and has over 20 years of experience in the field of knitwear, garment,
knitting machinery and property development business. Mr. Lam is a
standing committee member of the Chinese General Chamber of
Commerce, Hong Kong; a general committee member of the Chinese
Manufacturers’ Association Hong Kong; and a member of the National
Committee of the 14th of the CPPCC.

Mr. Lee Ka Lun

Aged 68, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
10 June 2016, and is the chairman of audit committee of the Company.

Mr. Lee has over 20 years of experience in banking and auditing. He
had been the Regional Deputy Chief Executive of Lloyds TSB Bank plc
and Regional Director — Finance and Operation of Lloyds TSB’s
operations in Asia for over 15 years and has extensive experience in
corporate banking, private banking, treasury, operations, IT
developments and general management. Mr. Lee is also an
independent non-executive director of Chow Sang Sang Holdings
International Limited (Stock Code: 116) and Yuexiu Property Company
Limited (Stock Code: 123), all of which are listed companies in Hong
Kong. Mr. Lee was also an independent non-executive director of
Chong Hing Bank Limited, a company previously listed in Hong Kong,
from 11 July 1994 to 30 September 2021. After the delisting of Chong
Hing Bank on 30 September 2021, Mr. Lee remains an independent
non-executive director of Chong Hing Bank Limited.

Mr. Lee is a fellow member of The Chartered Association of Certified
Accountants (now known as “Association of Chartered Certified
Accounts”) since 1985.
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Mr. Kam, Eddie Shing Cheuk

Aged 49, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
1 November 2016, and is a member of the audit committee of the
Company.

Mr. Kam has over 25 years of experience in auditing, professional
accounting, financial management and business administration. Mr.
Kam worked for several Hong Kong listed companies of various
industries and served senior roles in financial management and
secretarial functions. Mr. Kam is currently an executive director and the
chief executive officer of Get Nice Holdings Limited (stock code: 64); a
non-executive director of Pangaea Connectivity Technology Limited
(Stock Code: 1473); and an independent non-executive director of
Genes Tech Group Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 8257) and
Citychamp Watch & Jewellery Group Limited (stock code: 256).

Mr. Kam was appointed as a director of the board of directors of the
6th Term Guangzhou Overseas Friendship Association Committee in
March 2013, a committee member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference Shanghai Committee (Baoshan District) in
December 2016 and a director of the board of directors of the 7th Term
Shenzhen Overseas Friendship Association Committee in 2017.

Mr. Kam holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Accountancy and a Master’s
Degree in Corporate Governance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Mr. Kam is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a member of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, an associate member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and an associate member of
The Chartered Governance Institute.
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Senior Management
Ms. Tse Yin Wan

Aged 67, joined the Group in 1996, is the senior deputy general
manager of our Company and is mainly responsible for internal control
and administrative matters of operating subsidiaries, including
overseeing project workflow and liaison with shipping companies. Ms.
Tse has more than 35 years of experience in the shipping industry. Prior
to joining the Group, Ms. Tse worked at Compagnie Maritime
D’Affretement (Asia) Limited as a China division manager, responsible
for shipping business in China.

Mr. Yu Ho Ming

Aged 46, joined the Group in 2020, Mr. Yu has been appointed as the
company secretary, the financial controller and the authorised
representative with effect from 6 July 2020. Mr. Yu has over 18 years of
experience in auditing, advisory accounting and financial management.
Mr. Yu is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
He obtained his honours diploma in accounting from Hong Kong Shue
Yan College (currently known as Hong Kong Shue Yan University) and
he was awarded a Master of Finance from Curtin University.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Adapting and adhering to recognised standards of corporate
governance principles and practices has always been one of the top
priorities of the Company. The Board believes that good corporate
governance is one of the areas that lead to the success of the Company
and in balancing the interests of shareholders, customers and
employees, and the Board is devoted to ongoing enhancements of the
efficiency and effectiveness of such principles and practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company had duly
complied with the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules.

The Company will continue to review its corporate governance practices
in order to enhance its corporate governance standard, to comply with
the increasingly tightened regulatory requirements and to meet the
rising expectations of the shareholders and investors.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”) as its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions of the Directors. All Directors have confirmed that, following
specific enquiry made by the Company, they complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the period from 1
January 2023 to the date of Board meeting approving the annual results
announcements for the year ended 31 December 2023.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

The Board currently comprises eight Directors, of which three are
executive Directors, one is non-executive Director and four are
independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Lau Yu Leung is the chairman
and Mr. Lau Tak Fung Wallace is the chief executive officer of the
Company. The roles of the chairman and chief executive officer are
separate and are exercised by different individuals. The composition of
the Board and the biographical details of each Director are set out in
the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 46 to 51.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there had been no change
in the composition of the Board.
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Board discusses the overall strategy as well as the operational and
financial performance of the Company. Other Board meetings will be
held when necessary. Such Board meetings involve the active
participation, either in person or through other electronic means of
communication, of a majority of Directors. The table below sets out the
attendance of all members of the Board at the meetings held during the
year ended 31 December 2023:

TEERREE

EE%%E

EE 3= Eﬁ RIEEREARE «%&Eﬁ%i\%
HeomAH %;.E; TEME® ZEES
Q@;%%K*E TEERENBAE 11ﬂea%uﬂ7?
ABEHRBE TRFIEETSE2EKEREE
2023F 12 A31 B IEFE R 23 1 F 428k

Number of Meetings Attended/Held

HE BITEBRE
Mr. Lau Yu Leung PS4 4/4
Mr. Lau Tak Fung Wallace Bkt 4/4
Mr. Lau Tak Kee Henry RmE L E 4/4
Madam Tong Hung Sum BEBRHRR T 2/4
Mr. Lo Wan Sing Vincent ERBEAE 4/4
Mr. Lam Lo R & 2/4
Mr. Lee Ka Lun FREAEE 4/4
Mr. Kam, Eddie Shing Cheuk HAEELEE 4/4
In addition to attending Board or Board committee’s meetings, in order M FEZSHEFSEZE S HIN 0 BLEER
to make timely decision and implement the Group’s policies and JREI Y EHITARTNEE LB - E=E D
practice effectively, the Board also adopts written resolutions signed by HRMABEZTHZENZERZE  THERABFE

all Directors to make decision on corporate affairs from time to time.

There are four independent non-executive Directors who represent one
half of the Board, among which Mr. Lee Ka Lun and Mr. Kam, Eddie
Shing Cheuk have appropriate professional qualifications as required by
the Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Appropriate notices were given to all Directors in advance for attending
regular and other Board meetings. Meeting agenda and other relevant
information were provided to the Directors in advance of Board
meetings. All Directors were consulted to include additional matters in
the agenda for Board meetings.

Directors had access to the advice and services of the company
secretary with a view to ensuring that Board procedures, and all
applicable rules and regulations, were followed.

Both the draft and final versions of the minutes were sent to all Directors
for their comment and records. Minutes of Board meetings were kept
by the company secretary and such minutes were open for inspection
at any reasonable time on reasonable prior notice by any Director.
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GENERAL MEETINGS

All Directors attended the annual general meeting of the Company on
25 May 2023.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and managing the
Company’s affairs, including the responsibilities for the adoption of
long-term strategies and appointing and supervising senior
management to ensure that the operation of the Group is conducted in
accordance with the objective of the Group.

The Board is also responsible for determining the Company’s corporate
governance policies which include: (i) development and review of the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance; (ii) review
and monitoring of the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management; (iii) review and monitoring of the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements; (iv) review and monitoring of the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and (v) review of the Company’s disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for guiding and
monitoring the Company in discharging its duties, certain responsibilities
are delegated to various Board committees which have been
established by the Board to deal with different aspects of the
Company’s affairs. Unless otherwise specified in their respective written
terms of reference as approved by the Board, these Board committees
are governed by the Company’s articles of association as well as the
Board’s policies and practices (in so far as the same are not in conflict
with the provisions contained in the articles of association). With the
composition of members of the nomination committee, remuneration
committee and audit committee, the independent non-executive
Directors will be able to effectively devote their time to perform the
duties required by the respective Board committees.
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The Board has also delegated the responsibility of implementing its
strategies and the day-to-day operation to the management of the
Company under the leadership of the executive Directors. Clear
guidance has been made as to the matters that should be reserved to
the Board for its decision which include matters on, inter alia, capital,
finance and financial reporting, internal controls, communication with
shareholders, Board membership, delegation of authority and corporate
governance. The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the
preparation of the financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group. The financial statements set out on
pages 91 to 175 were prepared on the basis set out in Note 2 to the
financial statements. Financial results of the Group are announced in a
timely manner in accordance with statutory and/or regulatory
requirements. The declaration of reporting responsibility issued by the
external auditors of the Company on the Company’s financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 82
to 90.

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective internal
control system in order to safeguard the interests of the shareholders
and the assets of the Company against unauthorised use or disposition,
ensuring maintenance of proper books and records for the provision of
reliable financial information, and ensuring compliance with the relevant
rules and regulations.

The Company complied with Rules 3.10(1), (2) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules during the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of
this report. Except as disclosed in the section “Profile of Directors and
Senior Management” above, there is no financial, business, family or
other material or relevant relationship among members of the Board.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent in accordance with the guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director receives relevant guideline materials and
attends a training regarding the duties and responsibilities of being a
Director, the relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Directors
and the duty of disclosure of interest of the Group. Continuing briefings
and professional development for Directors will be arranged whenever
appropriate.

The Directors attended external training and/or seminars and have read
materials covering topics such as business and performance of the
Company and accounting issues.

During the year 2023, all Directors had participated in continuous
professional development in the following manner:
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EIESE
Mr. Lau Yu Leung PS4 A
Mr. Lau Tak Fung Wallace Dkt A
Mr. Lau Tak Kee Henry DmE L E A
Madam Tong Hung Sum EBRHRR T A
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Mr. Lam Lo OB S A
Mr. Lee Ka Lun EREAEE A
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B: reading materials in relation to regulatory update
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

All non-executive Directors entered into letters of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years, subject to re-election. For further
details, please refer to the Directors’ Report on page 70 of this report.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the
“Article of Association”), at each annual general meeting, one third of
the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation.
However, if the number of Directors is not a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one third shall be the retiring
Directors. The Directors who shall retire in each year will be those who
have been the longest in the office since their last re-election or
appointment, but as for persons who became or were last re-elected as
Directors on the same day, the retiring Directors will (unless they
otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by lot. Such retiring
Directors may, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
annual general meeting. All Directors appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of
shareholders after their appointment and be subject to re-election at
such meeting and all Directors appointed by the Board as an addition
to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee on 10 June 2016
with written terms of reference in compliance with Code Provision B.3.1
of the CG Code. Its terms of reference are available on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the nomination committee are to make
recommendations to the Board regarding candidates to fill vacancies of
our Board and/or in senior management. The nomination committee
currently consists of three Directors, being Mr. Lo Wan Sing Vincent,
Mr. Lam Lo and Mr. Lau Yu Leung, with Mr. Lo Wan Sing Vincent
acting as the chairman of the nomination committee. Mr. Lo Wan Sing
Vincent and Mr. Lam Lo are independent non-executive Directors, while
Mr. Lau Yu Leung is an executive Director.
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During the year 2023, one meeting of the nomination committee was
held to, amongst others, review the structure of the Board and
recommend to the Board for reappointment of all Directors at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. The nomination committee also
determined the criteria of its board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”). The attendance records of each committee members are as
follows:

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 %

TRESRESE

R2023FE - REREBEBRIT—Rgx (A
TREB)RIEFERE UYRREERRAFX
EENMZRI2REZTNESTSRIES - REBXER
ENEEFHEEFEZNERR(EFEZ LI
R 2 £ - RRBEREZHFELEWT

Number of Meetings Attended/Held

HE BITEEHE
Mr. Lau Yu Leung REE KL 1/1
Mr. Lo Wan Sing Vincent ERBAE 1/1
Mr. Lam Lo MOR S £ 1/1

When identifying suitable candidates for directorship, the nomination
committee will carry out the selection process by making reference to
the skills, experience, education background, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed candidates,
and also the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations required for the positions. All candidates
must be able to meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and 3.09
of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed as an
independent non-executive Director should also meet the independence
criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Qualified candidates will
then be recommended to the Board for approval.
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To enhance the quality of the performance of the Board and to achieve
diversity on the Board, the Board adopted on 10 June 2016 its Board
Diversity Policy, and amended such policy on 31 December 2018
pursuant to which (i) all Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against appropriate
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board; and
(i) selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
background and ethnicity, in addition to educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. If it
involves the appointment of an independent non-executive director of
the Board, the nomination committee shall also consider the
perspectives, skills and experience that the person can bring to the
Board, and how the person would contribute to the diversity of the
Board. The Company shall take into account its own business model
and specific needs, and disclose the rationale for the factors it uses for
this purpose. The ultimate decision shall be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. For the
purpose of implementation of the Board Diversity Policy, the following
measurable objectives were adopted:

(1) at least one-third of the members of the Board shall be
independent non-executive directors;

(2) at least one of the members of the Board shall have obtained
accounting or other professional qualifications;

(3) at least 70% of the members of the Board shall have more than
ten years of experience in the industry he/she is specialised in;

(4)  at least two of the members of the Board shall have shipping-
related work experience; and

(5) at least one of the members of the Board shall be female
members to ensure appropriate balance of gender diversity.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board has fulfilled the
measurable objectives of the Board Diversity Policy.

The Company is also committed to a work environment that is both
diverse and inclusive, where all colleagues feel respected and
empowered to bring their authentic selves to work every day. Similar
considerations are applied when recruiting and selecting senior
management and other personnel across the Group’s operations. As of
31 December 2023, 74.2% of our staff are female. For details, please
refer to our ESG Report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee on 10 June 2016
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 3.25 of the
Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of the remuneration
committee was adopted in compliance with Code Provision E.1.2 of the
CG Code. Its terms of reference are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee are to evaluate the
performance and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of our individual executive Directors and senior
management and no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration. The remuneration committee currently
consists of three Directors, being Mr. Lam Lo, Mr. Lo Wan Sing Vincent
and Mr. Lau Tak Fung Wallace, with Mr. Lam Lo acting as the chairman
of the remuneration committee. Mr. Lam Lo and Mr. Lo Wan Sing
Vincent are independent non-executive Directors, while Mr. Lau Tak
Fung Wallace is an executive Director. Details of remuneration of
Directors are set out in Note 7 to the Financial Statements.

During the year 2023, one meeting of the remuneration committee was
held, amongst others, to review and approve the remuneration
packages of the Directors and senior management of the Company and
reviewing matters relating to the Share Option Scheme. The attendance
records of individual committee members are as follows:
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 10 June 2016 with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules, and amended on 31 December 2018. The written terms of
reference of the audit committee was adopted in compliance with Code
Provisions D.3.3 and D.3.7 of the CG Code. Its terms of reference are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review and supervise
our financial reporting process, risk management and internal control
systems, nominate and monitor external auditors and to provide advice
and comments to the Board. The audit committee currently consists of
four Directors, being Mr. Lee Ka Lun, Mr. Lam Lo, Mr. Lo Wan Sing
Vincent and Mr. Kam, Eddie Shing Cheuk, with Mr. Lee Ka Lun acting
as the chairman of the audit committee. All of them are independent
non-executive Directors. Mr. Lee Ka Lun has the appropriate
professional qualification as set out in Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

During the year 2023, three meetings of the audit committee were held
to review and discuss with the management of the Company and the
external auditors the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group, as well as reviewed the risk management and internal
control systems, effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function
and other financial reporting matters. The attendance records of
individual committee members are set out below:
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Mr. Lo Wan Sing Vincent ER B &
Mr. Lam Lo OB % &£

Mr. Lee Ka Lun TRETAE
Mr. Kam, Eddie Shing Cheuk HEERE

The Board has not taken a different view from the audit committee on
the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external auditors.
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1/3
3/3
3/3
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining effective risk management and
internal control systems and conducting regular review on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Company. The risk management and internal control systems of the
Group are characterised by distinct division between power and
authority, clear procedures, high transparency and efficiency. The
Company has worked out a procedure for identifying, evaluating and
managing significant risks of the Company. Business departments of
the Company are responsible for identifying, supervising and evaluating
the risks related to themselves, and report to the Company’s senior
management on a regular basis. The senior management shall evaluate
and set priorities for the identified risks according to the procedure set
by the audit committee, and then submit risk alleviation plans to the
audit committee which shall appoint officers responsible for risk
management.

The risk management and internal control systems adopted by the
Company are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risks of
failing to achieve the business objectives and can only make reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
Procedures have been designed for safeguarding assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, maintaining of proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use
or for publication, and ensuring compliance of applicable laws, rules
and regulations. However, the system can only provide reasonable but
not absolute assurance against misstatements or losses.

The audit committee, which was delegated by the Board, reviews the
Group’s risk management and internal control procedures and systems
at least once per year, and has reviewed and evaluated the Group’s
internal control system put in place by management covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls, risk
management functions and the internal audit function of the Company
and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2023. The audit
committee considered that the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group were effective and adequate.

The Company has an internal audit function. The audit committee
considered that the internal audit function was effective.
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The Company has formulated the insider information policies according
to the SFO and the Listing Rules. The Directors, senior management
and all others relevant employees are provided with the guidelines to
ensure that the Company promptly disclose the insider information
under reasonable and practicable circumstances. The guideline
contains a series of procedure to ensure that the information are kept
confidential before they are disclosed to the general public, and shall
publicly disclose such information immediately if the Company considers
that it is impossible to keep it confidential as required.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the Company engaged Mazars CPA Limited as the
external auditor. The fees in respect of audit services and non-audit
services provided by Mazars CPA Limited for the year ended 31
December 2023 amounted to approximately HK$785,000 and
HK$135,000, respectively.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yu Ho Ming, being our company secretary, is primarily responsible
for the company secretarial work of our Group. Mr. Yu Ho Ming is also
our Company’s financial controller. The Company confirms that Mr. Yu
Ho Ming has for the year ended 31 December 2023 attended no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The following procedures for shareholders of the Company to convene
an extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM”) of the Company are prepared
in accordance with the Articles of Association as follows:

(1) One or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company having the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company, shall have the right, by written notice, to require an
EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition.

(2)  Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company at the following address:

Principal office of the Company in Hong Kong
Address:  17/F, Excel Centre

483A Castle Peak Road

Cheung Sha Wan

Kowloon

Hong Kong

ir@xhsl.com.hk

Mr. Yu Ho Ming

Email:
Attention:
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(8) The EGM shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition.

(4) If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to
convene the meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do so in
the same manner as that in which meetings may be convened by
the Board, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

Shareholders may raise their enquiries and concerns to the Board by
the following methods:

Address: 17/F., Excel Centre
483A Castle Peak Road
Cheung Sha Wan

Kowloon

Hong Kong
Email: ir@xhsl.com.hk
Tel: (852) 3416 9178
Fax: (852) 3544 4188

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company, a
shareholder should lodge a written notice of his or her proposal
(“Proposal”) with his or her detailed contact information at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the Board will be asked to include the Proposal in the
agenda for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the shareholders for consideration of
the Proposal raised by the shareholder concerned at the general
meeting varies according to the nature of the Proposal as follows:

(1)  Atleast 14 days’ notice in writing if the Proposal requires approval
by way of ordinary resolution of the Company.

(2) Atleast 21 days’ notice in writing if the Proposal requires approval
by way of a special resolution of the Company in an EGM of the
Company or an ordinary resolution of the Company in an annual
general meeting of the Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

The Board recognises the importance of good communications with all
shareholders. The Company believes that maintaining a high level of
transparency is a key to enhance investor relations. The Company is
committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure of corporate
information to its shareholders and public investors. The Company
updates its shareholders on its latest business developments and
financial performance through its corporate publications including
annual reports and public announcements. Extensive information about
the Company’s activities for the year ended 31 December 2023 has
been provided in this report. While the annual general meeting provides
a valuable forum that facilitates direct communications between the
Board and its shareholders, the Company also maintains its website
www.xhsl.com.hk to provide an alternative communication channel for
the public and its shareholders. All corporate communication and
Company’s latest updates are available on the Company’s website for
public’s information. Based on the above, the Company considers the
shareholders’ communication policy conducted during the year 2023
was adequate and effective. On 25 May 2023, the Company adopted
the second amended and restated memorandum and articles of
association of the Company in substitution for and to the exclusion of
the then existing memorandum and articles of association of the
Company for the purposes of, among others, (i) conforming to the core
shareholder protection standards set out in Appendix A1 to the Listing
Rules; (i) bringing the memorandum and articles of association of the
Company in line with amendments made to the Listing Rules and
applicable laws and procedures of the Cayman Islands; (iii) providing
more flexibility in relation to the conduct of general meetings of the
Company by allowing general meetings to be held as hybrid meetings
or virtual meetings; and (iv) making certain minor housekeeping
amendments and consequential amendment. Saved as disclosed
above, during the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of
this report, there has been no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

Hong Kong, 25 March 2024
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The Directors are pleased to present this report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023 (the “Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and those of
the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 12 to the
Financial Statements.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s principal activities as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including an analysis using financial key performance indicators, a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and
an indication of likely future development in the Group’s business, can
be found in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
set out on pages 9 to 14 of this report. Such discussion forms part of
this Directors’ Report.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group continues to update the requirements of the relevant
environmental laws and regulations applicable to it to ensure
compliance. The Group strive to minimise environmental impact by
saving electricity, and encouraging recycle of office supplies and other
materials. We also require the vessel operators to operate in strict
compliance with the relevant environmental regulations and rules. For
further details, please refer to our Environmental, Social and
Governance Report on pages 15 to 45 of this report.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group continues to keep itself updated of the requirement of the
relevant laws and regulations in various countries and regions,
particularly in Hong Kong and the PRC, applicable to it to ensure
compliance. The majority of the Group’s assets are located and the
Group’s revenue is mainly derived from operations in both Hong Kong
and the PRC. During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
complied with the relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong and the
PRC in all material respects.

Key Relationships
(i) Employees

The Group offers competitive remuneration packages to attract,
retain and motivate employees. Key personnel have been part of
the management team since the inception of business. During the
year ended 31 December 2023, the Group considered the
relationship with employees was well and the turnover rate was
acceptable.
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(i)  Suppliers

The Group has developed long-standing relationships with a
number of our vendors and taken great care to ensure they share
our commitment to quality and ethics. The Group selects the
suppliers carefully and requires them to satisfy certain assessment
criteria including experience, financial strength, reputation and
quality control effectiveness.

(iijj Customers

The Group is committed to offer a quality and timely service to our
customers. We also stay connected with our customers in order
to meet their needs. We have ongoing communications with them
through various channels like telephone, email and marketing
materials.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the
Group’s financial position as at 31 December 2023 are set out in the
Financial Statements on pages 91 to 175.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 176 of this report. This
summary does not form part of the Financial Statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in Note 23 to the Financial Statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the Company had share premium and
accumulated losses in the amount of approximately HK$113,369,000
(31 December 2022: approximately HK$113,332,000) which is available
for distribution to the shareholders under applicable provisions of the
Companies Act in the Cayman Islands subject to conditions of the
Articles of Association.
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TOP-UP PLACING OF EXISTING SHARES AND
SUBSCRIPTION OF NEW SHARES UNDER
GENERAL MANDATE

On 27 July 2021, in order to raise additional funds, the Company
entered into a placing and subscription agreement with Ever Winning
Investment Company Limited (the “Vendor”) and Alpha Financial Group
Limited (the “Placing Agent”), pursuant to which the Vendor conditionally
agreed to subscribe for 100,000,000 new shares of the Company at
the price of HK$0.231 per share. The aggregate nominal value of the
shares subscribed is HK$1,000,000. The market price of the share was
HK$0.260 as at the date of the placing and subscription agreement.
The completion of the placing and the subscription took place on 30
July 2021 and 6 August 2021, respectively. The placing shares are
allotted to no less than six independent placees which are professional,
institutional or other investors. The net proceeds from the subscription
amounted to approximately HK$20.5 million (net of expenses relating to
the top-up placing), which would be used for (i) potential acquisition of
additional vessel(s); (ii) the repayment of the Company’s existing
borrowings; and (jii) general working capital of the Group. Details of the
top-up placing and subscription of new shares are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 27 July 2021 and 6 August
2021. The following table sets forth the Company’s intended timetable
for use of proceeds from the above subscription as at 31 December
2023:
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the five largest customers of
the Group accounted for approximately 35.7% (year ended 31
December 2022: approximately 35.0%) of the Group’s total revenue
and the largest customer accounted for approximately 9.1% (year
ended 31 December 2022: 12.5%) of the total revenue. During the year
ended 31 December 2023, the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 33.8% (year ended 31 December 2022:
approximately 51.3%) of the Group’s cost of services and the largest
supplier accounted for approximately 16.2% (year ended 31 December
2022: 24.8%) of the cost of services. None of the Directors, their close
associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge
of the Directors own more than 5% of the number of issued shares of
the Company) has interest in any of the five largest suppliers or
customers.

SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note

12 to the Financial Statements.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors who hold office during the year and up to the date of this
report are:
Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Yu Leung (Chairman)
Mr. Lau Tak Fung Wallace (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lau Tak Kee Henry

Non-executive Director

Madam Tong Hung Sum

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lo Wan Sing Vincent

Mr. Lam Lo

Mr. Lee Ka Lun

Mr. Kam, Eddie Shing Cheuk
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Each of the executive Directors entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial term of three years from 6 July 2016 and shall
continue thereafter until terminated by, not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party on the other.

Each of the non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years from 6 July
2019, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meeting and until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by either party on the other.

There is no service contract which is not determinable by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation) of any Director
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, all Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS AND PERMITTED
INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Directors and other officers
for the time being of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of
them shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any act done, concurred
in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty or supposed duty in
their respective offices, except such (if any) as they shall incur or sustain
through their own fraud or dishonesty, and none of them shall be
answerable for the acts, receipts, neglects or defaults of any other of
them, or for joining in any receipt for the sake of conformity, or for any
bankers or other persons with whom any moneys or effects of the
Company shall be lodged or deposited for safe custody, or for the
insufficiency or deficiency of any security upon which any moneys of the
Company shall be placed out or invested, or for any other loss,
misfortune or damage which may arise in the execution of their
respective offices or trusts, or in relation thereto, except as the same
shall happen by or through their own fraud, dishonest, or recklessness.
The Company may take out and pay the premium and other moneys for
the maintenance of insurance, bonds and other instruments for the
benefit either of the Company or the Directors (and/or other officers) or
any of them to indemnify the Company and/or Directors (and/or other
officers) named therein for this purpose against any loss, damage,
liability and claim which they may suffer or sustain in connection with
any breach by the Directors (and/or other officers) or any of them of
their duties to the Company.

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company
during the year. The permitted indemnity provision has been in force for
the benefit of the Directors as required by section 470 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong) when this Directors’
Report has been approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this report, there was no transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance subsisting during or at the end of the year to
which the Company or its holding company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with a
Director is or was materially interested, either directly or indirectly.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are disclosed in the section headed “Profile of Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 46 to 51 of this report.

REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has a total of 182 employees (31
December 2022: 203 employees). The Group’s remuneration policy is
to compensate its employees based on their performance, qualifications
and the Group’s operating results. The total remuneration of employees
includes basic salaries and cash bonus.

Directors and senior management of the Group receive compensation
in the form of fees, salaries, allowances, discretionary bonus, defined
contribution plans and other benefits in kind with reference to those
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and the performance
of the Group. The Group also reimburses its Directors and senior
management for expenses which are necessarily and reasonably
incurred for the provision of services to the Group or executing their
functions in relation to the operations of the Group. The Group regularly
reviews and determines the remuneration and compensation packages
(including incentive plans) of its Directors and senior management, by
reference to, among other things, market level of remuneration and
compensation paid by comparable companies, the respective
responsibilities of its Directors and senior management and the
performance of the Group.

There was no consideration provided to or receivable by any third party
for making available the services of a person as a Director, or in any
other capacity while as a Director during the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022.
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The Company has adopted a share option scheme as incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in
the section headed “Share Option Scheme” below.

The remuneration of members of the senior management (other than
the Directors) of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 fell
within the following bands:
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HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 & 7T £ 1,500,000 % 7T 1 2
2 2

Particulars regarding directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
individuals as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rules are set out in Notes 7 and 8 to the Financial Statements,
respectively.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this report, there was no contract of significance to
which the Company or its holding company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which any controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries had a material interest subsisting at the end of the year or
at any time during the year. Furthermore, there was no contract of
significance for the provision of services to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY A
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

A deed of non-competition in respect of the controlling shareholders
was entered into on 10 June 2016 (the “Deed of Non-Competition”).
The controlling shareholders have confirmed to the Company of their
compliance with the Deed of Non-Competition provided to the
Company during the year.
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The independent non-executive Directors reviewed the status of
compliance and also the confirmation by the controlling shareholders
and, on the basis of such confirmation, are of the view that the
controlling shareholders have complied with the Deed of Non-
Competition which has been enforced by the Company in accordance
with its terms.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has made an annual declaration in
respect of their compliance with the terms of non-competition
undertaking as provided in their service agreements.

The independent non-executive Directors reviewed the status of
compliance as well as confirmation by each executive Director and, on
the basis of such confirmation, are of the view that such executive
Directors complied with the non-competition undertakings under their
service agreements and these non-competition undertakings have been
enforced by the Company in accordance with its terms.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group did not enter into
any connected transactions or continuing connected transactions which
need to be disclosed in this annual report under Rule 14A.49 of the
Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”)
on 10 June 2016. The Scheme provides the eligible participants an
opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company with the view to
achieving the following objectives: (i) motivating the eligible participants
to optimise their performance efficiency for our benefit; and (i) attracting
and retaining or otherwise maintaining on-going business relationships
with the eligible participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial
to our long-term growth.

Subject to the terms of the Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion,
offer to grant an option to subscribe for shares to eligible participants,

which include:

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers the
Group;

(i)  any directors of the Group;
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(i)

(iv)

any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents to the
Group; and

such other persons who, in the sole opinion of the Board, will
contribute or have contributed to the Group.

Details of the principal terms of the Scheme are set out in paragraph
headed “Share Option Scheme” in section headed “Statutory and
General Information” in Appendix IV to the Prospectus. The principal
terms of the Scheme are summarised as follows:

The Scheme was adopted from a period of 10 years commencing
from 10 June 2016 and remains in force until 9 June 2026. The
Company may by resolution in general meeting or the Board may
at any time terminate the operation of the Scheme. Options
granted prior to such termination but not yet exercised at the time
of termination shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the Scheme.

The exercise price per share of the Company for each option
granted shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion
but in any event shall be not less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant which must be a trading day;

(i)  the average closing prices of the Company’s shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and

(i) the nominal value of a Company’s share.
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An option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted
by the grantee and to have taken effect when the duplicate offer
document constituting acceptance of the options duly signed by
the grantee, together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is
received by the Company on or before the relevant acceptance
date. An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme at any time after the date upon which the option is
deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry of 10
years from that date, subject to earlier termination by the
Company in general meeting or by the Board.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company must not exceed
10% of the total number of shares in issue on the listing date of
the Company, being 140,000,000 shares (representing
approximately 9.0% of the total number of shares in issue of the
Company as at the date of this report) (the “Scheme Limit”),
unless the Company seeks the approval of the shareholders in
general meeting for renewing the Scheme Limit or grant options
beyond the Scheme Limit to eligible participants specifically
identified by the Board, provided that options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme or any other share
option schemes of the Company will not be counted for the
purpose of calculating the Scheme Limit.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted under the Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company must not
exceed 30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to
time.

The maximum number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to each eligible
participant under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company (including both exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period up to the date
of grant shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue
as at the date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of
this 1% limit shall be subject to the issue of a circular by the
Company and approval by shareholders in accordance with the
Listing Rules.

No options have been granted, exercised or cancelled under the
Scheme since its adoption up to the date of this report.
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Apart from the Scheme, at no time during the year ended 31 December
20283 was any of the Company and its holding companies, subsidiaries
and fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and none of
the Directors, or their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any
right to subscribe for the shares in, or debentures of, the Company, or
had exercise any such right.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

The Company
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Mr. Lau Yu Leung® Interest of controlled corporation® 1,072,331,999 69.18%
and interest of spouse® Shares (L)
BlEEL A R EE RO LB & (5F2E)
Madam Tong Hung Sum®@ Interest of controlled corporation® 1,072,331,999 69.18%
and interest of spouse® Shares (L)
BB L@ X EERERC R BERO fig (4 2)
Mr. Lau Tak Fung Wallace Interest of controlled corporation®” 1 0.00%
Share (L)
et R EEERD i (4 2)
Mr. Lau Tak Kee Henry Interest of controlled corporation® 52,500,000 3.39%
Shares (L)
ZlEEEE R EEER® & (5F2)
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Notes:

The letter “L” denotes a person’s long position (as defined under Part XV of the SFO)
in the Shares.

Mr. Lau Yu Leung is the spouse of Madam Tong Hung Sum.

1,019,831,999 Shares are registered in the name of Ever Winning Investment
Company Limited (“Ever Winning Investment”), which is owned as to 100% by Mr.
Lau Yu Leung.

52,500,000 Shares are registered in the name of Ever Forever Investment Company
Limited, which is owned as to 100% by Madam Tong Hung Sum, the spouse of Mr.
Lau Yu Leung. Mr. Lau Yu Leung is deemed to be interested in Madam Tong Hung
Sum’s interest in the Company by virtue of the SFO.

52,500,000 Shares are registered in the name of Ever Forever Investment Company
Limited, which is owned as to 100% by Madam Tong Hung Sum.

1,019,831,999 Shares are registered in the name of Ever Winning Investment, which
is owned as to 100% by Mr. Lau Yu Leung, the spouse of Madam Tong Hung Sum.
Madam Tong Hung Sum is deemed to be interested in Mr. Lau Yu Leung’s interest
in the Company by virtue of the SFO.

1 Share are registered in the name of Ever Miracle Investment Company Limited,
which is owned as to 100% by Mr. Lau Tak Fung Wallace.

52,500,000 Shares are registered in the name of Ever Glorious Investment Company
Limited, which is owned as to 100% by Mr. Lau Tak Kee Henry.

Associated Corporations

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 %

EEEREE

Hfat -

[LIE—BATRBROHHTE (ERAEFFRAEKHE
XVEB) o

FEBEEDERRL L ZES ©

1,019,831,999 % % 17 4 Ever Winning Investment Company
Limited ([ Ever Winning Investment |) #74 - H @ 2|8 & £ 4
A 100% °

52,500,000 % % {5 & Ever Forever Investment Company
Limited 78 * EBREBEL THA100% - EBFEL T A
BIRBREEZERB BREFHFRHEKRG  BREZIR
RARZERMBARIEE k2 ik o

52,500,000 % i% {5 & Ever Forever Investment Company
Limited 74 » EHEBELZ TR 100% °

1,019,831,999 i fi% 15 4 Ever Winning Investment £ 4 + &
HEESLEEER100% HEEXERFERRL T 2E
18 MIBEFFRBEGRD - FIHBLERARF 2RI
RABBEL T 2 -

1 f% §% 1% A& Ever Miracle Investment Company Limited 5%
HR2EEE4AmB 100% °

52,500,000 fi% % {7 A Ever Glorious Investment Company
Limited #5745 - H 1 21845 58 £ HEH 100% °

B EE

Approximate

Number and class percentage
of securities in the of interest
Name of associated associated in the associated
Name of Directors corporation Nature of interest corporation corporation
R EER RAEESEE®
BEEpR HEEE S8 It E "HHE RER EEfoask
Mr. Lau Yu Leung Ever Winning Investment  Beneficial Owner ) 1 ordinary share 100%
BlEERA EmEAAN SO B IR
Madam Tong Hung Sum  Ever Winning Investment  Interest of spouse @ 1 ordinary share 100%
BB L LEERO 8 37 ik
Notes: Mt -
1 1. FIT 6 78 4 25 48 72 A8 855 % [ Ever Winning Investment ) 5 -

The disclosed interest represents the interests in the associated corporation, Ever
Winning Investment, which is held as to 100% by Mr. Lau Yu Leung.

Madam Tong Hong Sum is the spouse of Mr. Lau Yu Leung. By virtue of the SFO,
Madam Tong Hong Sum is deemed to be interested in the 1 share of Ever Winning
Investment held by Mr. Lau Yu Leung.

Hi B0 E 5L WA 100% °

2. ERFL Tt AERELENESE - BIEESHRBHEEG
BB T 5 A R BB 8 5 A E 61 Ever Winning
Investment A% 7 1 % A 1 % o



EVER HARVEST GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED 7% £ [ 5 )it 5 Fi 23 W)
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 3

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the Directors, as
of the date of this report, none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company had any interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2023, the following persons/entities, other than
those disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures”, had interests and/or short positions in the Shares and
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

EEEREE

BREXHBEBEEN BEEMAM RARSEH
B BEEFTHARFARHTRABRRAAFHHE
EAREEE (E& R B 5 LB EPIEXV RS
EAREEE) M) SRR D RERET R
RIRE 5 R BB R 01 5 352 (R R E SN A T8
FRERMANERIORE - HARE EWAR RN
$5 10 IRESTRIBAA R B LB X PR SOR R ©

FERRE

R2023F 12 A1 A BRIEFERESTHRAER
BEAD - R M EEE 2SR AR | — ST
BEN TIAL/ BEERKRD RAERDTPES
BEBA NS EMNEXVEE2R3D IEETF
BRI ELAREESF R AE KPS 336 1EE T
FHERMAZEZR/ RAE

Interest in the Company AT ER
Approximate
percentage
Number and of interest
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest class of securities in the Company
RAARNER
RREE 54/ EEtE HHHBRERO BRBEDL
Ever Winning Investment® Beneficial Owner 1,019,831,999 65.80%
Shares (L)
EREAA P& (45 &)
Notes: Kt -
1. The letter “L” denotes a person’s long position (as defined under Part XV of the SFO) 1. [LIE—BATRBRONFAE (CTERBSRIEEISE

in the Shares.

2. The Company is held as to approximately 65.80% by Ever Winning Investment.

XVED) ©

2. 7872 &) F Ever Winning Investment 3575 4965.80% ©
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Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, the Company
had not been notified by any persons, other than Directors or chief
executives of the Company, who had interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, none of the Directors or
substantial shareholders of the Company or any of their respective
associates has engaged in any business that competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group or
has any other conflict of interests with the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2023.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors were not aware of any tax relief and exemption the
shareholders are entitled by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

Save the contracts of service with any Director or any person engaged
in the full-time employment of the Company, during the year ended 31
December 2023, there was no contract by which any person undertook
the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of any business of the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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EEEREE

B EXWEEI  RARERH  EFATAEBAE
MEMALT (BEERARAZSTHRAERIN K
B AABROT  BERBEISFRYPEHIIE
XVER S 2 K 35 Bi R R R AR 1~ B 4R B M) R 2 300K
B RERARRAREREZF K E GEH 5 336 %
ATHREFNECMANERIORE -

HERAZEHR

HZE2023F 12 A3 HIEFEARN  MIEEFHARD
AIETERARTMFESSENBEANSTEAE
BEBEKSN AL EEBEBA TSI
B EAEEE TN EMAEESE -

BE HEIBBEALQXFTLHES

HZE2023F 12 A1 HIEFE - ARQE) 5 EH (] b
BARMERE  HESKBELOARQATH LEHES

BB R
EFYTHERRARBEARANBHMFAH
B -

BEEEK

BREARAFIMNESRIMEZBALTHOREEYD
Gh o REE2028F 12 A1 HILFE - BIETM A
TANEMAEHNUNBERR T EREERT
MEBHDNEERITHIIE-

BrRBERE
7R ) A 4 S R 4 B oK B B B O 4130 4 S B
BB R BERARGETRLANARE
BRSRB E HARAD ©
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, the
Company maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices can be found in
the Corporate Governance Report contained on pages 52 to 65 in this
report.

IMPORTANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, there was no important
event affecting the Group which occurred after the reporting period.

AUDITORS

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring auditors, Messrs. Mazars CPA
Limited, is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

By order of the Board

Ever Harvest Group Holdings Limited
Lau Yu Leung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2024

EEEREE

EEARERE

BERARRRAREBHARAARGSHNER UK
BEEZMA ANARREE2023F 12 A31 HIEF
ER—E#EF EmRAFIANARERE -

BEMREESEHE
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mazars

To the members of
Ever Harvest Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ever Harvest
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 91 to 175, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2023, and
of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Mazars CPA LIMITED

hl R ER (W) astmismmiamas

42nd Floor, Central Plaza,

18 Harbour Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
BT 1858

rh R B By 4048

Tel 75 5 : (852) 2909 5555

Fax ¥ £ : (852) 2810 0032
Email T : info@mazars.hk
Website4 ik : www.mazars.hk
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

BAREMKRES

BRRETEE

RRBSFESREBRMANERAE - RA/YXF
BHRAMBHREANBIRAEENEH - GLER
RHEBRMBFEBGAVBBRERL AR RKEE
TREM - T TEHELFTREHREBNER -

THE KEY AUDIT MATTER
BRETER

HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT MATTER
RMMETNIEERRESSEE

Recognition of feeder vessels under usage priority agreements or sales & purchase and supplemental transfer

agreements for preferential use

REBACAHEAIEERBAERGRBAIGMN

Refer to Note 2 and Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

2HAF R EBRM T2 R 13

The Group entered into usage priority agreements (the
“Usage Priority Agreements”) or sales & purchase and
supplemental transfer agreements (the “Transfer
Agreements”) for preferential use on five vessels with the
legal owners of each vessel. Under the Usage Priority
Agreements or the Transfer Agreements:
EXERELEEROEMMES MM ETER AL
BAEGERHE((EBEERABR) XEEREREETHZ
(lEEHZE])  UEBEEREEMM - BIRELEERH
BWEEDE

— the Group has the exclusive preferential right to use
and the entitlement on the benefits from the use of
these vessels;
EEEEBECRAZEMMNBRBARLERZE
e 0 PR AS A 2 BV RE R

—  the Group has preferential right to acquire the interests
or obtain the sales proceeds of disposal (pre-approval
by the Group in advance) of these vessels; and
EEEERNBZEMMOERIEEEZSEM
fMUREERG BESEBUE) NEEMERENE
Vit N

— any transfer, leasing, write-off or pledge of these
vessels have to be approved by the Group in advance.
EHE LH WMEXERAZEMMEAEFTER
5 EEEE-

Our procedures, among others, included:

BFIMEEF % (AR RE)

— discussing with the management of the Group on the
validity of the Usage Priority Agreements or the Transfer
Agreements and the enforceability of the terms of these
agreements with reference to a legal opinion on these

matters;

SREBEENZEREAE EREERENWRESL
168 7 16 2 R B R 10 2 B0 B BRI IR AR R 10 B RO FT
1T

— analysing the terms of these agreements and assessing
the bases on which the management of the Group and
the legal expert concluded that the Group has control
over these vessels and can obtain future economic
benefits from the use of them; and
DMHEBHZENIERLFE EEEEEBENERE
KRR BREAEGZ S MDA R AR B S M
PSR ENRZOER &

— evaluating the legal expert’s competence, capabilities
and objectivity.
FHIERBERNER  BEHOREEM -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) FREITSEE(E)

THE KEY AUDIT MATTER HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT MATTER
BEEtEn RMANBHNAEEERSEHEE

Recognition of feeder vessels under usage priority agreements or sales & purchase and supplemental transfer
agreements for preferential use (Continued)

REELAERABEAREERH R ERGERI A (5)

Refer to Note 2 and Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements. (Continued)

2GR EBRM T2 XM 13 ()

Empowered by the terms under the Usage Priority
Agreements or the Transfer Agreements, the Group can
demonstrate the disposal, transfer, leasing, write-off or
pledge of these vessels have to be pre-approved by the
Group. In addition, the Group can obtain future economic
benefits associated with these vessels by exercising the
exclusive preferential right to use these vessels to provide
logistic services to the customers and obtain the sales
proceeds on disposal of these vessels. The management of
the Group, based on the terms set out in the Usage Priority
Agreements or the Transfer Agreements and the actual
usage of these vessels, considered that in substance the
Group is able to use these vessels and obtain future
economic benefits through the use of these vessels
physically as if it was the legal owners throughout the period
covered by the Usage Priority Agreements or the Transfer
Agreements. Accordingly, these vessels are recorded by the
Group as property, plant and equipment under Hong Kong
Accounting Standard 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”.
At 31 December 2023, the aggregate net carrying amount
of these vessels was approximately HK$22,364,000.
RIBFEECHABEREERRB T 2ER - EXEEERE
AHE HE B MERERAZSEMHMEESZ SRR
T BEEE#LE- I EEETEBITEERELE
ERAZEMM AT P RMAYRRE I IG HEZEMM
B 8K & P15 RIE - RS B2 5% 55 M AR 4B R A R 2R 48 B A
me BERENEEERBELERAMANERR RN
ZHERRZEMMOERERABER R EXEEE
FRIEAZEMAM - WiEREAZEMMAIERREOE
B BMOREBEERARRERNEERRRENHEA
REEMAEE At EXRERBEEBEGHENE 165
(2%~ BB REREIBZEMMTAYE BB R&E -
R2023F12A31H ZEMM AR FENR
22,364,000 7T °
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) FREITEE (E)

THE KEY AUDIT MATTER HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT MATTER
BEEtER KNS NAEEBERSEHEE

Recognition of feeder vessels under usage priority agreements or sales & purchase and supplemental transfer
agreements for preferential use (Continued)

REELERAHEREERHZERG R &M (5)

Refer to Note 2 and Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements. (Continued)

2HGGE R EBERM T2 RHZE13 - (B)

We identified the above matter as a key audit matter
because the recognition of these vessels as the Group’s
property, plant and equipment involves a significant degree
of management judgement and therefore is subject to an
inherent risk of error.

BMPE B L EEBERRBRETFE ARNERZE
MMER EEENYE BEARRBIREXREERRE
HE - AtEEERBKRR -

Revenue recognition

Wy 55 FERR

Refer to consolidated income statement and Note 2 and Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
DA NSRRGSR ENF 2R FE4 -

Included in the revenue are rendering of feeder shipping | Our procedures, among others, included:
services of approximately HK$308,326,000, rendering of | HFHEFEE (EFBE) :
carrier owned container services of approximately

HK$36,332,000, rendering of sea freight forwarding agency | —  assessing the design, implementation and operating
services of approximately HK$46,933,000 and rendering of effectiveness of management’s key internal controls over
barge services of approximately HK$629,000. revenue recognition;
Ui 25 B 4R 4R A S AR M BR 755 B M 25 49 308,326,000 & 7T~ 1 AEERERMAWNGHERNERABEENRET - #
#FGE A B A 8 R H) I 5 £9.36,332,000 4 7T+ 1R 18 TREERNIL

5B AR 89 U 2= 49 46,933,000 78 7T I 1R 4 8 i AR
7% U %5 49 629,000 7 T © —  inspecting contracts, on a sample basis, to understand

the terms of delivery and acceptance and check the
relevancy of contract milestone(s), to assess the Group’s
revenue recognition with reference to the criteria set out
in HKFRS 15; and
MERESOUTHRIBEREBREGNEERIEN
MM KM2ZEBVBRELEF1GFAMRE
AFE BEEENKRER &
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)
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BEESEE (A

THE KEY AUDIT MATTER
BMREITEER

HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT MATTER
RN EFTOAEERRESNSE

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Wz FERE ()

Refer to consolidated income statement and Note 2 and Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements. (Continued)

2R E W e R RIFE B HRER N it 2 kit 4 o ()

The Group recognised its revenue from the aforementioned
services over a period of time. It involves measurement of
the outcome of a performance obligation based on contract
milestone(s) and therefore it requires the application of
management’s judgement.

EEER-BREHRER LilE B RBESHNER
BREAERABENEL BAUREREERERA -

We identified the above matter as a key audit matter
because revenue is one of the key performance indicators
of the Group and because there is an inherent risk in the
application of management’s judgement.

B LA EEBNREREAFTE BRERERE B
SEHEP-EHAREREE HEEBERAEGFER
R -

—  checking, on a sample basis, to supporting documents,
such as transit port arrival record, to verify the revenue is
recognised in accordance with contract milestone(s).
MERE XX (NEEBEELRS) ARE RS
BRBEANEEER TIAER -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the 2023
annual report of the Company but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

BYRBERES
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concemn.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 25 March 2024

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is:

Fong Chin Lung

Practising Certificate number: PO7321
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT meEWEX
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE2023F 1231 HILFZ
2023 2022
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
KtaE FET FHET
Revenue U = 4 392,220 655,518
Cost of services Rk 7% B AN (323,856) (551,708)
Gross profit EF 68,364 103,810
Other income, net HAth g A F R 5 15,069 11,859
Impairment losses on investment properties & & 4 % )& (B &5 18 15 (1,967) =
Reversal of loss allowance on trade and B 5 N E b W GRIB BB
other receivables, net BB FRE 328 -
Administrative and other TR REAMEERS
operating expenses (78,236) (80,835)
Finance costs BhE AR 6 (2,873) (1,938)
Profit before tax RR B A % R 6 685 32,896
Income tax expenses st < 9 (172) (5,254)
Profit for the year FEER 513 27,642
Earnings per share SREF HK cents HK cents
Al JEN
Basic N 11 0.03 1.78
Diluted ¥ 11 0.03 1.78




EVER HARVEST GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED 7k % £ Bl #2 Ji % B 2 W)
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 %

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF GeETHERER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE2023F 12431 HILFZ
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Profit for the year FEEA 513 27,642
Other comprehensive expenses Hit2EExX
Item that may be reclassified subsequently HEEMNE S EEEmIER
to profit or loss
Exchange difference on consolidation MEELRERZERE (6,544) (4,569)

Total comprehensive (expenses) income FEZE(MAX) WMALALE
for the year (6,031) 23,073
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL REMBMR R

POSITION
At 31 December 2023

20234 12 A31 H

93

2023 2022
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
k23 FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - WERERE 13 107,918 113,770
Investment properties "EYE 15 56,799 61,356
164,717 175,126
Current assets REBEE
Financial assets at fair value through BEAFER AEBE ([EAFAE
profit or loss (“FVPL”) FFABE]D NI EE 16 6,158 6,050
Trade and other receivables B 5 &AM W FRIA 17 72,824 83,154
Income tax recoverable AU E AT 1SR 3,051 =
Pledged bank deposits BEMRITER 18 784 811
Bank balances and cash RITEHRARS 106,505 147,991
189,322 238,006
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables E 5 K E bR FIE 19 88,603 120,530
Income tax payable FET TSR - 5,294
Interest-bearing borrowings sHEER 20 48,909 64,584
Lease liabilities HEAR 21 1,133 1,287
138,645 191,695
Net current assets REBEEFH 50,677 46,311
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERRBEE 215,394 221,437
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Lease liabilities HEAE 21 1,035 1,047
NET ASSETS EESE 214,359 220,390
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL mEMBMR R
POSITION

At 31 December 2023 R2023F 12 31 H
2023 2022
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
k23 FET FET
Capital and reserves BEAXRFEE
Share capital fig 7% 23 15,500 15,500
Reserves ] 198,859 204,890
TOTAL EQUITY ERAE 214,359 220,390

These consolidated financial statements on pages 91 to 175 were F1HZE15EFIH 2GR AMBRECETER
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 20243 A25 Bt & W HEZ T WHIL NESE

March 2024 and signed on its behalf by REFEZE
LAU Yu Leung LAU Tak Fung Wallace
BlHE gze
Director Director

EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES HREERBER
IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE2023F 12 31 HILFZE
Reserve
fife
Share Share Capital Statutory  Translation Other  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Sub-total Total
BA  BiEE  EARE 0 AEBE 0 BXBE  HbRBE  ZHE7 NGt @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TEL TEr FET TEx FE FET TET FE TET
(Note 24(a))  (Note 24(b)  (Note 24(c)  (Note 24(d)  (Note 24(e)
(Mito4e)  (Wioap)  (Wiode)  (Wiodd)  (Hatode)
At 1 January 2022 B202%1A1H 15,500 115,585 10,102 299 1914 4,442 49,525 181,817 197,317
Profit for the year EERT - - - - - - 27,642 27,642 27,642
Other comprehensive A2 ERX:
expenses:
ltem that may be =V TSy
reclassified subsequently BEniEE
to profit or loss
Exchange difference on GAEANERZS
consolidation - - - - (4,569) - - (4,569) (4,569)
Total comprehensive FERENALE
income for the year - - - - (4,569) - 27,642 23,073 23,073
At 31 December 2022 120225128318 15,500 115,585 10,102 299 (2,655) 4,442 77,167 204,890 220,390
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES HREERBER
IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE2023F 12431 HILFZ
Reserve
fkte
Share Share Capital Statutory  Translation Other Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Sub-total Total
BE  BROEE  ERREE  iERE 0 EXRE  RtRE 2R et o
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FiEx FiEx TET FiEx TR FET FiEx AR TErx
(Note 24(a))  (Note 24(b))  (Note 24(c))  (Note 24(d))  (Note 24(e))
(W24a) (KF24b) (Hit2s(c) (Kid24() (Hiet24(e)
At 1 January 2023 12023F1A1H 15,500 115,535 10,102 299 (2,655) 4,442 77,167 204,890 220,390
Profit for the year EERT - - - - - - 513 513 513
Other comprehensive Hit2ERX:
expenses:
ltem that may be HREENHEZ
reclassified subsequently BuiEE
to profit or loss
Exchange difference on GAEANERZE
consolidation - - - - (6,544) - - (6,544) (6,544)
Total comprehensive FERERTAE
expenses for the year - - - - (6,544) - 513 (6,031) (6,031)
At 31 December 2023 120235128318 15,500 115,535 10,102 299 (9,199) 4,442 77,680 198,859 214,359
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #HSG&E8BEERER
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE2023F 1231 HILFZ
2023 2022
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
KtaE FET FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REZEH
Cash (used in) from operations EE(FAEENRS 25 (3,828) 63,964
Income tax paid EATFTIEE (8,517) (4,180)
Interest paid ERALE (2,873) (1,938)
Net cash (used in) from operating KETER (TR EEZREFE
activities (15,218) 57,846
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Consideration paid for the acquisition of W — B A F 2
a subsidiary ERRE = (5,700)
Interest received B W F B 1,420 230
Dividend income from financial BEATEGTAEERN
assets at FVPL B ENRERA 112 164
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEE ¥ - BB L& & (3,869) (10,983)
Purchase of financial assets at FVPL BERAFTEFAER
BB 75 & B (1,687) (7,465)
Net proceeds from disposals of property, HEWE - HE L& E
plant and equipment FriS 3B 558 173 -
Decrease (Increase) in pledged bank BERIBITHERORL (3E0)
deposits 27 (149)
Net cash used in investing activities RETEBFAZEESTFE (3,824) (23,903)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEE
Inception of interest-bearing borrowings &£+ BE XK 27(b) 39,023 30,378
Repayment of interest-bearing borrowings & 1& 5T B8 % 27(b) (54,698) (35,456)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEARE 27(b) (1,439) (1,680)
Net cash used in financing activities BEFEFTA2 RS FHE (17,114) (6,758)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and ReERASEEY RL)
cash equivalents B HNFEEE (36,156) 27,185
Cash and cash equivalents at the RBEHINEESRRESEEY
beginning of the reporting period 147,991 123,821
Effect on exchange rate changes EXEHWZE (5,330) (3,015)
Cash and cash equivalents attheend RBEHFRANBEESRBESEEY
of the reporting period, represented BERITHEBRES
by bank balances and cash 106,505 147,991
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

GENERAL INFORMATION

Ever Harvest Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in the
Cayman lIslands on 15 October 2015 and its shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 6 July 2016. The Company’s immediate
and ultimate holding company is Ever Winning Investment
Company Limited (“Ever Winning Investment”), a company with
limited liability incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”).
The ultimate controlling party of the Group is Mr. Lau Yu Leung (the
“Ultimate Controlling Party”). The registered office of the Company
is situated at Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The Company’s
principal place of business is situated at 17/F., Excel Centre, 483A
Castle Peak Road, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is to act as an investment
holding company. The Company together with its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) are principally engaged in rendering of sea freight
transportation and freight forwarding services in Hong Kong and
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The details of the
subsidiaries are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(*HKASSs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance. The consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
requirements under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange. A summary of the principal accounting
policies adopted by the Group in preparing the consolidated
financial statements is set out below.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (‘HK$”), which is the same as the functional currency
of the Company, and rounded to the nearest thousands unless
otherwise indicated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

REMBHRRME

STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE2023F 1231 HILFZ
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL 2. WBEERFIESHBCR ()

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the 2022
consolidated financial statements except for the adoption of the
following new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and
effective from the current year:

RAFE RETEBRNBRELER

A M ERR AR EEEE 2022 F4R A W
BRAFEANETEE -2 ERBEAEF
ERAEREAEEBBENATHEERT
BRI EERRI

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies BAQERNE 1 RNEBET  CHBRORE

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates BRSERNE S RMEBE  LHEMNER

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and ERSENE 12 RNEBE] ELERE-RINEER
Liabilities arising from a Single BERBELRE
Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar Two BATENE 12RMEBE] BEENENE -
Model Rules ZREHA

The adoption of the above new/revised HKFRSs did not have
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements is historical cost, except for
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”), which
are measured at fair value as explained in the accounting policy
as set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting year as that of the Company using consistent
accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses
and profits and losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date on which the Group obtains control and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests (if applicable). Total comprehensive
income is attributed to the owners of the Company and the
non-controlling interest (if applicable) even if this results in the
non-controlling interest having a deficit balance.

Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on
disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest determined at the date when control is lost
and (i) the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests at the
date when control is lost. The amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to the disposed subsidiary
are accounted for on the same basis as would be required if the
parent had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Any
investment retained in the former subsidiary and any amounts
owed by or to the former subsidiary are accounted for as a
financial asset, associate, joint venture or others as appropriate
from the date when control is lost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position which is
presented in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
loss. The carrying amount of the investment is reduced to its
recoverable amount on an individual basis, if it is higher than the
recoverable amount. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and/or
receivable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit or loss
during the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less accumulated
impairment losses of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives as set out below from the date on which
they are available for use and after taking into account their
estimated residual values, using the straight-line method. Where
parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis and depreciated separately:

Leasehold improvements 51to 10 years

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3to 5 years
Motor vehicles 5to 10 years
Containers 10 years
Feeder vessels 10 to 20 years
Barges 10 to 20 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the item) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the item
is derecognised.

Investment properties

Investment properties are building that are held by owner or
lessee, to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.
These include properties held for a currently undetermined future
use.

Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation
is provided to write off the cost less accumulated impairment
losses of investment property over the unexpired term of lease,
using straight-line method, after taking into account its estimated
residual values.

Investment properties held by the Group under leases are
accounted in the same way as other right-of-use assets.
Depreciation is recognised for those investment properties over
the unexpired term of lease.

mEe

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 3k

Bt %5 SRR Y R

& Z=2023F 12 A31 HIFFE
2. REEERTESBEE(E)

M BERRE (&)

WE - BERRER T EE RERFHA
HEEBINEMGERBREER  AEAHER
ZBREAEGEFTERTE  AMEEK AR R
FEREBE-HYE BMEERRKEEREZE
HABE TR ERFY  ZHBZKA
REESBUREEEEDELAENE

HERE 5& 104

Rl HERZE 3ESE

AE 52104
SERM 104F

SR L 10E 204

B 102204
ME - -BELAZEBERNLEXBHFTERE
RAEEBTSEERRLEENZHSDUBHER °

BUBTERE ETE £ M E U e B (R i
ERERIRFHEEZRBRAENZETHE
RBUEER A B BT AR -

REWME
KREMENXRIHABRAFENET - IR
BESWAR/ REREERE - KENE

BREBFEAEERRBEOAFDE -

BREMEREAAR B ITE R R RERER
AE - WENREEMEZ G RIRER
VAE AROE TR 2R S i 7H B PO 1 5 L A AR R At
BRI o

AEERBHERBNREMENARIR
HHEMEREEEMRR ZFREVERK
FHIE A RERITE -



EVER HARVEST GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED 7k ' £ [& % it % Fi 24w
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 3%}

103

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

REMBHRRME

STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE2023F 1231 HILFZ
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL 2. REERTESTEE(E)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in
which the item is derecognised.
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Financial instruments MBEITAR
Financial assets BBEE
Recognition and derecognition R R HUH 5

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments
and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i) the
Group’s contractual rights to future cash flows from the financial
asset expire or (i) the Group transfers the financial asset and
either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset but it does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises the financial asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and an associated liability for amounts it
may have to pay.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Classification and measurement

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a significant
financing component) are initially recognised at their fair
value plus, in the case of financial assets not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial assets. Such trade receivables are initially measured
at their transaction price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i) measured
at amortised cost; (i) debt investment measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“Mandatory FVOCI”);
(iii) equity investment measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income (“Designated FVOCI”); or (iv) measured at
FVPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics.
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial
recognition unless the Group changes its business model for
managing them, in which case all affected financial assets are
reclassified on the first day of the first annual reporting period,
following the change in the business model.

1)  Financial assets measured at amortised cost
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets
both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose objective is
to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

(i)  its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising from
impairment, derecognition or through the amortisation
process are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost include trade
and other receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances and cash.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

2)

Financial assets at FVPL

These investments include financial assets that are not
measured at amortised cost at FVOCI including financial
assets held for trading, financial assets designated upon
initial recognition as at FVPL, financial assets resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies and financial assets
that are required to be measured at FVPL. They are carried
at fair value, with any resultant gain and loss recognised
in profit or loss, which does not include any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets. Dividend or interest
income is presented separately from fair value gain or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is:

(i) acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the
near term;

(i)  part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking on initial recognition; or

(i)  a derivative that is not a financial guarantee contract
or not a designated and effective hedging instrument.

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition as at
FVPL only if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or
recognising the gains or losses on them on different bases.

The Group’s financial assets at FVPL include equity investments
listed in Hong Kong.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities
Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the
liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value plus,
in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial
liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables
and interest-bearing borrowings. All financial liabilities, except
for financial liabilities at FVPL, are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method, unless the effect of discounting would
be insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses
(“ECL”) on financial assets that are measured at amortised cost.
At each reporting date, the Group measures a loss allowance
for a financial asset at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL if the
credit risk on that financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition. The Group measures the loss allowance for that
financial asset at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e. the
present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life of the
financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due to
an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the entity
expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument
while 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that the Group may not receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full if the financial asset that
meets any of the following criteria.

(i) information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group); or

(i) thereis abreach of financial covenants by the counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort. Irrespective of the
outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date.

Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(i) it has a low risk of default;

(i) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(iiy  adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the debtor to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.

All financial assets, except for trade receivables, are determined
to have low credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL eI RMEE

STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE2023F 1231 HILFZ

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL 2. REERTESTEE(E)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Simplified approach of ECL

B IR (&)

HMBEEEREBHMBHREEANEIRTZR
ftb I B 2 i 18 (4F)
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For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach in HEZEUFKIBEME AREERBLAE
calculating ECL. The Group recognises a loss allowance based on STEEREEEE AEERBEEEFTES
lifetime ECL at each reporting date that is based on its historical EHEEEENSAEOBRABERE I

credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired include observable data about the following events:

(@  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower.

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event.

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider.

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

® the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep
discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has no
reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual cash flows
on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Group
expects no significant recovery from the amount written off.
However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s procedures for
recovery of amounts due. Any subsequent recovery is recognised
in profit or loss.

REEREBFEEBELRUEFARLER
BRENAMERRELHE -

EEREMEEE

BRLE-HASZAESHMAMBEENGE
ARBEREELETNTER  ZMBEE
BREIREERE MBHEELREERE
MEEREFEAEATEHNABRREE

(@) EEITARMERAMER N E -
b)) BREL  PlIELHHEBHENS -
(© fERASMERA LR EE AR KR

BENEEBELEHRARERAREE
RARE TG EENFE -

(@ ERAEAAEREIETH
8 o

% E

(€ HUBRHBEABZIBEEENEZRTS
K o

M NKREFNBEXELEMBEE  ER
REHBEEER -

b6

EARKESESEEAKENEEES K
HoeaHRenER ANEERMBETBKE
o ASBETRE SIS B P W E A
fFRIE - AT - EMFHH I B EE A 6E1R
BARSEK OB EFRIENEFE E@?@%Uiﬂﬁ"
ERIBER W BRI G R E R T R

IS



110

EVER HARVEST GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED sk ' £ M % Jit A it 2 W]

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
equivalents represent short-term highly liquid investments which
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews internal
and external sources of information to determine whether there
is any indication that its property, plant and equipment and
investment properties may be impaired or impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may be reduced. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated, based on the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. Where it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the smallest group of assets that
generates cash flows independently (i.e. cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss immediately.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
periods. Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as an income
in profit or loss immediately.

Foreign currency translation

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”).

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at
period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

The results and financial position of all the group entities that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency
(“foreign operations”) are translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

° assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented, are translated at the closing rate at the end of
each reporting period;

° income and expenses for each income statement and
statement of comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rate;

o all resulting exchange differences arising from the above
translation and exchange differences arising from a
monetary item that forms part of the Group’s net investment
in a foreign operation are recognised as a separate
component of equity;

o on the disposal of a foreign operation, which includes a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation
and a disposal involving the loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to the foreign operation
that is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the separate component of equity is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the gain or
loss on disposal is recognised,;

° on the partial disposal of the Group’s interest in a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation which does not result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of the cumulative amount of the exchange differences
recognised in the separate component of equity is re-
attributed to the non-controlling interests in that foreign
operation and are not reclassified to profit or loss; and

° on all other partial disposals, the proportionate share of the
cumulative amount of exchange differences recognised in
the separate component of equity is reclassified to profit or
loss.

REMBHRRME

& Z=2023%F 12 A31 HIFFZE
2. MEEERTESHEE(E)

SN E (&)

AR A RIN 2SR EEE (s
ShETE)) R BMRE TR - AT H =
B TG -

o FJHMBRARZIMEERABRIRS
HEMROYTEZRE

o JRERFEHRERHUZTIZFH

FE 054

o MBLMBREELNELZHLBEA
KSERNEBIEBNREFELINER
HEMELENERZ8  DHEIAS/ER
B ERI#B 2

s HEBINRBE (BRLEAKENSE
SNEBN R R U REERR
BINETSEOP B R B RO IR IR HE =
R EBERESIIXBHAMNEME
[ WA AP RERR I 1A 4 P M B #B > R AT
MENZRAA SR RERLERR

HhHESEFOEERR

o MOHEAKEREB2EINEHOMNE
NEMREL B ES AR B A B
B AR ARG - R D5 R
RERBOERNELZRRF SRS
B BEXEINEEH IEER AR -
MAgEHMHEEEL &

o RABEMESLER LA ER
T ENSORBNELZRRGS

HEENOEERE -



112

EVER HARVEST GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED sk ' £ M % Jit A it 2 W]

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

The Group adopts a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation

The nature of services provided by the Group is the rendering of
feeder shipping services, carrier owned container services, sea
freight forwarding agency services and barge services.

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the services promised
in a contract with a customer and identify as a performance
obligation each promise to transfer to the customer either:

(@  aservice (or a bundle of services) that is distinct; or

(b)  a series of distinct services that are substantially the same
and that have the same pattern of transfer to the customer.

A service that is promised to a customer is distinct if both of the
following criteria are met:

(@  the customer can benefit from the service either on its own
or together with other resources that are readily available to
the customer (i.e. the service is capable of being distinct);
and

(b)  the Group’s promise to transfer the service to the customer
is separately identifiable from other promises in the contract
(i.e. the promise to transfer the service is distinct within the
context of the contract).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised service (i.e.
an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred when (or as) the
customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a service over time and, therefore,
satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over
time, if one of the following criteria is met:

(@  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

(b) the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset (for
example, work in progress) that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced; or

(c) the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the Group
satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the promised asset. In determining
when the transfer of control occurs, the Group considers the
concept of control and such indicators as legal title, physical
possession, right to payment, significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset, and customer acceptance.

Revenue from the rendering of feeder shipping services, carrier
owned container services, sea freight forwarding agency services
and barge services are recognised over time. The Group applies
the output method, i.e. based on contract milestone(s) to measure
the progress towards complete satisfaction of performance
obligation because the method provides a faithful depiction of the
Group’s performance and reliable information is available to the
Group to apply the method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured at
amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest
rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the assets while
it is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount
net of loss allowance) in case of credit- impaired financial assets.

Dividend income

Dividend income from financial assets is recognised when the
Group’s rights to receive dividend is established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably. Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at
inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-term leases
and low-value asset leases. Lease payments associated with
these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease components
from lease components, and accounts for each lease component
and any associated non-lease components as a single lease
component.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a
lease contract as a lease separately. The Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component.

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a separate
component are considered to be part of the total consideration
that is allocated to the separately identified components of the
contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at
the commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which
comprises:

(@  the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

(b)  any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

(c) any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce
inventories.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less
any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.
Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the right-of-
use asset (unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying
asset to the Group by the end of the lease term or if the cost
of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group will exercise a
purchase option — in which case depreciation is provided over
the estimated useful life of the underlying asset) as follows:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

As lessee (Continued)

Leasehold land and Over the unexpired term of leases

buildings
Containers 10 years
Leased properties Over the term of lease
Motor vehicles 5 years

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of
the contract.

The lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise the following payments for the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid at the
commencement date:

@)

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate;

amounts expected to be payable under residual value
guarantees;

exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, or where it is not readily determinable, the
incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability and by
reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount rate
when there are changes to the lease payments arising from a
change in the lease term or the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option.

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original discount
rate when there is a change in the residual value guarantee, the
in-substance fixed lease payments or the future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or a rate (other than floating
interest rate). In case of a change in future lease payments
resulting from a change in floating interest rates, the Group
remeasures the lease liability using a revised discount rate.

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement of
the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. If
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero
and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease
liability, the Group recognises any remaining amount of the
remeasurement in profit or loss.

A lease maodification is accounted for as a separate lease if:

(@  the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

(b)  the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

As lessee (Continued)

When a lease modification is not accounted for as a separate
lease, at the effective date of the lease modification,

(@)

the Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract on the basis of relative stand-alone price as
described above.

the Group determines the lease term of the modified
contract.

the Group remeasures the lease liability by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate over
the revised lease term.

for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the lease,
the Group accounts for the remeasurement of the lease
liability by decreasing the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease
and recognising any gain or loss relating to the partial or full
termination of the lease in profit or loss.

for all other lease modifications, the Group accounts
for the remeasurement of the lease liability by making a
corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)
As lessor

The Group classifies each of its leases as either a finance lease
or an operating lease at the inception date of the lease. A lease is
classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the
head lease and sublease as two separate contracts. The sublease
is classified as an operating lease if the head lease is a short-term
lease to which the Group has applied the recognition exemption.
Otherwise, the sublease is classified as a finance or operating
lease by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a lease
contract as a lease separately from non-lease components of the
contract. The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each lease component on a relative stand-alone price basis.

The Group applies the derecognition and impairment requirements
in HKFRS 9 to the operating lease receivables.

A modification to an operating lease is accounted for as a new
lease from the effective date of the modification, considering any
prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the original lease
as part of the lease payments for the new lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on the
temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of
such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income over the periods
necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to the costs
that it is intended to compensate.

Government grants received by the Group mainly represented
incentive grants from the relevant authorities in the PRC in respect
of the provision of sea freight transportation and freight forwarding
services in specific provinces in the PRC with no future service or
other conditions attached. They are recognised as income in profit
or loss when they are approved by and the cash for the grants are
received from the relevant authorities.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Preference shares are
classified as liabilities if they are redeemable at a specific date
or at the shareholders’ option; or if dividend payments are not
discretionary. Preference shares that are not redeemable, or are
redeemable only at the Company’s option; and any dividend
payments are discretionary, are classified as equity.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity
share capital (treasury shares), the consideration paid, including
any directly attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes)
is deducted from equity attributable to the Company’s owners
until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such shares
are subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net of
any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the
related income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the
Company’s owners.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

REMBHRRME

STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE2023F 1231 HILFZ

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL 2. RBEERTESBER (E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Employee benefits EEEF
Short term employee benefits FHES R

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the period in which the
associated services are rendered by employees.

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution retirement
scheme are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as incurred.
The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group had no
forfeited contribution available to reduce the contribution payable
in the future years.

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC, the
employees of the Group’s entities established in the PRC are
required to participate in defined contribution retirement plans
organised by local governments. Contributions to these plans
are expensed in profit or loss as incurred and other than these
monthly contributions, the Group has no further obligation for the
payment of retirement benefits to its employees.

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service payments
under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is the amounts
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their
services in the current and prior periods. The obligation is
calculated using the projected unit credit method and discounted
to its present value and after deducting the fair value of any
related assets, including those retirement scheme benefits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results for
the period as adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of each reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, any deferred tax
arising from initial recognition of goodwill, or other asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss is not recognised.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, tax losses and credits can be
utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investment in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences is controlled by the Group and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of the holding company of the Group.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each holding company,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

(i)  both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan,
the sponsoring employers are also related to the
Group.

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties (Continued)

(o)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a holding company of the
entity).

(vii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the holding company of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(@  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes
subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to Group’s
executive directors for the purpose of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individual material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and
judgements are made by the management in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements. They affect the application
of the Group’s accounting policies, reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They are
assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience
and relevant factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Where
appropriate, revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period of revision and future periods, in case the revision also
affects future periods.

(a) Critical judgements made in applying accounting
policies

The Group has entered into usage priority agreements
(the “Usage Priority Agreements”) or the sales & purchase
and supplemental transfer agreement (the “Transfer
Agreements”) for the preferential use on five (2022: five)
vessels with the legal owners of each vessel. According to
the Usage Priority Agreements or the Transfer Agreements,
the legal owners and the Group mutually agreed the
following key terms:

— the Group has the exclusive preferential right to use
these vessels;

— the Group has the preferential right to acquire the
interests or obtain the sales proceeds on disposal
(pre-approval by the Group in advance) of these
vessels; and

— any transfer, leasing, write-off or pledge of these
vessels have to be approved by the Group in advance.

In accordance with HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and
Equipment” (“HKAS 16”), the cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably.

REMBHRRME

& Z=2023%F 12 A31 HIFFZE
2. MEEERTESHEE(E)

AR ot (i at K H

EEENRAEMBERE S EL AR KRR
et R A R E - ARG - R RAH
ey EAKEEHRENER BEE A
&~ WA K 5 S22 3 B A Ko P4 A B
B-EREEeRERBERELABAR (B
EEEBATHESHEARREMELNAE
EH) HARMGA - RERRAHELFMG - R
ERAE St EETHERTERER BTN
[ N R SRR (2N B RRAE AT IRIBS &2 & R AR AR
R

(a) ERAEEBEEFEL R EX A B

REBECHEEERA AN (20224 -
AR MMESMMEEEHES AT
BRERHGE((BLERRHE)KES
R Ea ((2ERHR]D) - BEE
EERHRRERRR  ETHEAEAR
REBHEBTATEZER

- AEEHAEEAREMMPNBER
A

— AKEHEANEZEIMMAES
FMFHEZFMM (BAEERE
REBALE) B IHE SR E
T I

— BE L MELERZEM
RSB F RS AN K BALE -

REEBSTENFIGR[DE  BFE
I ((EBRTERF165K]) - i
EYE - BB MR EEB EANRRE
BENmAAERALRER  BIZAR
WAHEV K AR BE R St 2 - M2 B IR A
B AR R —BEE °

125



126

EVER HARVEST GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED sk ' £ M % Jit A it 2 W]

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(a)

Critical judgements made in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

The Group can demonstrate the disposal, transfer, leasing,
write-off or pledge of these vessels have to be pre-
approved by the Group. In addition, the Group can obtain
future economic benefits associated with these vessels
by exercising the exclusive preferential right to use these
vessels to provide logistic services to the customers and
obtain the sales proceeds on disposal of these vessels.
Therefore, the management of the Group considered that
the future economic benefits associated with the exclusive
preferential use of these vessels are expected to flow
to the Group. Accordingly, the aggregate net carrying
amount of these five (2022: five) vessels of approximately
HK$22,364,000 (2022: HK$22,120,000) was recorded
under property, plant and equipment.

In accordance with HKAS 38 “Intangible Assets” (“HKAS
38”), some intangible assets may be contained in or on a
physical substance. In determining whether an asset that
incorporates both intangible and tangible elements should
be treated under HKAS 16 or as an intangible asset under
HKAS 38, the entity uses judgement to assess which
element is more significant.

The management of the Group, based on the terms set out
in the Usage Priority Agreements, the Transfer Agreements
and the actual usage of these vessels, considered that in
substance the Group is able to use these vessels and obtain
future economic benefits through the usage of these vessels
physically as if it was the legal owners throughout the period
covered by the Usage Priority Agreements or the Transfer
Agreements. Accordingly, these vessels are recorded by the
Group as property, plant and equipment under HKAS 16.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

()

(i)

(i)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The management determines the estimated useful
lives of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of the relevant assets of similar nature and
functions. The estimated useful lives could be different
as a result of technical innovations which could affect
the related depreciation charges included in profit or
loss.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, and
investment properties

The management determines whether the Group’s
property, plant and equipment and investment
properties are impaired when an indication of
impairment exists. This requires an estimation of
the recoverable amount of the property, plant and
equipment, and investment properties, which is
equal to the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and the value in use. Estimating the value in use
requires the management to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the property, plant
and equipment, and investment properties, and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. Any impairment
will be charged to profit or loss.

Based on fair value calculation, an impairment losses
of HK$1,967,000 on investment properties were
recognised during the year (2022: nil).

Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss
allowance for trade receivables by using various
inputs and assumptions including but not limited to
risk of default. The estimation involves high degree of
uncertainty which is based on the Group’s historical
information, existing market conditions as well as
forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying amount of trade receivables. Details of the
key assumption and inputs used in estimating ECL
are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

Identification of lease

At the inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether a contract is, or contains, a lease based on
the requirements of HKFRS 16 and all the relevant
facts and circumstances. In particular, the Group
assesses whether the contract involves the use of an
identified asset by applying the concept of substantive
substitution right. Also, the Group assesses whether
the Group or the customer has the right to direct
the use of the identified asset with reference to
determination of which party has the decision-making
rights that are most relevant to changing how and for
what purpose the asset is used. In cases where such
decisions are predetermined, the right to operate the
asset or the incorporation of such decisions by means
of designing the asset are considered.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business, where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impair the
income tax and deferred tax provision in the period in
which such determination is made.

Revenue recognition

The Group’s revenue from feeder shipping services,
carrier owned container services, sea freight
forwarding agency services and barge services are
recognised over a period of time based on contract
milestone(s). The management has to assess the
relevancy of milestone(s) for each type of contract
with customer in order to determine the recognition
point(s) of revenue. The recognition of revenue is
therefore owning to the inherent risk associated with
the management’s judgement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Future changes in HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/revised
HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current year, which the
Group has not early adopted.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current !
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants '
Amendments to HKAS 7 and Supplier Finance Arrangements '
HKFRS 7
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback '
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability 2
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and ~ Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture @

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025
8 The effective date to be determined

The management does not anticipate that the adoption of these
new/revised HKFRSs in future periods will have any material
impact on the financial performance and financial position of the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

3.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors have been identified as the chief operating
decision-makers. The executive directors review the Group’s
internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate
resources. Management has determined the operating segments
based on these reports.

The executive directors assess the performance of the Group’s
business from a route perspective for the feeder shipping services,
the carrier owned container services and the barge services and a
collective perspective for sea freight forwarding agency services.

Segment results represent the gross profit earned or gross loss
incurred by each segment without allocation of other income
net, impairment losses on investment properties, reversal of loss
allowance on trade and other receivables, net, administrative
and other operating expenses, finance costs and income tax
expenses.

No analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by operating
segments is presented as it is not regularly provided to the chief
operating decision-makers for review.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 3k

REMBHRRME

& Z=2023F 12 A31 HIFFE
3. oHER

HITEFCHERERTIELERRA - 1T
EXFHNAKENALREEHAFERER
RORER EEECREZSHREERK

BHH -

PSR AR TS ~ AGE A B A MRS K M R
BME RITEEUMKRTERAEREBER
B 8 L BERERGRIAREEESRRE -

DEEBREEDMARBOENKELENE
BRs EPTEREMKRAFE RKEY
EREBRFE BHREMEERFARER
BEpgE TREEMLERT  BEKAK
KRG HRASEL AR -

MR IFEMATEZLERRERHAKE
BRENHEIMNEERABETEN R
WEEHN BN -



EVER HARVEST GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED 7k ' £ [& % it % Fi 24w
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 3%}

131

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL e BHRRME
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE2023F 1231 HILFZ
3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 3. PoHERE)
Sea freight
forwarding
agency Fujian Guangxi  Guangdong Hainan
services routes routes routes routes  Unallocated Total
BryE
RERH REMSG i ERME BEME KOE @5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TEx A AR TEx TEx TEx

Year ended 31 December 2023 HZ200BE12A3BLEE

Revenue from external customers REMPRFEHME 46,933 60,802 137,497 64,333 82,655 - 392,220
Cost of services R RA (37,877) (51,254) (113,913) (53,231) (67,581) - (323,856)
Segment results PHEE 9,056 9,548 23,584 11,102 15,074 - 68,364

Unallocated income and expenses KA EMA RFZ

Other income, net W AFE 15,069
Impairment losses on investment RENERERE

properties (1,967)
Reversal of lossalowance ontrade 2 5 R At e B 18

and other receivables, net RERODER 328
Administrative and other TRREMEERS

operating expenses (78,236)
Finance costs BERA (2,873)
Profit before tax BEAET 685
Income tax expenses FEBES (172)
Profit for the year FEEM 513
Other information EMEH
Depreciation of property, nE - BERERENE

plant and equipment - 589 1,212 1,563 767 5,240 9,371
Depreciation of investment properties  R&NEHE - - - - - 2,590 2,590
Impairment losses on investment RENERERE

properties - - = = = 1,967 1,967
Lease payments under RHEAEET HERT

short-term leases - 11,826 30,430 3,051 17,859 302 63,468
Reversal of loss allowance on B REMENFERR

trade and other receivables, net RERODER @) @ (272) o) (40) - (328)

Capital expenditures EXRY - 643 1,455 681 875 215 3,869
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL e MBRRME
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE2023F 12431 HILFZ
3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 3. oHER(E)
Sea freight
forwarding
agency Fujian Guangxi  Guangdong Hainan
services routes routes routes routes  Unallocated Total
BLEE
RERE REME ERfE ERfE BEME KA @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiET FiT FiEr FiEr FAT FiET FiET
Year ended 31 December 2022 HEN2F12A31B1LEE
Revenue from external customers RENPE Pl 89,518 93,044 277,696 107,215 88,045 - 655,518
Cost of services FRIEPLAR (75,665) (66,333) (238,884) (89,135) (81,691) - (551,708)
Segment results PHEE 13,853 26,711 38,812 18,080 6,354 - 103,810
Unallocated income and expenses A EMA RS
Other income, net EAEE 11,859
Administrative and other TRREMEERS
operating expenses (80,835)
Finance costs BERK (1,938)
Profit before tax AR 32,89
Income tax expenses B (6,254)
Profit for the year FEEMN 27,642
Other information AtEH
Depreciation of property, nE - BERERENE
plant and equipment - 589 1,631 1,606 563 4,662 8,951
Depreciation of investment properties & MENE - - - - - 2,590 2,590
Lease payments under RHHEETCHENT
short-term leases - 16,412 16,910 5,299 29,892 363 68,876
Capital expenditures EXRY - - - 10,928 - 1,439 12,367
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL e MBEmRME

STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE2023F 1231 HILFZ

3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 3. PoHERE)
Geographical information EER

The following table sets out information about the geographical
location of the Group’s property, plant and equipment and
investment properties (the “Specified non-current assets”). The
geographical location of the Specified non-current assets is based
on the physical location of the assets (in the case of vessels, the
location at which they are registered and operated).

TREIAEEYE - BB LREARKE
WER(EEFRRDEE]) BAEBEIDNE
felEERBEENAEMREENER
BB D (A - AIRESFHEM R E
&)

Specified non-current assets EEFRBEE

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FHAET
Hong Kong BB 126,615 135,889
The PRC a3 38,102 39,237
164,717 175,126

Information about major customers FBRFEEFHNESR

Details of the entities individually accounting for 10% or more
of aggregate revenue of the Group during the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

RE E 20234 2202212 A31BILEE -
BERME AR EE IR ZZ10% A 2 B Em
T

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$000

FET FET

Customer A and its affiliated companies ERPANMEEE QA o 82,190
* The corresponding revenue did not contribute 10% or more of the total HZE2023F12 A1 AIEFEB ARG BIHAE

revenue of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2023.

U 25 10% KA £ -
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REMBHRRME

& Z=2023F 12 A31 HIFFE

4. REVENUE 4. WH
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Revenue from contracts with customers ZHAEMEHREXEDE15HKEHER
within HKFRS 15, recognised over time REZEFSXHINE - BB
EBRR
Rendering of feeder shipping services IR MRS 308,326 490,516
Rendering of carrier owned container services 12 ff#:E A B & £4 IR 75 36,332 75,040
Rendering of sea freight forwarding agency 128 F &2 K IB IR
services 46,933 89,518
Rendering of barge services IR M AR 7 629 444
392,220 655,518
5. OTHER INCOME, NET 5. HtsWAFHE
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Bank interest income RITR B U A 1,420 230
Dividend income A& B A 112 164
Exchange gain, net & 5 e zs - JFEE 1,584 436
Net loss on financial assets at FVPL (Note 16) & A EE ABH M B EE
BB IR % RR (M2t 16) (1,579) (1,415)
Gain on disposals of property, HEWE - BERFZEN R
plant and equipment 164 -
Gain on lease modification HEEFT W= 5 -
Government grants (Note i) BT R Bh (KT ati) 11,416 9,758
Government subsidies (Note ii) BT R BL (B atii) - 888
Rental income e WA 1,680 280
Sales of scrap containers HEREERM - 489
Sundry income B A 267 1,029
15,069 11,859

Note:

(i)

These government grants were mainly the incentives for rewarding
the Group’s efforts in stabilising container shipping capacity and laden
containers, and were in the sole discretion of the local government, subject
to relevant PRC laws, regulations and policies. Under the terms of grants, the
Group has to fulfill certain containers shipping volume and obtain approval
from local authorities.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group received funding
support from the Employment Support Scheme under the Anti-epidemic
Fund, set up by The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. The purpose of the funding was to provide financial support
to enterprises to retain their employees who would otherwise be made
redundant. Under the terms of the grant, the Group was required not to
make redundancies during the subsidy period and to spend all the funding
on paying wages to the employees.

[0} BUR# B = B 7 RE) RSB N2 E S RAEHIERE
NEMESEEBEHEMEENBDEE  ditHHR
F2ERERY > TAZBERTEER ERREK
RAARE - REBZSHIGK  ARBEAEERET
SRBRBEEW ST EBALLAE -

(ii) HZE2022F 12 A31HILFE - AEBESESE
BT EB TS AP E RS R &
BB ZIBEHMBEMER AL EREMBEIE -
NEERAEBEBNE T - RIBEMER A&
EEEBHANTEHE WHEMEEMARZHE
BWMIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL GEMBHRRMEE
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

6.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

This is stated after charging (crediting):

& Z=2023%F 12 A31 HIFFZE

6. FR¥AIRA
BN (GEA) T35 HIEFIER -

135

2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FAET
Finance costs RLE R A
Interest on interest-bearing borrowings FTEB AT A 2,779 1,840
Finance charges on lease liabilities HERGENREER 94 98
2,873 1,938
Other items Hihig g
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration) 8 TEA (B35 % £ 5 i)
Salaries, bonus and allowances TFHd - B4 RoEBEL 46,180 47,220
Contributions to defined contribution plans TEFRGERET B3k (AT aT)
(Note) 4,267 4,487
50,447 51,707
Auditor’s remuneration 1% BRI %7 B
— audit services — BB 785 725
— other services — HAn R 135 115
Depreciation of property, plant and W BEREETE
equipment (charged to “Cost of services” (T ATBRFS R A |
and “Administrative and other operating [FTH  E A4 2 B 7
expenses”, as appropriate) (REEA)) 9,371 8,951
Depreciation of investment properties HEMEFE 2,590 2,590
Direct operating expenses relating to BBV EELHESWAD
investment properties that REMENEEE BRI
generated rental income 468 484
Exchange gains, net fE W B 1R - F R (1,584) (436)
Impairment losses on investment properties & ¥ 2 B E 18 1,967 -
Lease payments on feeder vessels and EHBEEET Ik
barges under short-term leases BARNEENR
(charged to “Cost of services”) (GTFATBRF A A L) 63,166 68,513
Lease payments on premises under EHEEBETEMNEENK
short-term leases 302 363

Reversal of loss allowance on trade and
other receivables, net

B 5 REMERGIAEIBE#E
B EERR (328)
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6.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONTINUED)

Note:

The Group has participated in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) for its qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered
with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of an independent
trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the scheme at the rates specified in the rules.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the
required contributions under the scheme. Under the MPF Scheme, there will not be
any forfeited contribution available to reduce the contribution payable by the Group.

In accordance with rules and regulations in the PRC, the employees of the Group’s
entities established in the PRC are required to participate in defined contribution
retirement plans organised by local government. Contributions to those plans are
expensed as incurred and other than these monthly contributions and the Group has
no further obligation for the payment of the retirement benefits to its employees. No
forfeited contributions were used to reduce the current year’s level of contributions
and no forfeited contribution was available at 31 December 2023 and 2022 to
reduce future year’s contributions.

The retirement benefits cost charged to profit or loss represents contributions
payable to the schemes by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the MPF
Scheme and the defined contribution retirement plans in the PRC.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 £ #

e RRME
& Z=2023F 12 A31 HIFFE

6. FR®imIEA (&)

Kt -

ALEEATRAERER2ERTEATRES S ([@E
T8l - BB DRBEFEREIEREEEED
FRHIEATE S EIEIRREM - BRESHE 2 EETA
BIYEHAZN RS/ YEAKEZEEDH R
BERESHEART BEIREERASARAERAZL
Kzt EMER R - AEBRBESFEBE T 2E—&
ERBBEZTEELAF RN - REBESHE - HER
DR WY R AT R HURA S B AT R -

RIEFEMRBRAG  NREBRFBEKZAHEEET R
BAZNEBEHRTZENTREHIGER KRGS - ZF5 8
ZEHFNRELERIZHE  BEAEEHZKIN REEHER
1B B X AHEREF A K B AT - BB A MR I 5304
AR EFEHFOKTE - LA R 2023 4F 12022 4 12 A 31 A
43502 U K RT AR R AR PR FE A3

MRS HBRARREF K AR AR EEZRBES 8 R P
FERBFURRET BIROR B A4 E MO L R A% 5T 8IS T #9
HK e
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7. INFORMATION ABOUT THE BENEFITS OF 7. EEEMNNEHR
DIRECTORS
(a) Directors’ remuneration (a) EEHH
The aggregate amounts of remuneration received or ARRIESE ([EF]) B Yk et a &
receivable by the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) BEEHTIA T X ¢

are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2023 BZ2023F12A31ALEE
Contributions
to defined
Directors’ Salaries and Discretionary contribution
fees allowances bonus plans Total
mEEMR
STEIEHM
=N HERER AL (B3 @5t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FEL
Executive directors HITEE
Lau Yu Leung ZEs - 4,290 2,000 - 6,290
Lau Tak Fung Wallace fliEg - 3,004 188 27 3,219
Lau Tak Kee Henry L - 2,669 173 27 2,869
Non-executive director FHTEE
Tong Hung Sum ERR 660 - 110 - 770
Independent non-executive ~ BV FHTEE
directors
Lo Wan Sing Vincent ER R 120 - - - 120
Lam Lo ok 120 - - - 120
Lee Ka Lun FRE 200 - - - 200
Kam, Eddie Shing Cheuk Hiklg 120 - - - 120
1,220 9,963 2,471 54 13,708
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023

7.

Year ended 31 December 2022

INFORMATION ABOUT THE BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (Continued)

FEMBERRME
HZE2023F 1231 HIFFE
7. EEEMNNER ()

(@) EZ=FHM (&)
HE2022F 12 A31HILEE

Contributions
to defined
Directors’  Salariesand  Discretionary  contribution
fees allowances bonus plans Total
EhatlaT
ATEIELA)
ESHe HeREE WIEEA {3 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Executive directors HITEE
Lau Yu Leung f|ms - 3,900 4,000 - 7,900
Lau Tak Fung Wallace 3Ee - 2,054 632 18 2,704
Lau Tak Kee Henry BEH - 1,859 572 18 2,449
Non-executive director FHTEE
Tong Hung Sum BB 585 - 135 - 720
Independent non-executive ~ BUFEHITEE
directors
Lo Wan Sing Vincent &5k 120 - - - 120
Lam Lo i 120 - - - 120
Lee Ka Lun FRE 200 - - - 200
Kam, Eddie Shing Cheuk Hil 120 - - - 120
1,145 7,813 5,339 36 14,333

Mr. Lau Tak Fung Wallace is also the chief executive officer
of the Company and his emoluments disclosed above
included those for services rendered by him as the chief
executive officer.

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the Directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as a
compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement
under which a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022,

BB RENMBARRRZITHARE -
EXFRBEREsMEE BRERIERSTRE
BRERBHAEZME -

REE2023F 202212 A31 H IF4F
EHE AEEMERZEEE I MNE
e - EARIIEEIMAKMARE
] I ) 42 B ok B B 4R (2 o Y B2 2023
FR2022F12A3IBILEE HES
EWENXRBEREEAF I L -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

7. INFORMATION ABOUT THE BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in
favour of Directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour
of the Directors or their controlled companies that were
entered into or subsisted during the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Saved as disclosed in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other transactions, arrangements and
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company was a party and in which a director
of the Company, or a connected entity of the director, had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the year or at any time during the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022.

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

There was no consideration provided to or receivable by any
third party for making available the services of a person as a
Director, or in any other capacity while as a Director during
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

8. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

An analysis of the five highest paid individuals during the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

REMBERRME
B FE2023F 12 F31 HILFE
7. EBERANEHR (&)
b) AREERZRANER EER

(c)

(d)

REMRS

HE20234F K2022F 12 A31 B |[F4F
& WEET S S ANRERMAE R HF
EZENFAIBTAZER EERR
Htpx 5 o

EERXRE RBHENFZE
A

BRRGAE TS REMF26NTIEEE
SN - LA T SR L = 2023 F [ 2022 FF
12 A31 HIEFE R E £2023F &
2022F 12 A31 B ILFERNEREED
REM HAFEEZEBBEN BX
NREENEENHEHER (THRER
SEBE)REFHBEEAERZ RS
THERAH -

RREHESERBEMAFE =7 XM
BB

H E20234F K2022%F 12 A31 8 |F4F
B UWEpRE -2 ALTRENESZRS
(KB EETEEHBAEM H 5 IRE)
Mk ENERNE=AZRE -

LTEBREHFAT
RE E 20234 & 2022412 A31 B It F [ Hf
MR AEEeHALTHITOT :

Number of individuals

AE
2023 2022
Director ) 3 3
Non-director FESR 2 2
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8.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(CONTINUED)

Details of the remuneration of the above highest paid non-
director individuals are as follows:

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 3k

e RRME
& Z=2023F 12 A31 HIFFE

8. IEEZSHAL (A

PSS HEFEEALHFMFENT

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Salaries and allowances & KRBk 1,892 1,794
Discretionary bonus 1B IEAL 146 476
Contributions to defined contribution plans M) JE B8 5K AT 81 /B AU L3R 36 20
2,074 2,290

The number of non-director individuals whose emoluments were
within the following emoluments bands:

MENFTIBENFEEALABDT

2023 2022

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 % 7T 1 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 /%8 7T & 1,500,000 /% 7T 1 2
2 2

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to any of these highest paid
non-director individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group, or as a compensation for loss of office. There was no
arrangement under which any of these highest paid non-director
individuals waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments for the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

R E E 2023 4F K 2022 F 12 A 31 B |- F & 8
M ASEMENZSESHIEEETA LY
MEMHH - (EARSIFEEMASRMARE
BB BERAEE R E2023F &
2022F 12 A BEILFE MESRSHIIEE
EATHEXBEREZETAHSOTHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL mEMBRRME
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE2023F 1231 HILFZ
9. TAXATION 9. BE
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&T
Current tax B EABi 1R
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEFEH
Current year REE 834 5,201
(Over) Under provision in prior years BEFE (BEEE) BETR (662) 53
Total income tax expenses for the year REZ ST B 172 5,254

The group entities established in the Cayman Islands and the BVI
are exempted from income tax.

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the
assessable profits of a Hong Kong incorporated subsidiary of the
Group (as elected by the management of the Group) was subject
to the two-tiered profits tax rates regime that the first HK$2 million
of assessable profits would be taxed at 8.25%, and assessable
profits above HK$2 million would be taxed at 16.5%. The Hong
Kong Profits Tax of other Hong Kong incorporated subsidiaries of
the Group was calculated at 16.5% of their respective estimated
assessable profits for the both years, except for two of the
subsidiaries in Hong Kong with estimated assessable profits for
the year ended 31 December 2023 were wholly absorbed by
unrelieved tax losses brought forward from previous years.

SEETRAHENABRELEBENILH
ERERCEAMPAEN o

HE2023F K2022F 12 A31HIEEE - &
EE R EBEMKRIZHB AR (AASE
EEEEKRE) 2R FIEMBFEH X
HIE B - H B 2,000,000 78 7T FE R B i B 45
LA8.25% 2 ®i & -+ 1M 48 #8.2,000,000 7% 7T
2 R TR i R HE A 16.5% 2 T R TH - A&
EEMREBSEMALZHMB AR —BIRE
ZEARMEFE 2 ERTEFRZ16.5%
AERENESR  HEMEAT BB AR NE
£2023F 12 A1 H L F R B IHFTERM
wmA o THAAFELAENRBARIEES
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

9. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

The Group’s entities established in the PRC are subject to
Enterprise Income Tax of the PRC at a statutory rate of 25% for
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. For the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, PRC Enterprise Income
Tax has not been provided as the PRC subsidiaries have no

assessable profits.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 3k

FEMBERRME
HZE2023F 1231 HIFFE
9. PiIE (&)

RE E 20234 2022512 A31B IEEE -
AN E2 B PR R B AR S B B B8 B R 25% YA TE Y
KM EMER - NEE2023F &
2022F 12 A1 BIEFE ARFRAWBA
AW MmERT A AW EAT IR B2
FRiS#i -

Reconciliation of income tax expenses FreBim YR
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FA&T
Profit before tax B 5 AT A 685 32,896
Income tax at applicable tax rate of 16.5% #£16.5% M E AR ETER ST
(2022: 16.5%) (2022 : 16.5%) 113 5,428
Effect on graduated tax rate WER R 8 (165) (165)
Non-deductible expenses/losses R HFR S B8 992 711
Tax exempt revenue/profits BARBU 5T (900) (1,629)
Tax effect of tax rate difference of Hin A EAREHEEZENTBLE
other jurisdiction (2 (26)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax BB RIARER 2 IEEE
losses (84) ©)
Unrecognised tax losses RERTIBEE 310 228
(Over) Under provision in prior years BEFE (BEEE BETR (662) 53
Others, including unrecognised temporary Hih BREAERYGRIEESE
differences 570 659
Income tax expenses for the year FEMSHAX 172 5,254

Tax exempt revenue/profits mainly included revenue/profits
not taxed in Hong Kong under section 23B of the Hong Kong
Inland Revenue Ordinance for being carriage shipped outside
Hong Kong and the government subsidies received from the

Employment Support Scheme.

BAERBIW 5 F B BE B EF B A
Holem WO R BB X PR AT - BARBE B (T 1%
17) % 23B & B AR B A U zs, i FIA R AR IR
[MRBLEE |5 U BT FH RS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023

10. DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the
equity holders of the Company is based on the following data:

e BHRRME
& Z=2023%F 12 A31 HIFFZE
10. RE

11.

EEEeT I TEZREZE2023F12 A31H Ik
FEIRMNERIRR S (2022 F : ££) -
BRER

ARBERFTEARGEERERANTIRE
A TEIERFE -

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Earnings 27
Profit for the year attributable to the equity TESRERZFMANARF
holders of the Company for the purpose BmEE AREFEE ST
of basic earnings per share 513 27,642
2023 2022
’000 ‘000
Number of shares BEEE FiR FAR
Weighted average number of ordinary STEEREARRBTATAN
shares for the purpose of calculating I35 A% N 39 &
basic earnings per share 1,550,000 1,550,000

Diluted earnings per share is same as basic earnings per share as
there were no potential ordinary shares outstanding during years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

BARE E2023E K2022FE 12 A31 A ILEE
WEBEETEIINEBR  WEREERF
BGREREFER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL GLEMBHRERMEE
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE2023F 12431 HILFZ

12. SUBSIDIARIES 12. K& E

Details of the subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period are as

REEEE - HEARQFEMT

follows:
Place and date of Particulars of Effective equity
incorporation/ paid up capital/ interests held by Principal activities/
Name establishment  registered capital the Company place of operation
S, BREX/ LNGIESE ST
£ BB A HEMERFE BERRAER TEEY EEBY
Directly Indiirectly
BE &
Ever Harvest Investments Limited The BVI US$1 100% = Investment holding/
(“Ever Harvest (BVI)") 16 November 2015 e Hong Kong
KERERRRA RERAHE REER/BE
(k8 (RBERT#HES)]) 2015%11 A 168
Ever Harvest International Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% Investment holding/
Holdings Limited 24 December 2015 10,0008 7T Hong Kong
XEHKRZERERLDA B0 REER/ BB
201512 424 H
Greater China Shipping Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% Investment holding/
AHRERBERAF 11 November 2015 1787 Hong Kong
0 REBRR/BE
201511 A1 H
Ever Harvest Shipping Limited Hong Kong HK$10,002,000 - 100% Rendering of sea freight
(“Ever Harvest”) 11 August 1992 10,002,000 7T transportation and freight
KEMBERRE(KE]) N forwarding services/
1992F8H11H Hong Kong
RUEBIEEREE
KBRS/ BB
Xiamen Harvest Shipping Limited Hong Kong HK$100,300 - 100% Rendering of sea freight
(“Xiamen Harvest”) 23 June 1993 100,30075 7T transportation service/
BELMBARRA e Hong Kong
(TESMmB)) 199346 A23H REE L EERE/BE
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STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023

12. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

REMBHRRME

& Z=2023%F 12 A31 HIFFZE

12. B A T (&)

Place and date of Particulars of Effective equity
incorporation/ paid up capital/ interests held by Principal activities/
Name establishment  registered capital the Company place of operation
S, BREX/ VNNCTESZ T
8 Bt ERAH HMERFE ERRAESR TEED EEnY
Directly Indlirectly
EBE B
Millions Good Limited Hong Kong HK$2 = 100% Rendering of barge services/
(“Millions Good”) 11 January 2017 2787 Hong Kong
FTHERAR () 0 REBHRE/ BB
2017F1 AR
KEEBREE(RI)BERAAS The PRC Renminbi - 100% Provision of freight
(Ever Harvest International 18 October 2004  (“RMB’) 8,000,000 forwarding service/the PRC
Logistics (Shenzhen) Limited) REY ARE(ARE]) RESERERE,/F
2004F10 418 H 8,000,0007T
AT ENRERD RS The PRC RMBS8,500,000 - 100% Provision of freight
(Shenzhen Ever Harvest 15 Apri 2002 A K #8,500,0007T forwarding and feeder
Logistics Co., Limited) hE" rental services/the PRC
20024 H15H REEERER I HM
&R,/ +
ATkt YR AR AR The PRC" RMB1,000,000 - 100%  Provision of freight forwarding
(Shenzhen Forever Harvest 24 July 2013 AR %1,000,0007C consulting/the PRC
Logistics Limited*) HE REEEREZH/
20137 H24H
Eternity Hong Kong Investment Hong Kong HK$2 - 100% Properties holding/
Limited (“Eternity HK”) 24 May 2011 2% 7T Hong Kong
BMEEREERAA B BENE/BE
(Mef&s]) 201145R24H
© oo compen ol 1 o P st e ity 2B
) ) ) & RPBIKIHEREEAR
# Being a wholly foreign owned enterprise

Being a wholly owned enterprise in the PRC

’ REINERELE
. RPBRIABEDRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL e MBRRME
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE2023F 12431 HILFZ
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y%  BMERRE
Leasehold Furniture,
land and Leased Leasehold Motor fixtures and Leased Owned Feeder
buildings  properties improvements  vehicles equipment containers containers vessels Barges Total
HELH i

kT HENE AsEE RE LERRE REKEE BEEERE  XBMM B @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAET FAET FAET FET FEL FET FET FET

Reconciliation of carrying EERHAEHE-EZE
amount — year ended 202246128 31H

31 December 2022 LEE
At 1 January 2022 R202%F1R1R 70,150 1,983 392 3,376 199 110 6,697 4,349 13,273 100,529
Additions NE - 1,385 - - 54 - 1,848 19,103 - 22,390
Depreciation it 2802 (1,19) (314 (048) {127 15 (1338 (1,268 o5  B%I)
Exchange realignments B AR (34) (79 - (34 - - 13 (64) - (198)
At 31 December 2022 R2022F12A31 8 67,314 2,093 78 2,394 126 95 7,222 22,120 12,328 113,770

Reconciliation of carrying EREEHE-8Z
amount — year ended 2023128310

31 December 2023 LEE
At 1 January 2023 R2023F1 A 1R 67,314 2,093 78 2,394 126 95 7,222 22,120 12,328 113,770
Additions WE - 101 - 185 30 - - 3,654 - 3,970
Transfers Ete - - - - - (95) 95 - - -
Disposals HE - - - - - - )] - - )]
Modification 5] - 1,308 - - - - - - - 1,308
Depreciation wE (2,796) (1,252) (78) 872) (66) - (1,404) (1,958) (945) (9,371)
Exchange realignments LA (43) (129) - ©) (6) - 111) (1,452) - (1,750)
At 31 December 2023 R2023%128310 64,475 2,121 - 1,698 84 - 5,793 22,364 11,383 107,918

At 31 December 2022 12022512318

Cost A 81,301 4,306 1570 10,087 1413 147 28,555 31,251 15950 175430
Acoumulated depreciation  ZiHHTE (13,987) (2,213) (1,492) (8,543) (1,287) (52 (21339 ©,131) (3622 (61660
67,314 2,003 78 2,394 126 95 7,002 22,120 1238 113770

At 31 December 2023 R2023F12A 318
Cost A 81,181 4016 1570 11,085 1,406 - 2825 32840 15950 176,263
Accumulated depreciation  ZEHAE (16708 (1895 (1570 (@357  (1,322) - (22452  (10476)  (4567)  (68,345)

64,475 2,121 - 1,698 84 - 5,793 22,364 11,383 107,018
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13.

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2023, the Group had five (2022: five) vessels
under the Usage Priority Agreements (2022: Usage Priority
Agreements or the Transfer Agreements). According to the Usage
Priority Agreements or the Transfer Agreements, the Group has
the exclusive preferential right to use these five (2022: five) vessels
and to acquire the interests or obtain the sales proceeds of
disposal, which has to be approved by the Group in advance, of
these five (2022: five) vessels. The Group considers that it, in
substance, is able to use these five vessels and obtain the future
economic benefits through the usage of these five vessels
physically as if it was the legal owners throughout the period
covered by the Usage Priority Agreements or the Transfer
Agreements. Accordingly, the aggregate net carrying amount of
approximately HK$22,364,000 (2022: HK$22,120,000) was
recorded under property, plant and equipment. Details of the
accounting treatments are set out in Note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements.

REMBHRRME

& Z=2023%F 12 A31 HIFFZE

13.

M2 - W= KR (&)

R20283F 12 A31H  AEEREBELFER
Wik (20224F © (BSL(EF lpas L B2 2% g i) R
BRME (20224 : TAE) MM - RIBBEER
WERREEGR ASEREFERZ A
(20224 : AAZ) ey - WIEE P R EE
HEZTM (20224 : HAZ) MR (B E LB
BAREERE) HEMBHRENBRELE -
AEERSHER FEMFERZAEMMIL
B EFRAZ AN AES RGBS
MUEREEFERGEIEEREZERAM
NEETHEEA Rt W% BERZE
8% 15 BR )% (B #4258 49 22,364,000 78 7T (2022
F 1 22,120,000/87T) - GETEE AR -
NG A HRRM T2 -

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 14. FRAEEE
Details of the right-of-use assets (included in property, plant and FREEE GTAYE BENMEE) 2FE
equipment) are as follow: wmr
Leasehold
land and Leased Motor
buildings properties  Containers vehicles Total
HELH#
kEgF HEWE 3] "= st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FExT
At 31 December 2023 R2023F12A31H
Carrying amount REE 64,475 2,121 - 692 67,288
At 31 December 2022 R2022F12A31H
Carrying amount RHE 67,314 2,093 95 2,272 71,774
For the year ended B Z2023F12A31H
31 December 2023 IEFE
Depreciation e 2,796 1,252 - 654 4,702
For the year ended B Z2022F12A31H
31 December 2022 LtFEE
Depreciation e 2,802 1,196 15 808 4,821
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14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group leases various leased
properties, containers and motor vehicles for its operation. Lease
contracts are entered into for fixed term of more than 1 to 5 years.
Certain leases of containers and motor vehicles were accounted
for as leases during the years ended 31 December 2023 and the
weighted average effective interest rate on the obligations under
leases was 2% (2022: 4%). Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the length
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a
contract and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns several leasehold land and buildings
and is the registered owner of these property interests, including
the underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum payments were made
upfront to acquire these property interests. The leasehold land
components of these owned properties are presented separately
only if the payments made can be allocated reliably.

At 31 December 2023, leasehold land and buildings with an

aggregate net book value of approximately HK$63,749,000 (2022:

HK$66,458,000) were pledged to secure banking facilities granted
to the Group (Note 20).

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings were situated in Hong
Kong and the PRC under original leases terms between 50 to 70
years. At 31 December 2023, the remaining leases terms of the
Group’s leasehold land and buildings were between 20 to 42
years (2022: 21 to 43 years).

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 %

e RRME
& Z=2023F 12 A31 HIFFE

14. EREEE (&)

MR20234F N 2022F12 A31H @ K&EEHEA
ZHRHEEYMHE SEMRABENETEE -
Fral eI A B E R EAER1 E5F - REE
2023F12AG1HLFE EHTEEH A
EARELAEE MEERENMETLHE
PRFE B2% (20224F 1 4%) - HEER IR
BEEBEEEMBE  EFEs5ETRMK
K o TR E M HA R AT A S AT 40EE /Y AP
R AEEERASGANEEYETSLNA
R B BITHY AR ©

o AEEHEAZREEL W RET W
RuSYEks (BREEREELI ) WEM
BEAN WBEZSWERZHSRLIEL—
FBMNR - RBEEH A SEE D FTEL A
M3 ZF8AENHEELLEO T €
BHEY -

MR2023F 12 A31H A FELEY
63,749,000% 7T (2022 4F : 66,458,000,% 7T )
ZHELHMNEFEMIFIEREEERERT
EE A (HiE20) -

AEBMBEELHMREFMNREBERTER -
BERHAEFHN F50270F 72023 F
12A818  AEEMNHEE LW RIEFHOHRT
FAHAN T 20 & 42 6F (2022 4F : 21 2 434F) »
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REMBHRRME

& Z=2023%F 12 A31 HIFFZE

. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

15. REYHE

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Reconciliation of carrying amount BRTEE W E R

At the beginning of the reporting period RS B4 61,356 63,946
Depreciation weE (2,590) (2,590)
Impairment VERED (1,967) =
At the end of the reporting period R &R 56,799 61,356
Cost B 7R 73,367 73,367

Accumulated depreciation and impairment Rt ERREEE
losses (16,568) (12,011)
Net carrying amount AREFEE 56,799 61,356
Fair value AFE 56,800 61,700

The directors have reviewed the carrying value of investment
properties and determined that the recoverable amount from the
use or sale of certain of these assets is lower (2022: higher) than
their carrying amount. Accordingly, impairment losses on
investment properties of approximately HK$1,967,000 (2022: nil)
was recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2023.

The fair values of investment properties are under level 3 of the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined under HKFRS 13. At 31
December 2023, the fair values of investment properties were
valued by an independent professional qualified valuer, who has
relevant experience in the location and category of the investment
properties being valued, on an open market basis by comparison
approach assuming sale with the benefit of vacant possession or
by making reference to comparable approach sale evidence as
available in the relevant market. Recent sale price of comparable
properties in close proximity adjusted for differences in key
valuation attributes, such as size and age, were used to value the
investment properties. The most significant input into this
valuation approach is the price per square feet.

The fair value measurement was based on the highest and best
use of the investment properties, which did not differ from their
existing use.

EEEEGREVEZREE  THREER
FHELETHREELEEEENAKESBER
(20224 . BR)EEFEmME - At EREZE
202312 AGTHIEFEMNEERIEEY
EREEIB 41,967,000 T (2022 4F © ##) o

BREWENRATEBRE B EREERSE
13T AT =ZEERAFELEENE =R -
R2023F 128318 - REMWENRAFER
B BEAERGHEM(FHEZEIGHEMNEE
MENMVE RBRAEHEBLER) IZARMES
EE DU EE(BRERETHE) 2 EHE
MENAELBREEEBRETHE -FHEK
ﬁ%%%%%%LTﬁK?%%WL%EF
THEZHERR(GINABERER NER
%ﬁﬁ% IEER AT REZ N E A SUE
BEFHRER-

RFEAENERREVENERS LRER
w Mzl ARG EER -



150

EVER HARVEST GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED 7k % £ Bl #2 Ji % B 2 W)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Leasing arrangement — as lessee

At 31 December 2023, the investment properties consist of
leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong with useful lives of 33
years (2022: 34 years).

The Group owns leasehold land and buildings and is the
registered owner of the property interests, including the underlying
leasehold land. The leasehold land component of the owned
property is presented separately only if the payments made can
be allocated reliably.

The investment properties with a total carrying amount of
approximately HK$56,799,000 (2022: HK$61,356,000) at 31
December 2023 were pledged to secure banking facilities (Note
20) granted to the Group.

Leasing arrangement — as lessor

An investment property is leased to a tenant for a term of three
years, in which the first two years are non-cancellable and the
third year is cancellable with a notice period of 2 months (2022: 2
months) by the tenant. The lease does not contain any renewal
option and termination option. Monthly rental charges consist of
fixed payments.

The details of the lease income from operating lease are set out in
note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Property under lease is subject to residual value risk. The lease
contract, as a result, include a provision based on which the
Group has right to charge the lessee for any damages to the
investment property at the expiry of lease. Besides, the Group has
purchased insurance to protect it against any loss that may arise
from accidents or physical damages of the properties.

Below is a maturity analysis of undiscounted lease payments to
be received from the leasing of the investment property under
operating lease.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 %

e RRME
& Z=2023F 12 A31 HIFFE

15. WE Y= ()

MEZH — FEREBEA

MR2023F 12 A31H  KEVMEBREEEM
ST RIEF  A[FERFHAEIIF (20224 -
344F) o

AEEFEAEHELHRET  A/ZFEVE
Bn (BEEAEE L) OEMEESA - R
BHEEAR SEHED FIELONRE - ZF
BEVMEHEETHEN T SEFET -

M2023F 12 A31H - BEBEEN A
56,799,000 7T (20224 : 61,356,000 % 7T )
MIENEE BB URESAEEERARTT
=8 (Kfat20) -

HEZH - FREEA

RENEDETHS  BHZF EME
ST RE Ry Dk TR oY)
(20224 : FifAA) @M - BETBET
MEERBE R LREE - ARREER
3 -

KEREZHENHERAFBIRGRANT
ARMIFES

HEDMEmUHRERR - Bt BHOHEE K
XEFASERNNEHERRAIREDE
BEMBZERARARE - U AEED
RERBARZEVENBINLYERER
BEERMEABRRIELRE -

REELEHESHEREMF WA KRR
MENREHPFTAT

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Year 1 F—F 1,680 1,680
Year 2 F_F 1,120 1,680
Year 3 F=F - 1,120
Undiscounted lease payments to be received  #§ ¥ Us BX ok BE 2R 0 & < 3¢ 2,800 4,480
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16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVPL

e BHRRME
& Z=2023%F 12 A31 HIFFZE

16. AR EFAEBSZNMKEE

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&T
At fair value, held for trading BRATE BEEE
Equity investments — listed in Hong Kong BB LMRAEE 6,158 6,050

The fair values of the equity investments at 31 December 2023
were determined on the basis of quoted market bid price available
on the Stock Exchange at the end of the reporting period and are
classified as Level 1 under fair value hierarchy.

The movement of the equity investments is analysed as follows:

MR2023F 12 A31H RAKREZ AFEET)
BERBEMRNBEIAMTIMENTSE ARE
BE UTRBEATFESAREAEIR-

RARE 2 ZE T -

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$000

FET FHET

At the beginning of the reporting period R 5 HA 1) 6,050 -

Additions A 1,687 7,465
Net fair value changes recognised in profit RERBER A FEZS)FE

or loss (1,579) (1,415)

At the end of the reporting period RS IR 6,158 6,050
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17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 %

e RRME
& Z=2023F 12 A31 HIFFE

17. EZ R E MR WRIEA

2023 2022
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Hiaz FET FHET

Trade receivables B S EWFIE
From third parties REE= 69,106 75,539
Less: Loss allowance W BIERE 17(a) (2,734) (3,237)
66,372 72,302

Other receivables H fih fE W TR 1E

Deposits, prepayments and 2o BERRER

other debtors H b fE W R IE 6,452 10,852
72,824 83,154

All of the trade and other receivables that are classified as current
assets are expected to be recovered or recognised as expense
within 12 months.

17(a) Loss allowance

The loss allowance of approximately HK$2,734,000 (2022:
HK$3,237,000) at 31 December 2023 was mainly and
specifically resulted from a then major customer who was in
the process of bankruptcy and liquidation.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
lifetime ECL for trade receivables as prescribed by HKFRS
9. The Group determines the provision for expected credit
losses by grouping together trade debtors with similar credit
risk characteristics and the days past due and collectively
assessing them for likelihood of recovery, taking into
account prevailing economic conditions and other forward
looking information. At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the
allowance for expected credit losses is assessed
insignificant.

BN BRRBEENE S M HMERHIA
EHIRMN12E AR E SRR/

17(a) BHEREE

M 2023412 A 31 HA A2472,734,000
BT (20224 ¢ 3,237,000 7T) 2 18
B TERABRKEER —BIEETT
WEMBEENEIEZEP -

NEBRBEBSVHHRELEBFZIORA
BT ERE B ERFENEET
BEHMBHEEEBREREE AEEE
THEHEEHRRERN  SEERRS
BREBARAUNE S RUGREESS A
— - HEFHKE 2 TR - PR
EAEEMR T REARIEEER - R
20234 2202212 A31 A EHEE
EIEBER T AN RE -
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17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

17(a) Loss allowance (Continued)

17. EZ R E MR RKIE (&)

17(a) R (&)
AEE-RAEFTFETHRZ90R
(20224 : xR Z90H) NI EH - 1%
SRHEINE S EKHIE (FKREE

The Group normally grants credit terms up to 90 days
(2022: up to 90 days) to its customers. The ageing analysis
of trade receivables, net of loss allowance, by invoice date

is as follows: B BRR TR
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within 30 days 30H®A 30,481 31,513
31-60 days 31E60H 21,455 22,172
61-90 days 61Z90H 9,799 9,977
Over 90 days HBiEo0 H 4,637 8,640
66,372 72,302

At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of the
trade receivables, net of loss allowance, by due date is as

RmEHR BHRKFIA (FNERERE
Bt BB BELREDTAOT -

follows:

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FHET
Not yet due K EIER 38,650 46,333

Past due: 2@
Within 30 days 30HA 17,622 16,042
31-60 days 31E£60H 8,404 4,859
61-90 days 61E290H 391 1,617
Over 90 days H#iE 90 H 1,305 3,451
27,722 25,969
66,372 72,302
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17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

17(a) Loss allowance (Continued)

The Group’s trade receivables which are past due at the
end of the reporting period but which the Group has not
impaired as there has not been any significant changes in
credit quality of customers and the management considers
that the amounts are fully recoverable.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no history
of default.

The Group does not hold any collateral over the trade
receivables.

At 31 December 2023, amount of approximately
HK$2,080,000 (2022: HK$5,738,000) included in the trade
receivables were in connection with invoice discounting
bank loan arrangements (Note 20).

18. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

The Group had obtained bank guaranteed facilities granted by
certain creditworthy banks. Such facilities were guaranteed by the
pledged bank deposits. At 31 December 2023, the Group had
utilised HK$750,000 (2022: HK$741,000) of such facilities arising
from bank guarantees issued to suppliers for services provided.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 %

REMBHRRME

& Z=2023F 12 A31 HIFFE

17. EZ R E M RW KA (&)

17(a) BR & (&)

AEEREHREHRCBHEL BIED
BENEZEKKBLEREFHNEER
BRUESAEY MEEER/EH
BEES CEl

R 780 HA Bk 3 R OR B O R W TR B % (E
RIREY E\ENCHNEF AR -

AR B LB 5 IR WS A T
Ham e

MR2023F12 A31H B 5 EWHIBF
#72,080,00078 JT (2022 4F : 5,738,000
L) 2B B EARBITERR
B (Mat20) -

18. CEHRITEX

AEBERESETAEENRITHENRT
ERAE -EERENDEHBRTERIEE
R > A2023F 12 A31H » REE D IR M
R 7% Eh F3 &b & 7 #9 750,000 78 7T (2022 4% -
741,000,% 7T ) 1A 7 3% H AR THEAR o
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STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE2023F 1231 HILFZ
19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 19. ES R HEMESNRKIE
2023 2022
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
HfaF FET FHET
Trade payables B S ERRIE
To third parties ERE=F 19(a) 55,717 85,541
Other payables HhERRIE
Accrued charges and other creditors FEETE A I H fth FE T BR X
(Note ) (HtaEi) 22,612 20,575
Deposits received BliEe 10,274 14,414
32,886 34,989
88,603 120,530
Note i: The amounts mainly included salary payables and provision of social security Meti SEIEERERMTFEREREEISRERR -
insurances.
19(a) Trade payables 19(a) E 5 ERKIE
The trade payables due to third parties are unsecured, ERNE=F0NESENFKIEREER -
interest-free and have a credit period of 30 days to 90 days. EENERTIOHEOHWMEE-
At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of RBERR REZEHE2INESE
trade payables by invoice date is as follows: ERIERRE DT
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$°000
FERT FHET
Within 30 days 30H A 34,085 36,532
31-60 days 31260H 13,093 25,660
61-90 days 61290 H 7,876 15,601
Over 90 days #3890 A 663 7,748

55,717 85,541
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20. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 %

REMBHRRME

& Z=2023F 12 A31 HIFFE

20. FHEERK

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Secured bank borrowings: EEBRITER
Current portion BNEAER 7> 48,909 64,584

(i)

(i)

Bank borrowings of approximately HK$2,080,000 (2022:
HK$5,738,000) bear interests at Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) plus 1.7% per annum (2022: HIBOR
plus 1.7% per annum) and are wholly repayable within one
year since inception. The bank borrowings are secured by
trade receivables of approximately HK$2,080,000 (2022:
HK$5,738,000) in connection with invoice discounting bank
loan arrangements (Note 17).

A bank borrowing of approximately HK$2,000,000 (2022:
HK$12,000,000) bears interest at HIBOR plus 1.7% per
annum (2022: HIBOR plus 1.7% per annum) and is wholly
repayable within one year since inception. The bank
borrowing is secured by the leasehold land and buildings
and investment properties of the Group of aggregate net
carrying amount of approximately HK$63,749,000 (2022:
HK$66,458,000) and HK$56,799,000 (2022:
HK$61,356,000) respectively (Notes 14 and 15).

A mortgage loan of approximately HK$19,209,000 (2022:
HK$20,416,000) bears interest at the lower of HIBOR plus
1.25% per annum and the Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate
minus 2.7% per annum respectively (2022: lower of HIBOR
plus 1.25% per annum and the Hong Kong Dollar Prime
Rate minus 2.7% per annum), and is wholly repayable over
five years. The mortgage loan is secured by the leasehold
land and buildings and investment properties of the Group
of aggregate net carrying amount of approximately
HK$63,749,000 (2022: HK$66,458,000) and
HK$56,799,000 (2022: HK$61,356,000) respectively (Notes
14 and 15).

U)

(i)

(i)

B B4 2,080,000 T (2022 4F
5,738,000/87T) 2 IR1TEFTIE BB IRT
R3S ([HIBORJ) 111.7% (2022 4F :
HIBOR#11.7%) 2 R E& B - WA A
FIAR—FAREEE - ZRITERTY
NEBEARBITERTHEE B L
2,080,000/ Jt (20224 : 5,738,000%
) 2B S EWERIE (M 17) 1EEIR -

B 8% 2,000,000/ 5T (2022 4
12,000,000/% 7T) 2 R 17 & FILZ HIBOR
101.7% (2022 4 : HIBORJ11.7% ) 2
FEFE  WAEEAARBE—FAERE
8o ZIRTTERFTVAREFERLZED 7
#63,749,0008 7T (2022 4F :
66,458,000 % 7r) } 56,799,000 7T
(2022 4 : 61,356,000/% ) 2 A EBE
ELHREFUREENE (Wit 14
15) {31 -

B E#)19,209,000% JT (2022 4
20,416,000 L) 2 12 18 E F 5 5l %
HIBOR N 1.25% B2 /& JT & 18 2= ) & 3}
2.7% (ANEIK & B%E) (20224F &
HIBOR 11 1.25% £ % T = (8 & FI| £ )%
2.7% (UKL E BE)) 2 FFEEFE -
WARAEFN EBEREE - ZIZBER
JhLABREDF B 48 8E 99 Bl 40 63,749,000 8
JT (2022 % : 66,458,000% x) &
56,799,000/ JT (2022 4 : 61,356,000
L) o NEERE i MIEF UMK
BYE (W14 5 15) fEIER o
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20. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 20. sTEER(E)

(CONTINUED)

(v) A term loan of approximately HK$25,620,000 (2022: (v) A2 #%25,620,000/% T (2022 4F :
HK$26,430,000) bears interest at the 1 month HIBOR plus 26,430,000/8 L) 2 F BHE iz 1@ B
1.75% per annum (2022: 1 month HIBOR plus 1.75% per HIBOR MM 1.75% 2 & F| & (2022 4F 1
annum), and is wholly repayable over five years. The term 18] H HIBOR 111.75% <~ F | &) 5T B -
loan is secured by the leasehold land and buildings and WERRFNEBHERE -ZEHER
investment properties of the Group of aggregate net T LABR T FHE58 5 5l %) 63,749,000 /4
carrying amount of approximately HK$63,749,000 (2022: JC (2022 F : 66,458,000& ;) &
HK$66,458,000) and HK$56,799,000 (2022: 56,799,000 7T (2022 4 : 61,356,000
HK$61,356,000) respectively (Notes 14 and 15). ABr) 2 ANEERE L REFURE

B (B 14 5% 15) {EHE 48 -

PrEERAM S —HEGR ERTHELE
RN 2RBBERERMBAZLRBA
Ao aE EERERNE
KA NEITEERNEIER -

All the borrowings are with a clause in the terms that gives the
lender an overriding right to demand repayment without notice at
its sole discretion, is classified as current liabilities even though
the management does not expect that the lender would exercise
its rights to demand repayment.

The range of effective interest rates on the interest-bearing AEEFNEERFMNENFII3NET.4%
borrowings was 3.3% to 7.4% (2022: 2.1% to 7.1%) per annum. (20224 : 21% E7.1%) ° T AT BEF 15
All the interest-bearing borrowings are denominated in HKS. LU TTEHE o

At 31 December 2023, the Group had banking facilities totalling M2023F 12 H31H  ASEERITRE S

approximately HK$127,000,000 (2022: HK$127,000,000) and
undrawn amounts under these banking facilities of approximately
HK$78,091,000 (2022: HK$62,416,000).

#£#9127,000,0007% 7T (2022 % : 127,000,000
BT) RZFRTHEBTAREREEN
78,091,000/8 7T (2022 4F : 62,416,000787T) °
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LEASE LIABILITIES 21. HEAE
2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Lease liabilities HEEE
Current mE 1,133 1,287
Non-current ERED 1,035 1,047
2,168 2,334

22.

The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 December
2023 was approximately HK$65,001,000 (2022: HK$70,654,000).

Commitments under leases

The Group was committed to lease contracts in relation to feeder
vessels and leased properties that have not yet commenced. At
31 December 2023, the related lease payments that were not
paid and not reflected in the measurement of lease liabilities were
approximately HK$12,813,000 (2022: HK$2,602,000).

HE2023F12A31HILFEE -HEBRSR
H 4% %) A65,001,000%8 T (2022 F
70,654,000 7T ) °

HEEE

REBCERES R EMMEEEME KR
It EAH - R2023FE12 A31H » kit
kU ERBMRBEAEFECEBEENK
%9 /12,813,000% 7T (20224 : 2,602,000%
JT) °

DEFERRED TAXATION 22, EEHIE
Recognised deferred tax assets (liabilities) at the end of the RMEPRRERNECEHIBEEE (BB RE
reporting period represent the following: LATRIER :
Assets Liabilities
BE =L
2023 2022 2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FE T FET FE T
Depreciation allowance WERE - - (1,389) (1,500)
Tax losses MIAEE 1,389 1,500 = -
Deferred tax assets (iabilities) EEFBEE (BE) 1,389 1,500 (1,389) (1,500)
Offsetting Eiig | (1,389) (1,500) 1,389 1,500

Net deferred tax liabilities RIETRIB A EF5
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22. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

23.

FEMBRRME
HZE2023F 12 31 HIFFE
22, EEBIE (&)

At 31 December 2023, tax losses of approximately
HK$15,129,000 (2022: HK$14,222,000) arising in Hong Kong
have no expiry date under current tax legislation. Deferred tax
asset has not been recognised in respect of the estimated tax
losses of HK$7,113,000 (2022: HK$5,130,000) because it is not
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the Company can utilise the benefits therefrom. The tax losses do
not expire under current tax legislation.

R2028F 12 A81B RABELENHRIEE
18 4915,129,000 78 7T (2022 4F : 14,222,000,%
) MIBBRITRE AL ERNEA - HER
7,113,000 7T (20224 : 5,130,000/8 7T) 2
AR BEERRECHBEE  RNELRE
A RREZRTOREF TRARBAEF &=
FTiss o BIBRITHE - RIEEBY TS HH -

SHARE CAPITAL 23. R
2023 2022
No. of shares No. of shares
R EE Kng g
’000 HK$°000 ‘000 HK$’000
Fi FET Fhg FE&T
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of EBREE0.01 LA
HK$0.01 each LR 10,000,000 100,000 10,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHER
Ordinary shares of FREEO0.0178 TH
HK$0.01 each TR 1,550,000 15,500 1,550,000 15,500
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24, #1E
24(a) IR 1E

24. RESERVES

24(a) Share premium

Share premium represents the excess of the net proceeds
from issuance of the Company’s shares over its par value.
Under the laws of the Cayman Islands and the Company’s
Articles of Association, it is distributable to the Company’s
shareholders provided that the Company is able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

24(b) Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the aggregate amount of the
nominal value of the issued capital of the companies
comprising the Group pursuant to the initial public offering
less consideration paid to acquire the relevant interests (if

any).

profits to statutory reserve in accordance with the relevant
PRC laws and regulations. The statutory reserve can be
used to make up for losses, expand the existing operation
and convert into additional capital.

24(d) Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations for consolidation.

controlling interests in prior years.

24(b)

24(d)

A BRETRARRBRMNEBEMFK
REHEAEEENZRE RERSE
EEPIRARRARIABEIZMA - ZF2
BAI DR TARRBR - ARRAR
EAXNAREKBRETIHENNE
& o

N
BEAREREREERARABEMAKRAE

B2 AR e BITIRAEEARRE Bk
BrREESD MR E(AE) -

24(c) Statutory reserve 24(c) SEE A
The Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC have REBMPFRBEKYL 2 WEBRREIRESF
appropriated a total of 10% of their accumulated after-tax BEEERERBH BT RT BB

Z10% BIEEERE - AERE A AR
HEER BARBELEXBALBELS
B InE AN o

B 5
X R EE s REBINEHIT
WARMEENMEINEEER °

24(e) Other reserve 24(e) H At E
The other reserve represents the difference between the B FEEBEFERR  NEBEIRM
carry amounts of the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary —EMf B AR IR RN RE &5 H
now comprising the Group and the fair value of the W ETEREE I TRENQTF
consideration paid for the acquisition of the entire non- BEME 2RO ELE -
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25. CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATIONS 25 EE(FTREENRSE
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&T
Profit before tax R 50 A& A 685 32,896
Bank interest income |ITH B WA (1,420) (230)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #1% - BiE Kk R HITE 9,371 8,951
Depreciation of investment properties HEMERE 2,590 2,590
Dividend income from financial assets at FVPL & A (BT AR
MR ENRBWA (112) (164)
Exchange difference E i =& - (629)
Finance costs A& A 2,873 1,938
Impairment losses on investment properties & ¥ ¥R EE 18 1,967 =
Reversal of loss allowance on trade and 25 REMERFIAESE
other receivables, net B E B )5 58 (328) —
Net loss on financial assets at FVPL BEATEFAEBENTBEEDN
B R 1,579 1,415
Gain on disposals of property, HEWE - BE REZEH IS
plant and equipment (164) -
Gain on lease modification MEBFT W= (5) -
Changes in working capital LEESEE)
Trade and other receivables B NHMEWFRIE 10,755 13,987
Trade and other payables B 5N HEAMMERFKIE (31,619) 3,210

Cash (used in) from operations Z2E(MA)EENRS (3,828) 63,964




162

EVER HARVEST GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED 7k % £ Bl #2 Ji % B 2 W)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

26. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed elsewhere in
the consolidated financial statements, during the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022, information of the connected/related
party transactions is set out below.

Remuneration for key management personnel (including the
Directors) of the Group:

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 %

e RRME
& Z=2023F 12 A31 HIFFE

26. BERBEBLEXS

BRER G B 75 3R 3R H M 3019 AT BB R B = 2023
FR2022F 12831 B LFERETHR
S/ER BE ARSI E—FE
S AN

AEBTEEERAB (BREZ)NHMH

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAET

Directors’ fees B8 1,220 1,145

Salaries, bonus and allowances &~ B MoERL 15,367 16,446
Contributions to defined contribution M) JE B8 {1 SR RET BI/E H A9 3Kk

retirement schemes 20 74

16,677 17,665

Further details of the directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 7
to the consolidated financial statements.

27. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON CASH

FLOWS

Except for the transactions disclosed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, during the year, the Group had
the following major non-cash transactions:

(@) Major non-cash transactions

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
entered into lease arrangements in respect of leased
assets with a total capital value at the inception of
leases of approximately HK$101,000 (2022:
HK$1,385,000).

(i)  During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
had non-cash maodifications to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities of HK$1,308,000 (2022: nil) and
HK$1,303,000 (2022: nil), respectively, in respect of
lease arrangements for leased properties.

(i)  During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
deposits for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment amount of HK$10,023,000 was used to
settle for the acquisition of vessel.

FREEFHNE - THBERGAM B
RUFEET -

27. B RE 2K ME R

BRANER A M R B A D PR R H 5D -
RAFE  AEBEUTEEFRERH

FEFREXRF

() REZ2023F12831HILFE -
AEEFTLHELZH AAEH
NHERBBEERBEEY A
101,000/ JT (2022 4 : 1,385,000
BB EEE -

(a)

(i) #EZE2023F 12 A31AILEE K
SESRIRAEMENHEL R
EERAEEEREAENIERE
& 371,308,000 7t (2022 4F : #&)
121,308,000 7T (2022 4F . ##) o

iy #EZE2022F12A31BILEE K
BEmE BMEERLKLENI 2
10,023,000 7% 7T B A 1E 1 W b
MMARE -
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27.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON CASH
FLOWS (CONTINUED)

REMBHRRME

& Z=2023%F 12 A31 HIFFZE

27.

BEREZHMER (&)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) METBHELEZEEBHER
financing activities
The movements during the years in the Group’s liabilities AEERETHEECBBRFRAZE
arising from financing activities are as follows: R -
Non-cash changes
FRERH
At At
1 January Net Lease Exchange 31 December
2023 cash flow Addition  modification difference 2023
2023 F BeRE H2023F
1818 R 210 HEBT EXZHE  12831R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Year ended 31 December 2023 HZ2023F 12531 H
t5E
Interest-bearing borrowings FTEER 64,584 (15,675) = = = 48,909
Lease liabilities HEBE 2,334 (1,439) 101 1,303 (131) 2,168
66,918 (17,114) 101 1,303 (131) 51,077
Non-cash changes
FHEH
At At
1 January Net Exchange 31 December
2022 cash flow Addition difference 2022
20224 Being 122022
1A1H et #m EREE 12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE2022F12A31BLEEE
Interest-bearing borrowings FEMER 69,662 (5,078) - - 64,584
Lease liabilties MEEE 2,714 (1,680) 1,385 85) 2,334
72,376 (6,758) 1,385 (85) 66,918
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 28. IXEMEEBEERBEE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise of pledged
bank deposits, bank balances and cash, financial assets at FVPL,
interest-bearing borrowings and lease liabilities. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to raise and maintain finance for
the Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial
instruments such as trade and other receivables, trade and other
payables which arise directly from its business activities.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and
price risk. The Group does not have any written risk management
policies and guidelines. However, the management generally
adopts conservative strategies on its risk management and limits
the Group’s exposure to these risks to a minimum level as follows:

Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the PRC with
majority of business transactions being denominated in HK$, US$
and RMB.

Certain financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of
the respective group entities and therefore, exposed to foreign
currency risk. The net carrying amounts of those financial assets
and liabilities are analysed as follows:

AEBENEIEVBTABREEBWRITER
RITERLIRE - ROV EF ARSI
BE SEEFAMEERBE ZFUHLT
AENEERMNDNAASENEESR RER
Bx AKEAZHAEMUBTAE WESH
K Bt EUGGR IR A KB 5 I E b FE N 5R08 -
TREERESPERES -

AEEHBITEMEENEEZRRRIMNERE
2 EFERR RBHESRER  FEREBK
BA& R o 7% 5 [ 37 4 fa] B SO0 Rl e B 38
B RIS - AT - BIEE — REFEAR T
REBHERR - WA S B Lt 7 m A&
ErRREERE SN0 -

S L B

AEBETERBFBRTEESZ XHXHE
BB - R ARBE

AEBEBEETVBEERM B AGBAMRBE
ERRINAEEE SN EEERTE - B
INERK ZEMBEERABENOERETFE
DT ¢

2023 2022
Financial assets (liabilities), net HK$’000 HK$'000
BREE(EE)  FE FET FET
US$ e 5,588 24,248
RMB AR (13,873) (13,804)

Since the exchange rate of HK$ is pegged with US$, the Group
does not expect any significant movements in the US$/HK$
exchange rates.

M8 T B3R T I R 6 - [k AR S B TR 1
EL/ BTEXTEEEMERNES) -
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 28. BiIEMEEBERBE(E)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currency risk (Continued) Hh s b (48)
At the end of the reporting period, if exchange rate of RMB had RBEHAR WMARBLEFASEEE &
depreciated/appreciated against the functional currencies of the EENEXEE FEI% (2022F : 5%)
respective group entities by 3% (2022: 5%) and all other variables MATEEMEERETE  AARENRT
were held constant, the Group’s profit before tax would increase/ AafEAZEEERBENRABESM
decrease by approximately HK$416,000 (2022: approximately #hn, 5 A #)416,000 JT (2022 4F ¢ 49
HK$690,000) as a result of changes in the carrying amount of 690,000&7T) °
these assets and liabilities.
The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the ERBBEES N DERREXSHN SR
changes in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the end of the HEHREE - BERH '*:'@M;ﬁﬁ RAREE R
reporting period and had been applied to Group’s exposure to ZBEFENSBEMFE TAMEMENEEER
currency risk for financial instruments in existence at that date, BFMEEMEE(LERTE)ERTE -
and that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant.
The stated changes represent management’s assessment of FrlZsREREHEXRFREE T —@
reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates over the REBRIEHRANAEEB R -
year until the end of the next reporting period.
In the opinion of the management, the sensitivity analysis is EHERAS  SREDITEREENINER R
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk because WEAKRYE  REARKREBREENRR

the exposure at the end of the reporting period does not reflect TR RMAREBAMMENRR -
the exposure during the reporting period.
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 28. BiEREEEERBE (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Credit risk EERK
Credit risk refers to the risk that debtors will default on their EERBIEEHFARGEBITHEEENESE
obligations to repay the amounts due to the Group, resulting in a ERBEEMLT EFAEERZEENRR
loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is mainly attributable to AEEMNEERREEREE S R EAMmELY
trade and other receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank R BERROTTEARARBITEHRRERS -
balances and cash. The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by AEBERYFHIRELEZHBAEERE
selecting counterparties with reference to their past credit history /MR E  EUREEHNEER
and/or market reputation. The Group’s maximum exposure to the %o AEEFEHNE=EERRESILT

credit risk is summarised as follows:

2023 2022

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Trade and other receivables g5 Kk E M EWEIE 71,892 80,454
Pledged bank deposits BERIRITHER 784 811
Bank balances and cash Rt MIARS 106,505 147,991

179,181 229,256
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Balance with financial institutions

The management considers the credit risk in respect of pledged
bank deposits and bank balances and cash is minimal because
the counter-parties are authorised financial institutions with high
credit ratings.

Trade receivables

The Group trades with recognised and creditworthy third parties.
It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on
credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk at trade receivables is
influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an
individual credit rating assessment which is mainly based on the
Group’s own trading records.

The Group customer base consists of a wide range of clients and
the trade receivables are categorised by common risk
characteristics that are representative of the customers’ abilities
to pay all amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms.
The Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL for
trade receivables and recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECL at the end of the reporting period, based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

At 31 December 2023, the Group had a concentration of credit
risk as approximately 10% (2022: 12%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s largest customer, and
approximately 45% (2022: 38%) of the total trade receivables was
due from the Group’s five largest customers.

Other receivables

The Group considers that other receivables have low credit risk
based on the debtors’ strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and low risk of default,
therefore, the credit risk associated with other receivables is
minimal. No loss allowance was recognised for both years.

mEe

Bt 35 SRR Y RE

& Z=2023%F 12 A31 HIFFZE

MHERREEERRBE (&)

B2 B RS HE AR BV A5 &R

EEERR ARXZUFREAREEN
BRI EEE  REBBEERRTE
RARRITHEBR LB NEERREE -

& W
AEEEANBREREENFE=ZDETRLS -
REEE kﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁéuh,\ﬂ%?ﬁ HEITR
SHNEFPHABBEERZERFT

\m\é\
S'-%"

AEBESRUFENEERREEXER
FRERNSHMAEE - $§.’%IIK$ETJ§ZK%
MR BREETENEFPNEENE  LE
NFHEEFPMEEEER -

ZK’EI%}EE%HH%{I%?}EZEEJZ B 5 WK
B ARRRBEOE  BRREFBAREP
%Eé%’ﬂbmﬂiiﬁﬁﬁﬁ;ﬂ,ﬁ% IEEI’J EEPAILIVN S

ERABEAETEE S ERGRIENTERE
BEEE REEBFEEBBLERESHRE
H R EEFERTEREEBREEREBR
B ITRESEABTEOAMNEEREREER
BIEH T o

MR2023F 12 A31H BRNE 5 ERRIAL
FRL910% (20224 - 12%) BEW AR EE &
AREF UREBHEWFIBELETEF N45%
(2022 : 38%) REWAEBRAREF '
AEBHEETEERR -

At EW 5 E

AEERR AR
NENESGHNRERERTRENRAR

MEBAB RIFENRIES
BRI -

H A & UL IEE’MZTJ—L&?T{EE B bt £ H A
EURFENEERRDHERE - XMW EF
Elﬁﬂﬁmﬁéﬂaﬁéﬁ °
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility. The Group has no specific policy for
managing its liquidity. The undiscounted contractual maturity
profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end of the reporting

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 %

e RRME
& Z=2023F 12 A31 HIFFE

28. MK EKEREHERBEK (&)

REBE T E R

AEENEREAEESRHEEREREZH
BEFE AEBYESERREEER

B2 AKEYBABREREDRRES
#IARRE IR FRIRME K B R BEIR & K BB 0 A 458

period, based on contractual undiscounted payments, is HanR
summarised below:
Total
Total contractual Less than
carrying undiscounted 1 year or on
amount cash flow demand 1-2 years 2-5 years
ERRER 3 k3
REAE HeRELE REER 1-25 2-5%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETL FET FET FET
At 31 December 2023 R2023F12831A8
Trade and other payables B REMENZR 76,730 76,730 76,730 - -
Lease liabilities HERE 2,168 2,283 1,205 809 269
Interest-bearing borrowings SRR (M)
(Note) 48,909 48,909 48,909 - -
127,807 127,922 126,844 809 269
At 31 December 2022 R2022%12 A31H
Trade and other payables ZSREMENFE 108,511 103,511 103,511 - -
Lease liabilities HEBE 2,334 2,413 1,344 776 293
Interest-bearing borrowings T B EF (A7)
(Note) 64,584 64,584 64,584 - -
170,429 170,508 169,439 776 293
Note: The amounts repayable under certain bank loan agreements that include a HteE - REBEETROTERBZATEEZFNESE —HIE

clause that gives the banks unconditional rights to call the loans at anytime
are classified under the category of “Less than 1 year or on demand”.
However, the management does not expect that the banks would exercise
such rights to demand repayment and thus, the borrowings, which included
the related interest, would be repaid according to the below schedule as set
out in the loan agreements.

o BT RITE RN R BE R 2 OR R - Bk
EREDIATL 1 FREERIER - A - &
EEEHRITTETEZSENESER - Hit
BRfER (BREABENS) BEREXBEMEAT
BIE R IE K -
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

e BHRRME
& Z=2023%F 12 A31 HIFFZE

28. MR ERE B ERBER (&)

Liquidity risk (Continued) REE SR (F)
Note: (Continued) Kiat - (88)
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Less than 1 year or on demand DPR1FREEXK 7,953 21,191
1-2 years 124 3,873 3,327
2-5 years 2-5F 11,621 9,082
Over 5 years 5 43,004 39,500
66,451 74,000
Interest rate risk F 2= = pax

The management considers that in the Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of the HIBOR or
Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate arising from the Group’s variable
interest rate borrowings.

At 31 December 2023, if the HIBOR or Hong Kong Dollar Prime
Rate had been 1% higher or lower while all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s profit for the year would decrease or
increase by approximately HK$489,000 (2022: HK$646,000).

In the opinion of the management, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk because of the
exposure at the end of the reporting period does not reflect the
exposure during the year.

BEERR AKBZReRMNERBRTE
SPRAKEFEMERELE ZHBOREE T
REEN KK -

2023412 A31H » fWHIBORZ & Tt & &

B REINEB A 1% - MATA S ST
S BN E A s A S =R g g n gy

489,00078 7t (2022 F : 646,000,57T) °

BEEERR  SREDTYEEAON XA R
WEARN - RE RN &R EHRE S8R R
NBE BRI R & B A P T S RO LR
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STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

28.

29.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Price risk

The Group was exposed to price risk arising from listed equity
investments classified as financial assets at FVPL in the
consolidated financial statements. The sensitivity analysis had
been determined based on the exposure to price risk.

At 31 December 2023, if the market price had been 5% (2022:
5%) higher/lower while all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s profit before tax would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$308,000 (2022: HK$303,000), due to change
in the fair value of the listed equity investments.

The stated changes represented management’s assessment of
reasonably possible changes in relevant market price over the
year until the end of the next reporting period.

In the opinion of the management, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent price risk because the exposure
at the end of the reporting period does not reflect the exposure
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURE

The following presents the assets and liabilities measured at fair
value or required to disclose their fair value in these consolidated
financial statements on a recurring basis across the three levels
of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair Value
Measurement” with the fair value measurement categorised in its
entirety based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
entire measurement. The levels of inputs are defined as follows:

o Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group can
access at the measurement date;

° Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL GEMBHRRMEE
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE2023F 12 31 HILFZE

29. FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURE (CONTINUED) 29. AFERE (&)

(a) Assets and liabilities measured at fair value (a) BATEFENEERERE
2023 2022
Level 1 Level 1
E— E—
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAET
Assets measured at fair value BEATEHENEE
Financial assets at FVPL BATFEFABENTBEE
Equity investments, listed in Hong Kong &8 E IR AR E
(Note 16) (Ktat 16) 6,158 6,050
During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there REZE2023F K 2022F 12 A31 HIEF
were no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair B HF—H B_LRE=-LKDTFEF
value measurements. £ B EEAEE o
(b) Assets and liabilities with fair value disclosure, b) EAFEEECLFZEAFES
but not measured at fair value EvEERERE
All other financial assets and liabilities including trade and 2023 F K 2022F 12 A31H » A H
other receivables, trade and other payables, pledged bank B EEREBE(BRES NEME
deposits, bank balances and cash, interest-bearing WHiE - BS R EMEMFKIE - BEIT
borrowings and lease liabilities/obligations under finance RITHFER - RITEHRRES  FHEEK
leases are carried at amounts not materially different from rBMEHEETNEHEARE EM)H

their fair values at 31 December 2023 and 2022. REHE N EWESE K=ER 2 REEHER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

29. FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURE (CONTINUED)

(c) Investment properties

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 %
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29. AP ERE (H)
(c) ®REW=

(i)  Investment properties measured at fair value () BAFETENREYRE

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
@it F—R £-R E=R
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e FEIT FHETL FET FHET

At 31 December 2023 R2023F12A31H
Investment properties REME 15 56,799 - = 56,799

At 31 December 2022 2022 F12 A31 A
Investment properties REME 15 61,356 - = 61,356

As mentioned in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has engaged independent
professional valuers to assess the fair value of its
investment properties at the end of the reporting
period. In measuring the fair value of the investment
properties located in Hong Kong as at 31 December
2023, the direct comparison approach had been
adopted which was consistent with the approach
adopted in 2022. During the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022, there were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or
out of Level 3 fair value measurements.

FUER A B S R MY sE 15 Pl -
AREBELZEB Y BEMGHERMT
HIREYERRERRNATE -
REBUREENEEYER
2023F 12 A1 B AT ER ' B
K EI2022 F TR B 5 /& — BLHY
HELLEE - {22023 F & 2022
F12AGIHLEFE F—RESF
R EWmEE EE AL
BHE =R ATETE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023

29. FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURE (CONTINUED)
(c)

Investment properties (Continued)

(i)  Disclosure of valuation process and valuation
techniques and inputs used in Level 3 fair value
measurements

The quantitative information of the significant
unobservable inputs and description of valuation

e BHRRME
& Z=2023%F 12 A31 HIFFZE

29. AFEHEE (&)
(c) REWX (&)

(i) TEERFREGERGRBEABE
HY 1% E

BEATABEREAZMEBNELE
FEE =R A EFEMAGE

techniques used in Level 3 fair value measurement, Rt 2EE =812 ¥ E
including the description of the sensitivity to changes KEMTETATERG ARG
in unobservable inputs for recurring Level 3 fair value B BREHANT -
measurements, are as follows:
Fair value as at
31 December
M12A31AMATE
2023 2022 Sensitivity of fair value to
Valuation changes in unobservable
Description HK$'000 HK$'000  technique Unobservable input input
DEEHFTHEEA
it FET AT fERK THEEGAEE HEZBNYRE
[nvestment 56,799 61,356 Direct comparison Market unit rate between If the market unit rate increased/
properties method HK$11,000/sq.ft. decreased by 4% (2022: 4%),
(2022: HK$13,300/sq.ft.) to the fair value of investment
HK$13,900/s0.t. properties would increase/
(2022: HK$16,500/sq.1t.) decrease by HK$2,200,000
(2022: HK$2,500,000)
REME 56,799 61,356 EELEE THERNTFEFARI1,000 W H5EREEM/ HD4%

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
there were no changes in the valuation techniques
used.

30. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard
its ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital and to
support the Group’s stability and growth. The management
considers the total equity as disclosed in the consolidated
statement of financial position as the Group’s capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to ensure optimal capital structure and shareholder
returns, taking into consideration the future capital requirements
of the Group. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or return capital to shareholders.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

BT (2022F  HERFR (2022F : 4%)  HEMER
13,300 L) Z8F AR FEHEMN/F 2200000
13,900/ 70 (2022F : & F ;jéfc (20224 : 2,500,000 78

FHR16,50077T) 2 L)

# % 20234 [ 2022412 A31 A L4
B BRI S -

30. EXERE

AEBEREANBBRAREAREEIUARFE
RS REEQANEE S - BERCREMH/EI®RA R
REAMBRRRBH-BERN - LAERFZENE RS
B BREERAKNAARIFAEENRE R
B -BEESEAMBRARFRENE
BERAAKEHER -

AEEBBY FHBRTLEEEERNGEE
UBREEEAGEBE LRER R - &5 kA
B AEETARTARENRE SR 8
THREMBERREE® o 8 £2023F &
2022F 12 A1 HIFFEHENBIZE BHXK
SRR LS o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL GLEMBHRERMEE
STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE2023F 12431 HILFZ

31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 31. RRQ TR T
THE COMPANY

2023 2022
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
k23 FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary & — R B A A - =
Current assets RBEE
Due from subsidiaries eI PNGIE 113,847 118,430
Prepayment B RIE 53 351
Income tax recoverable AT YL [ PSR 27 =
Bank balances and cash RITHEHR AR S 15,060 10,134
128,987 128,915
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H b~ 508 118 80
Income tax payable BT - 3
118 83
Net current assets REBEEZFE 128,869 128,832
NET ASSETS EEFE 128,869 128,832
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERRFE
Share capital [ 23 15,500 15,500
Reserves i 31(a) 113,369 113,332
TOTAL EQUITY ERAE 128,869 128,832
This statement of financial position was approved and authorised RPFBMA KK EETEN2024F 3 A 25 Bt
for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2024 and signed MW REEST  WHATERREEE
on its behalf by
Director Director
E2 EE
LAU Yu Leung LAU Tak Fung Wallace

EES gEa



EVER HARVEST GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED 7% 5 4 ¥ Jit 45 B 2 7]
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 %

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023

31.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

31(a) Movement of share capital and reserves

REMBHRRME

& Z=2023%F 12 A31 HIFFZE

31. A FMBIRR R (&)

31 AR B2 B
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Share Share Accumulated
capital premium losses Total
[N B0 EsE ZEEE Bt
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FA&T FA&T FA&T
(Note 24(a))
(Ket24(a)
At 1 January 2022 MW2022%1 818 15,500 115,535 (2,397) 128,638
Profit for the year and total ~ FERF K FEEE
comprehensive income W 4asa
for the year - - 194 194
At 31 December 2022 MR20229F12 A31H 15,500 115,535 (2,203) 128,832
At 1 January 2023 MH2023%F1A81H 15,500 115,535 (2,203) 128,832
Profit for the year and total ~ FEH M RFEELE
comprehensive income Wz B 5
for the year - - 37 37
At 31 December 2023 A2023%F 12831 H 15,500 115,535 (2,166) 128,869
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY MBHME

The following is a summary of the published results and assets and I TNAKRKEEBEREASBRFEED FIEEE AN
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years. BEEHGEHRE -

RESULTS E ¥

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEEE
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000  HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET

Revenue g 336,704 365,715 488,964 655518 392,220
Profit before tax B 56 A 5 7 2,512 19,400 26,502 32,896 685
Income tax (expenses) credits ~ FT5H (FA ) % (910) 6,825 (3,719) (5,254) (172)
Profit for the year FER A 1,602 26,225 22,783 27,642 513

Profit for the year attributable to: LA N A T EIHEE

S F

Equity holders of the Company ~ ANA RIEZRIFA A 1,602 26,225 22,783 27,642 513
1,602 26,225 22,783 27,642 513

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE

As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
HK$'000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FEIT FET FET FET
Total assets LEEBE 242606 347,940 396,514 413,132 354,039
Total liabilities BERE 128,561 205,519 199,197 192,742 139,680
114,045 142,421 197,317 220,390 214,359
Equity attributable to AT AT G

Equity holders of the Company ~ ANAGEREFA A 114,045 142,421 197,317 220,390 214,359
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